:s“‘“é"% Webcast
€ Nesing SCRUTINY
. Epping Forest District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday, 29th November, 2011

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping

Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Simon Hill, Senior Democratic Services Officer, The Office of

Officer: the Chief Executive
email:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992
564249

Members:

Councillors R Bassett (Chairman), D Wixley (Vice-Chairman), Ms R Brookes, K Chana,
D Jacobs, D C Johnson, Mrs S Jones, S Murray, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan and G Waller

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND

WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site -
at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act. Data collected
during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy and copies made
available to those who request it..

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for web casting and/or training
purposes. If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper
council chamber public gallery area

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services Officer on 01992
564249.

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 29 November 2011
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“This meeting will be webcast live to the Internet and will be archived for later viewing.
Copies of recordings may be made available on request.

By entering the chamber’s lower seating area you consenting to becoming part of the
webcast.

If you wish to avoid being filmed you should move to the public gallery or speak to the
webcasting officer”

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

(Assistant to the Chief Executive). To report the appointment of any substitute
members for the meeting.

4, MINUTES (Pages 7 - 16)
Decisions required:

To confirm the minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 18 October
2011.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda.

In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.

This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.

Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a
matter.

6. PRESENTATION FROM THE YOUTH COUNCIL (Pages 17 - 18)
Recommendation:

That the Committee consider whether to recommend the inclusion of a bid for
£12,000 DDF funding in the Council’s draft budget for 2012-13 to the Cabinet and
Council.

1. (Youth Councillors) In 2008/09 the Cabinet had requested the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee receive an annual presentation from the Youth Council giving an
update on the developing Youth Council programme and to present their request for

2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 29 November 2011

10.

1.

12

13.

14.

funding for the year ahead.

2. Members of the Youth Council will attend the meeting to outline:

(i) achievements from the last year;

(i) the plans for the Youth Council for the coming year; and

(iii) new youth engagement and volunteer initiatives for 2012-13.

3. Attached is a summary budget breakdown for the Youth Councillors which will
be referred to in the presentation.

CALL-IN OF CABINET REPORT ON OLYMPIC GAMES "LOOK AND FEEL" AND
TICKET ALLOCATION (Pages 19 - 38)

To consider a call-in of the Cabinet’s Decision on ‘Olympic Games “Look and Feel”
and Ticket Allocation’ (C-032-2011/12). Call-in papers and report are attached.
GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON TECHNICAL REFORMS OF COUNCIL TAX
(Pages 39 - 50)

(Director of Finance and ICT) To consider the attached report.

KEY OBJECTIVES 2011/12 - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 51 - 114)

(Acting Chief Executive) To consider the attached report.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - SIX MONTHLY REVIEW (Pages 115 - 138)

To consider the attached report.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - APPOINTMENT OF PORTFOLIO
HOLDER ASSISTANT (Pages 139 - 142)

(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To consider the attached report.

REPORTING BY SCRUTINY PANEL CHAIRMEN AT COUNCIL MEETINGS (Pages
143 - 146)

(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To consider the attached report.
REVIEW OF MEMBERS DISPATCH ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 147 - 150)
(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To consider the attached report.

SENIOR RECRUITMENT TASK AND FINISH PANEL - TERMS OF REFERENCE
(Pages 151 - 152)

Recommendation:

To endorse the terms of reference for the Senior Recruitment Task and Finish
Panel.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 29 November 2011

15.

16.

17.

The Committee is asked to consider and endorse the terms of references for the new
Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel, considered at their first meeting.

UPCOMING PRESENTATION FROM THE LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP

For the Committee to discuss the form of presentation wanted and the type of
questions to be asked of the manager of the Local Strategic Partnership. Officers are
hoping to get him to attend the January 2012 meeting of this Committee.

Members are asked to identify any specific topics they may wish to discus with the
representative from the LSP.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - JOINT TRAINING INITIATIVE WITH HARLOW
DISTRICT COUNCIL (Pages 153 - 154)

Recommendation:

That proposals for joint scrutiny training sessions with Harlow District Council be
noted.

1. (Assistant to the Chief Executive) At a meeting of Scrutiny Chairmen from

across Essex, convened as part of the Essex Scrutiny Officers Group, the Chairman of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee discussed the potential for joint initiatives with
his counterpart in Harlow. One item that was flagged for further discussion was
training.

2. Subsequent to the meeting officers have sourced a CfPS (Centre for Public
Scrutiny) Associated Trainer, Tim Young, agreed the content of sessions with the
trainer and HDC. Following a meeting with HDC officers it was considered that, at
least this year, the proposed training should be delivered after the budget
considerations have been completed by both authorities.

3. Two dates have been identified for the sessions, 156 and 29 March 2012 both
starting at 6.30 p.m.. The first session will be held at Epping, the second at Harlow’s
Civic Centre. Details of the sessions are attached and has taken its themes from
issues raised by members, namely the role of O & S and current issues, evidence
gathering and questioning skills. Costs have been jointly met.

4. It is hoped that as many members can attend as possible. The event will also
give the opportunity of networking with members from our immediate neighbour. The
training events will be supported by Democratic Services staff.

5. If you would like to attend please contact Kim Partridge on ext 4443 or by email
kpartridge@eppingforestdc.gov.uk .

CABINET REVIEW
RECOMMENDATION:

To consider any items to be raised by the Chairman at the Cabinet meeting on
05 December 2011.



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 29 November 2011

18.

(Assistant to the Chief Executive). Under the Overview and Scrutiny rules the
Committee is required to scrutinise proposed decisions of the Executive. The
Chairman is also required to report on such discussions to the Cabinet.

The Committee is asked to consider the 5 December 2011 Cabinet agenda
(previously circulated) to see whether there are any items that they wished to be
raised at the Cabinet meeting.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential tems Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules
contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the

5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 29 November 2011
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



Agenda ltem 4

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MINUTES

Committee:  Overview and Scrutiny Committee Date: Tuesday, 18 October 2011

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 7.30 -9.49 pm
High Street, Epping

Members Councillors R Bassett (Chairman) D Wixley (Vice-Chairman) K Angold-

Present: Stephens, K Chana, D Jacobs, D C Johnson, Mrs S Jones, S Murray,
Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan and G Waller

Other Councillors Mrs D Collins, Ms J Hart, Mrs M McEwen, J Philip, Mrs P Smith,

Councillors: Mrs L Wagland, C Whitbread and Mrs J H Whitehouse

Apologies: Councillors Ms R Brookes

Officers D Macnab (Acting Chief Executive), | Willett (Assistant to the Chief

Present: Executive), J Chandler (Assistant Director (Community Services and
Customer Relations)), T Carne (Public Relations and Marketing Officer),
S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer), A Hendry (Democratic
Services Officer) and M Jenkins (Democratic Services Assistant)

By G Mangan (Education Delivery Group)

Invitation:

35. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Chairman reminded everyone present that the meeting would be broadcast live
to the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the webcasting of its
meetings.

36. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

It was noted that Councillor K Angold-Stephens had substituted for Councillor Mrs R
Brookes.

37. MINUTES
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 6 September

2011 be agreed.

The Chairman noted that following the meeting of the Essex Overview and Scrutiny
Chairmen in July, the Chairman of the Essex Overview and Scrutiny Committee had
visited EFDC to view our webcasting facilities.

It was also noted that joint Scrutiny training had been arranged with Harlow Council
to share the cost. Two provisional dates had been identified in Mach 2012, with two
evening courses being developed. One would be held at Harlow and the other at

Epping.

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

38.

39.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor S Murray declared a personal interest in agenda item 6 as he was a
teacher in Roding Valley High school.

Councillor D Collins declared a personal interest in agenda item 6 as she was the
Chairman at Epping Forest College.

REVIEW OF SECONDARY AND PRIMARY EDUCATION IN THE DISTRICT

The Chairman welcomed Geoff Mangan, the Epping Forest Schools 14-19 Co-
ordinator for Epping Forest Secondary Schools and also the West Essex Secondary
Schools Facilitator with the West Children’s Commissioning and Delivery Board for
Essex County Council.

Mr Mangan said that many people were misinformed about what schools did and was
here to give his (informed) personal opinion after a long career in the education
system and as the ex head of Roding Valley High School.

He wanted to talk about the impact of any Epping Forest schools changing status; if
they were in danger of falling below the “floor targets”; how well did they deal with the
vulnerable pupils and how they would be affected by the funding changes; and, was
there appropriate progression for every Epping Forest learner to post 16 study.

The Committee noted that there were 35 Primary Schools, 6 Secondary Schools and
1 College in the district. The district itself was very diverse with small pockets of
deprivation spread out. This meant that it tended to lose out on Government money
as they were not concentrated in one identifiable area. It was hoped that these areas
would eventually receive some funding in the future.

A lot of schools were in the process of, or thinking about, changing their status to
Academy Schools, which are having money thrown at them. Government policy was
looking to get outstanding schools to become academies, putting them in direct
competition with the lower achieving schools. Schools would have to start working
together as Local Education Authorities were practically non-existent nowadays. As
the 14-19 co-ordinator Mr Mangan linked the 6 secondary schools helping them to
collaborate services etc. schools are now sharing good practice, such as that on
attendance, which successfully improved all their attendance records. To help this,
the Local Development Group (LDG) holds money in a central pot to help tie schools
together and have been very successful in this. Other groups have also been
established to help, such as the Area Planning Group (14-19) and the Association of
Secondary Heads in Essex, who meet every half term. It was all a bit confusing.

Education was a political football and in order to improve it you had to measure it
first. Schools had to respond to the changes to keep their funding. It was all part of a
process of continuous changes. The Government had set ‘floor targets’ for schools.
‘Floor targets’ being a generic term for targets set by the government for minimum
standards for disadvantaged groups or areas. The floor target for primary schools
was currently 60%, rising to 65% of children to reach level 4 in English and Maths.
The target for Secondary schools was for 35% of students to reach 5 A to C grades
in English and Maths (rising to 50% by 2015). Schools were getting enough results
at grade ‘C’ to enable them to keep (or get) their money and improve their standing
on the league tables. However, he stated this was not very good for the Children as
‘C’ grades were not good enough to enable them to study at ‘A’ level. Pupils were not
being sustainably coached at English and Maths, but intensively coached to pass the

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

exams; but they could not sustain the knowledge. Schools categorised as
‘Outstanding’ were being sustained by their English and Maths results only, although
‘outstanding’ was an unclear and ill defined term. They seemed to be moving towards
measuring a narrow range of intelligence, where as society needed people who could
move around and had a wide range of intelligence.

Mr Mangan went on to define his meaning of vulnerable pupils as children who were
falling out of the education system.

Fortunately Epping Forest had the best “Not in Education, Employment or Training”
(NEET) figures in the County. EFDC schools were good at keeping children inside
the system and it was important that was done, as once outside the educational
system they seldom made it back.

He was concerned that if, or when, schools became academies or stand alone
schools they would lose sight of these vulnerable pupils as they would only be
interested in improving their results.

Presently there was support for vulnerable pupils up to age 16; however they were
looking at mentoring students from year 7 up to college age. There were more
challenges ahead for schools and students since the loss of Connexions, the Work
Experience Placement Scheme and the EMA. The EMA was used to finance travel to
and from school/college and to pay for text books. The Work Experience Scheme
was also a major loss as most employers favoured someone with work experience.
Schools were trying to plug this hole by using their own resources.

The rebirth of the Epping Forest College was a significant change for the better for
this district; it has made a big difference over the last three years. The retention of
pupils was up from 82% to 93% since 2007; with course completion up from 50% to
85% since 2007; the recruitment from three local schools had also increased for
2011-12 along with the ‘A’ level success rate, up from 67% to 75% during 2007-10.

On the whole Epping Forest was doing well by its children, although it was struggling
with government changes; the best thing it could do was to keep the kids at school
increasing their knowledge base.

The meeting was then opened out for questions.

Q. How significant was the role of the family and parenting for children and the
part it played in poor schooling.
A. A lot of parents want to care but do not know how to. Parental support was

crucial and this was an issue across all types of families and not just those financially
disadvantaged.

Q. Part of the problem was that people coming straight from school were not
ready for the work environment.
A. We need to decide what education was for; businesses want people who can

learn and are adaptable and creative. However, there also needs to be a big push on
English and Maths.

Q. We were promised that front line services would not be cut, but we have lost
Connexions and the EMA. What was the impact of these losses? Secondary schools
have lost about £300,000 each in the financial year, what would this mean to them?

A. When financial constraints occur this tends to impact on the vulnerable
children first. However, in the end schools will have to take only the best pupils and

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

40.

lose the vulnerable ones as they will not have the finances to provide the support that
is needed. It was all about commissioning by the schools nowadays.

Q. | get the impression that you do not think that Maths and English was the right
way to go in education. However, businesses want this. Also, how was the funding
crisis affecting the gifted and talented children, as we need them to go progress as
well.

A. English and maths are very important subjects to get, but most schools just
tend to stop at grade ‘C’ level; it must be a sustainable knowledge set. As for gifted
and talented children, they do not really require extra funding, just a lot of activities to
stretch them.

Q. We must start improving reading and writing at Primary Schools, it was too
late at age 11. The College helps children who are not suited to go on to ‘A’ levels, by
doing a lot of apprenticeships. We should use IT to help vulnerable children; this
must be the way forward. | would like to note that the College has not had so much of
a problem with the loss of the EMA as yet.

A. Primary schools now work very hard on English and Maths and teach it well
and intensively; and all kids have very good IT knowledge. However some children
don’t try, mainly because they do not want to fail. The biggest influence on children is
genetics and their family.

Q. It was generally thought there should be more family support workers; was
this a financial problem?
A. There used to be a lot of work with families. A lot of low level, early

intervention family support was needed, it was not however expensive and Mr
Mangan hoped it would be developed further.

Q. A recent West Essex Alliance meeting identified problems for the skill sets for
the semi skilled. We provide a lot of the high end skills and are able to meet the lower
end skill sets; the problem was in the middle area such as lab technicians or
warehouse managers. A lot of future employment will come into those categories; do
the schools have any thought of what they could contribute to this level.

A. There was no easy answer to this; there needed to be a lot more employment
engagement. Apprenticeships are set at level 2; however we can cater to pre-
apprenticeships and some kind of work experience to supply a lot more of what local
businesses want.

The Chairman thanked Mr Mangan for his interesting talk, giving members a better
understanding of the issues facing the education establishment.

SCRUTINY OF CABINET FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the Cabinet's Forward Plan for the period covering 1
October 2011 to 31 January 2012. they went through the Portfolio Holders’ work
programmes one by one, making the following comments.

Planning and Technology - this work programme was thought to be a little light,
there was a need to look at houses in the greenbelt, greenhouses and affordable
housing and the rules governing developers. The Planning and Technology Portfolio
Holder, Councillor Philips, said that all that would be contained within the Local Plan.
They were looking at an infrastructure levy and getting their core strategies right, and
to speed up the production of the Local Plan. This work programme was only up to
31 January 2012. After all, all matters that relate to planning relate to the Local Plan.
The Cabinet was also determined to improve the S106 agreements for local
residents.

Page 10



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

41.

Finance and Economic Development — the Committee wanted to know when
would a rent increase be considered? They were told early in the next calendar year.
The Committee wanted it noted that frontline services should be safeguarded.

Environment - the Committee asked what was the new review for the Waste
Management Depot for? They were told that they were looking at various
possibilities, such as North Weald Airfield or the T11 site; they were in further
discussion with Essex CC and would report back on this. Councillor Stallan asked if
the Portfolio Holder could make a statement to the next Council meeting to update
the situation, and was told a statement would be forthcoming.

Housing — has there been an updating report on Leader Lodge (North Weald) from
Hastoe. The Portfolio Holder said that there had been no reports so far and she
would inform the council when there was one.

Leisure and Wellbeing — was the Lowewood Museum proposal, to enter into an
agreement with Broxbourne BC, theirs or ours? Broxbourne BC approached us,
asking if we would be interested in running their museum as they would be losing
their two key staff to retirement. They asked us to run it on a joint management,
service level basis; initially for a three year period. There will be a Cabinet report.

Safer, Greener and Highways — if the Community Transport Scheme was no longer
to be funded by EFDC, how would it be funded. The Portfolio Holder said that this
was a change in arrangements with the Community Transport people. Customers
would not notice any change in the service. It was a move from Voluntary Action
Epping Forest, to a trust operated by Essex CC. The funding was guaranteed for this
year. Any matters affecting their finance would be brought to the Cabinet. Councillor
Bassett was a trustee for this new organisation and said they had their first meeting a
few weeks ago. A report would be coming forward shortly.

The Committee noted that the work on Car Washes and other businesses in Council
Car Parks had been deferred pending the Price Waterhouse review.

Off Street Parking enforcement take over by NEPP - could the Portfolio Holder
provide a report on how Councillors could communicate with them, as there seems to
be some difficulty in doing so. The Portfolio Holder said that her next report to
Council had some information on this and that we would not transfer complete
responsibility on enforcement until September next year.

RESOLVED:

That the Cabinet’'s priorities for the year ahead and their forward work
programme for 2011/12 were noted.

PROPOSED MERGER OF BARTS AND THE LONDON, WHIPPS CROSS AND
NEWHAM NHS TRUSTS

Councillor Chana spoke to his written report in the agenda on his attendance at a
recent presentation on the proposed merger of Barts and the London NHS trust,
Whipps Cross and Newham NHS Trusts. He reported that this was going forward
and would soon become a reality. They would become a super hospital, with the
three hospitals sharing services. Each hospital would specialise in one clinical area.
He noted that there was to be a second meeting in two days time about financing and
he would be attending. A third event in a couple of weeks time would focus on the

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

42.

43.

clinical aspects. However he would not be able to attend this event. Any background
papers would be made available in the Members Room.

Councillor Murray noted that this merger would be better for highly technical
procedures but how about the routine operations; where would people go for these?
Councillor Chana replied that the routine services would stay where they were.
However, each hospital would specialise in one aspect of medicine. Just what these
would be, have yet to be decided.

Councillor Angold-Stephens asked if the A&E services at Whipps Cross would still
continue. He was told that they would be unaffected.

Councillor Wixley said that someone should attend the proposed meeting in a couple
of weeks time. He would speak to Councillor Chana after the meeting about
attending this meeting.

CHILDREN'S SERVICES TASK AND FINISH PANEL

The Committee received a report resulting from the recent Children Service’s Task
and Finish Review Panel. The Panel investigated the effectiveness of children’s and
young people’s services and safeguarding arrangements, provided through Essex
County Council (ECC) and EFDC’s own services and partners. In the end the Panel
identified 10 key recommendations, half of which related directly to ECC and these
were forwarded directly to the Director of Children’s Services Commissioning (Wendi
Ogle-Welbourn) at Essex County Council for their comments. This report set out their
response.

The Committee thought Essex County Council’'s response was quite vague and
noted that Wendi Ogle-Welbourn was due to attend an O&S meeting in the new year,
when the Committee could question her more closely about the response made. The
Committee also asked that the relevant county Portfolio Holder be invited to the
same meeting.

AGREED: that the Portfolio Holder also be invited along with Wendi Ogle-Welbourn.

Councillor Angold-Stephens said that a lot of jargon was used, which was not helpful.
At a recent meeting he had attended, a lot of complaints had been made about the
withdrawal of various mental health services; an area which EFDC would like some
answers. The Acting Chief Executive said this would be possible if the question
concerned only the young people of the district but if it affected adults as well, it
would be better to add a separate item to the Work Programme to consider this.

AGREED: that a separate item be added to the Work Programme to consider the
state of Mental Health Services in the District.

RESOLVED:

(1) That the Committee noted the Essex County Council response to the
recommendations of the Children’s Services Task and Finish Panel;

(2) That the relevant County Portfolio Holder be asked to attend the
meeting with Wendi Ogle-Welbourn; and

(3) A separate item be added to the O&S work programme to consider
the state of mental health services in the district.

REPORT OF DISTRICT REMUNERATION PANEL

Page 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

44.

Councillor Stallan the Chairman of the Constitution and Member Services Scrutiny
Standing Panel introduced their report on the recent report of the Remuneration
Panel on members’ allowances. The only substantive recommendation was
recommendation 1, which was inline with the officer scheme for reimbursement of rail
fares and that in the current climate; the option for first class rail should not be
available to members.

Recommendation 2 reflected other matters discussed which they would like to be
considered as part of their next review. Recommendation 2(a) was to be altered to
delete the word ‘recent’ and replace it with ‘proposed’.

It was noted that Councillors had been very prudent in their allowances and had only
taken the 2002 allowance recommendation.

RESOLVED:

(1) That the following recommendation (numbered (11) in the report of the
Remuneration Panel) be adopted and submitted to the Council for approval:

“That the reference to first class rail return fare in the current scheme in
relation to travel to meetings outside the District or by members resident
outside the District be removed from the scheme”; and

(2) That for the purposes of the next review of member remuneration, the
Panel be requested to review the following:

(a) the SRA payable to the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in the light of proposed changes to reporting at Council meetings;

(b) the IT Connectivity Allowance: eligibility and payment levels; and

(c) review of wording in respect of an assessment of hours worked by
Councillors as a basis for calculating the Basic Allowance by reference to the
national minimum wage.

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING STATIONS

Councillor Stallan the Chairman of the Constitution and Member Services Scrutiny
Standing Panel introduced their report on the review of Polling Districts, Polling
Places and Polling Stations. The District had a duty to review all polling places at
least every four years. A review had to be completed by the end of 2011 and
approved by full Council.

A polling district is the area created by the division of a constituency, ward or division
into smaller parts, within which a polling place can be determined which is convenient
to electors. A polling place is the building or area to which polling stations will be
selected by the Returning Officer. A polling station is the room or building chosen by
the Returning Officer where the poll takes place.

Local authorities are required to divide their area into polling districts for the purposes
of parliamentary elections, designate polling places for these polling districts and
keep these under review. Polling districts and places for local government elections
are not automatically part of the review. However, the polling districts and places for
parliamentary and local government elections should always be the same.

Page 13



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

45,

As part of the review a consultation exercise was undertaken between May 25 and
June 25, 2011. Members, local MPs, agents, interest groups and the public were
consulted.

RESOLVED:

That a report be submitted to the Council recommending that:

(a) the proposals for polling districts and places as set out in the Appendix
to the report be approved; and

(b) the proposals be published and copies made available for inspection by
the public at the Civic Offices, in at least one place in each
parliamentary constituency covering the Epping Forest District and on
the Council’'s website.

WORK PROGRAMME MONITORING

a) Work Programme

(i) Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Item 15, review of the PCT/West Essex Health Service. The Parliamentary Bill was
still going through Parliament and the Lords. This item to be moved back to the next
calendar year once the details of the Bill are finalised.

To add a new item to the work programme to consider the state of Mental Health
Services in the District.

b) Standing Panels

(i) Housing Standing Panel

Noted that there would be a meeting on the HRA at the end of November. The
members of the Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel to be
specially invited to attend this meeting.

(i) Constitution and Member Services Standing Panel

Noted that item 18 ‘Report of the External Auditor — was to be deleted from the
programme.

Iltems 19 and 20 — ‘Housing Appeal Review Panel’ - Order of business and Council
accommodation banding were agreed by the O&S Committee as new items to be
added to the work programme.

(iii)  Safer Cleaner Greener Standing Panel

Noted that the Panel had just completed a special meeting looking at the

Environmental Agency Consultation on managing flood risk in the Roding catchment
area; when they agreed to object to the proposals.

Page 14



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 18 October 2011

46.

To add to the work programme the scrutiny of the new SITA contact and to receive
an updating report on wider implications, once known, of the Environmental agency
strategy on flood management in the Roding catchment area.

(iv)  Planning Services Standing Panel

Noted that the proposals for the new terms of reference should be brought to the
December 2011 meeting of the Panel.

(v) Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel

The Chairman reported that they had just reviewed the first quarter KPI results, not
all were up to their target figures.

c) Task and Finish Panel

(i) Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel

Noted that the first meeting of the Panel was scheduled for 10 November 2011. They
were hoping to have it finished by the end of this municipal year or earlier.

CABINET REVIEW

The Committee reviewed the Cabinet agenda for their 24 October meeting but there
were no specific items that they wanted to be brought to the Cabinet’s attention,
except to note their concern about the unnecessary expense to be incurred by
holding separate elections, in November 2012, for the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

CHAIRMAN

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda ltem 6

EPPING FOREST YOUTH COUNCIL FINANCE - SECOND COHORT

OPERATIONAL BUDGET - DDF

COST CENTRE CODE CD 112 £12,000
2010-2011 - ACTUALS £
TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT & EVENTS 1,786.00
TRANSPORT & TRAVEL 7,406.65
STATIONERY & PUBLICITY 2,894.59
12,087.24
2011-2012 - PROBABLE OUTTURN £
TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT & EVENTS 1,690.00
TRANSPORT & TRAVEL 5,095.00
STATIONERY & PUBLICITY - inc elections 5,215.00

2012-2013- ORIGINAL ESTIMATES £

TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT & EVENTS 3,700.00
TRANSPORT & TRAVEL 5,500.00
STATIONERY & PUBLICITY 2,800.00

EXTERNAL FUNDING SECURED
2010-2012 - EXTERNAL INCOME

YOUTH OPPORTUNITY FUND 8,439.96
JACK PETCHEY GRANT 600.00
02 THINK BIG FUND 900.00
TOTAL INCOME| _ 9,939.96

2010-2012 - PROJECT EXPENDITURE £
HOW SAFE ARE YOU? 8,400.00
W FESTIVAL 25.00
JACK PETCHEY EVENTS 400.00
INTERGENERATIONAL & "PLAY IN FOREST' 600.00
TOTAL EXPEDITURE | 9,425.00
BALANCE REMAINING[ __ 514.96]

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda ltem 7

Report to Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Date of meeting: 29 November 2011 S C RUTl N Y

Portfolio: Leisure and Wellbeing Epping Forest District Gouncil

Subject: Call in — Olympic Games “Look and Feel” and Ticket
Allocation

Officer contact for further information: Adrian Hendry / John Gilbert

Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry — Ext 4246

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

To consider the call-in of Cabinet decision C-032-2011/12 regarding the Olympic
Games “Look and Feel” and ticket allocations.

Report:

1. In accordance with rule 20 of the Overview and Scrutiny Rules, 5 members have
called in the Cabinet’s decision, taken on 24 October 2011 and published on 01 November
2011. This decision relates to the Cabinet’s decision that a bid for £35,000 of the District
Development Fund expenditure in 2012/13 for the funding of community Olympic “Look and
Feel” schemes and that a bid for £3,000 for Olympic and Paralympic Tickets to be allocated
as described in the report.

2. The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee determined that consideration
of the call-in should be referred to this meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

3. Attached to this report are:

(a) Copies of all documentation submitted to the Cabinet on which the decision
was based;

(b) A copy of the notification of the call in including the names of the relevant
Councillors who requested the call in and their grounds for so doing; and

(c) A copy of an extract of the Council’s procedures for dealing with call-ins.
Consideration of the Call — in

4. In accordance with the Council’s Protocol (attached) the consideration of call-ins by
the Committee should be considered in the following manner:

(a) the representative of the Councillors calling in the decision shall describe their
concerns;

(b) the Portfolio Holder shall then respond;

Page 19 1



(c) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel will then debate the
issues involved. The Chairman of the meeting shall have the discretion to vary the
way in which evidence is gathered including speakers and public participation if
appropriate but shall seek a response from the initiating Councillor(s) and the Portfolio
Holder before formulating its recommendations;

(d) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel has the following
options:

(1) confirm the decision, which may then be implemented immediately; or

(i) refer the decision back to the decision taker for further consideration setting
out in writing the nature of its concerns; or

(iii) refer the matter to full Council in the event that the Committee or Panel
considers the decision to be contrary to the policy framework of the Council or
contrary to, or not wholly in accordance with, the budget.

(e) If it appears that the review of a decision of the Executive cannot be
completed at one meeting, the Executive or decision taker will be informed, indicating
any preliminary views the Committee or Panel may have and a proposed timescale
for the completion of the review. The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee/Panel shall, if necessary, consult with the Leader of the Council regarding
the urgency of the proposed decision or any other related matter;

() The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
shall sum up the recommendations to be submitted to the Executive and these shall
be incorporated in full in the Minutes or report of the meeting;

(9) In cases where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
determines that a review of the decision is not justified or that, having reviewed the
decision of the Executive, it has no adverse comment to make, the Committee or
Panel shall ensure that its decision is published in the Members' Bulletin;

(h) In the circumstances outlined in (g) above, the decision of the Executive or
Decision Taker may be implemented with effect from the date of that meeting;

(i) A report detailing any appropriate recommendations of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel shall be reported to the Decision Taker

@) In presenting the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
or delegated Panel, the Chairman may make general comments on the Committee's /
Panel's recommendations, answer questions and respond to comments or new
proposals made by the Executive at that meeting; and

(k) The report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel shall
be sent in draft to all its Members for approval prior to their submission to the Decision
Taker.

)] Minority reports may be made by members of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or delegated Panel in accordance with the Protocol for that purpose.

Page 20 2



5. If, having considered the decision, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated
Panel is still concerned about it, then it may, subject to the procedures outlined in Rule 16(a)
or (b) in attached, refer it back to the decision making person or body for reconsideration,
setting out in writing the nature of its concerns or refer the matter to full Council. If referred to
the decision maker they shall then reconsider within a further 5 working days, or in the case
of a Cabinet decision, as soon as practically possible amending the decision or not, before
adopting a final decision.

6. If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not object to a decision
which has been made, then no further action is necessary and the decision will be effective in
accordance with the provision below. However, if the Council does object, it has no power to
make decisions in respect of an executive decision unless it is contrary to the policy
framework, or contrary to or not wholly consistent with the budget. Unless that is the case,
the Council will refer any decision to which it objects back to the decision-making person or
body, together with the Council’'s views on the decision. That decision-making body or
person shall choose whether to amend the decision or not before reaching a final decision
and implementing it. Where the decision was taken by the Executive as a whole or a
committee of it, a meeting will be convened to reconsider within 14 working days of the
Council request. Where the decision was made by an individual, the individual will
reconsider within 14 working days of the Council request.

7. If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the decision back to the
decision-making body or person, the decision will become effective on the date of the Council
meeting or expiry of the period in which the Council meeting should have been held,
whichever is the earlier.

8. The Committee are asked to consider the decision taken by the Cabinet and report
accordingly.

Page 21 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Notification of Call — In Of Cabinet Or Portfolio Holder Decision Under Rule 20
(8) (Page J13 of the Constitution) Of The Overview And Scrutiny Rules

This form must be signed and completed and the original returned to the
proper officer in person no later than 10.00 a.m. on the 5" working day
following publication of the decision

Decision to be called-in: OLYMPIC GAMES “Look and Feel” and Ticket Allocation

Decision reference: C-032-2011/12

Portfolio: Leisure and Wellbeing

Description of Decision:

(1) That a bid for £35,000 of District Development Fund (DDF) expenditure in 2012/13 for the
funding of community Olympic “Look and Feel” schemes be approved;

(2) That the local Town and Parish Councils be given the opportunity to request “Look and Feel”
pound for pound match funding to assist their local communities in celebrating the 2012
Olympic Games;

(3) That a bid for £3,000 of DDF expenditure be agreed in 2012/13 to purchase the Olympic
and Paralympic Tickets awarded to the District Council;

(4) That the Olympic and Paralympic Tickets awarded to the Council be allocated as follows:
(a) 2 x £150 Olympic Opening Ceremony tickets to the Citizen of the year 2012/13;

(b) 2 x £150 Olympic Closing Ceremony tickets to the Young Citizen of the Year 2012/13;

(c) 2 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to the Citizen of the Year Runner-Up 2012/13;

(d) 2 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to the Young Citizen of the Year Runner-Up 2012/13;

(e) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a person resident in the District and their family in
the care of St Clare Hospice;

(f) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a young person resident in the District and their
family participating at Chigwell Riding Trust for Special Needs;

(g9) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a young person resident in the District and their
family attending Oakview School in Loughton;

(h) 6 (3 pairs) x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to residents of the District nominated by
members of the public;

(i) 11 x £20 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets for nine pupils and two teachers at King Harold
School in Waltham Abbey;

() 14 (7 pairs) x £20 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to residents of the District nominated by
members of the public;

(k) the estimated allocation of 6 (3 pairs) x £75 Paralympic Opening Ceremony tickets to
residents of the District nominated by members of the public; and

Page 23




() the estimated allocation of 6 (3 pairs) x £75 Paralympic Closing Ceremony tickets to
residents of the District nominated by members of the public;

(5) That the allocation of the tickets nominated by members of the public be determined by a
panel consisting of:

(a) the Chairman of the Council;
(b) the Leisure & Wellbeing Portfolio Holder; and
(c) the Council’'s Olympic Champion; and

(6) That neither Epping Forest District Councillors nor Epping Forest District Council Employees
be nominators for, or recipients of, any publicly nominated tickets.

Reason for Call —in

1. That no consideration was given by the Portfolio Holder to information supplied
that “Look and Feel” material is to be returned at the end of the 2012 games.

2. That no consideration was given by the Portfolio Holder to fund the bid from of
£38,000 from savings within the DDF budget.

3. No other sources of funding had been sought for funding this decision.

4. No consideration was given by the Portfolio Holder for other ways of allocating
tickets purchased.

Members requesting call — in (3 members of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or 5 other members)

Members Name: Signed:

Lead member: David Stallan

Will Breare-Hall

Di Collins

Chris Whitbread

Ann Grigg

Office Use Only: Date Received: 07 November 2011

Page 24




Report to the Cabinet

Report reference: C-032-2011/12 .
. Epping Forest

Date of meeting: 24 October 2011 A ;
District Council

Portfolio: Leisure & Wellbeing

Subject: Olympic Games “Look and Feel” and Ticket Allocation

Responsible Officer: John Gilbert (01992 564062)

Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) To seek approval for a bid for £35,000 of DDF for 2012/13 the funding of
community “Look and Feel” schemes on the basis that this may well be offset from
match funding from local Town and Parish Councils;

(2) Subject to recommendation (1), local Town and Parish Councils are given the
opportunity to request “Look and Feel” pound for pound match funding to assist their
local communities in celebrating the 2012 Olympic Games; and

(3) That a bid for £3,000 DDF be agreed for 2012/13 to purchase the Olympic and
Paralympic Tickets awarded to the District Council and that they be allocated in
accordance with the criteria outlined in paragraph 15 of the report.

Executive Summary:

The Olympic Games takes place in July and August 2012. The white water events (canoe
and kayak) take place at the White Water Centre located just across the border from
Waltham Abbey in the Borough of Broxbourne. The transport hub and taxi hub are both
located adjacent to the venue within this District, and one of the two park and ride facilities is
to operate from North Weald Airfield.

A key element of the Olympic celebration is the decoration of the venue and the surrounding
area. This is known as “Look and Feel’. “Look and Feel” includes items such as lamp column
banners, flags, bunting and barrier covers. £270,000 has been provided to Broxbourne for
the decoration of the area around the White Water Centre. Of this sum, a significant
proportion will be utilised within this district in dressing Waltham Abbey, parts of the route to
the venue, the transport hub and the park and ride at North Weald Airfield.

However, it is important that the whole community of the District are able to join in the
Olympic celebration. It is therefore proposed that a fund be established whereby local Town
and Parish Councils can bid for “Look and Feel” dressing, with the costs being jointly met by
the District Council on a match funding basis. Broxbourne Borough Council has recently
considered this issue and has resolved to allocate an additional budget of £50,000 for “Look
and Feel” in its Borough away from the main venue area.

Page 25



Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To enable all local Town and Parish Councils within the Epping Forest District to celebrate
the Olympic Games.

To purchase and allocate tickets for the Olympic games to worthy District residents.
Other Options for Action:
The other options are:

(a) make the “Look and Feel” dressing available to Town and Parish Councils, but for the
District Council to offer no match funding;

(b) for the District Council to meet all of the costs for communities; or

(c) exclude all local Town and Parish Councils apart from Waltham Abbey from the “Look
and Feel” exercise; or

(d) not to acquire all/some of the Olympic tickets which have been allocated to the
Council.

Report:

Olympic “Look and Feel”

1. The Olympic Games take place in July and August 2012. The white water events
(canoe and kayak) take place at the White Water Centre located just across the border from
Waltham Abbey in the Borough of Broxbourne. There are five days of competition at the
Centre from 29 July to 2 August inclusive. Whilst the main venue is in the Borough of
Broxbourne, the transport hub and taxi hub are both located adjacent to the venue within this
District, and one of the two park and ride facilities is to operate from North Weald Airfield

2. A key element of the Olympic celebration is the dressing of the venue and the
surrounding area. This is known as “Look and Feel”’. “Look and Feel” includes items such as
lamp column banners, barrier covers, flagpoles, flags and bunting. There are also bespoke
items, such as the Olympic Rings seen at St. Pancras International Station in London. It is
also possible to dress the areas with flowers and other plants in the official Olympic colour
schemes.

3. The Local Government Association (LGA) has provided funding to all host authorities
to enable them to dress their districts and Olympic venues. For the White Water Centre the
host authority is the Borough of Broxbourne and they have been granted £270,000 for the
venue area including significant parts of Waltham Abbey, the town nearest to the venue, as
well as the park and ride at North Weald Airfield and parts of the route to and from the venue
which pass through the district. Full details of the complete “Look and Feel” for the venue
area will be made available at a later date.

4. However, it is important that all communities within the district are able to join in the
Olympic celebration and it is therefore proposed that a fund be established whereby local
councils not in receipt of centrally funded “Look and Feel” funding can bid for “Look and Feel”
materials, with the costs being jointly met by pound for pound match funding from the District

Page 26



Council.

5. It is important that this decision is made now, because the overall “Look and Feel” for
the venue has to be submitted to LOCOG in early November, and the deadline for ordering
all* Look and Feel” materials is early December. Whilst it will be possible to order “Look and
Feel” materials after that date, it is likely that the costs will rise.

6. At this time the “Look Book” itself remains a confidential document, since the Olympic
Games organisers want the appearance of venues and localities to be a surprise and part of
the excitement in the immediate lead up to the opening of the Games. However, in order to
enable local Town and Parish Councils to form a view as to what might be available, it is
suggested that a community “Look and Feel’ package’ be made available, consisting of the
following items:

(i) a pack of 12 lamp column banners;

(i) two packs of 5 barrier/fencing jackets; and

(iii) one 100 metre roll of bunting.

The “Look Book” value of this package is £3,500 (including installation costs where relevant).

7. It is recognised that not all local Town and Parish Councils will be able to make use of
all the contents of the pack, especially the lamp column banners, and it is suggested that
smaller ones may wish to share a pack or parts of a pack depending upon their requirements.
A preliminary letter has been sent to all local Town and Parish Councils seeking their initial
views on the acceptability of such an approach and their appetite for participation. It is also
proposed to place an item on the forthcoming Local Council’s Liaison Committee in order to
provide an opportunity to discuss the proposals.

8. There are still some issues to be resolved around obtaining the consent of Essex
County Council highways in respect of the use of lamp columns and street railings etc.
Discussions with County are underway regarding their approach. However, despite this
unresolved issue, there is a need to press ahead with Look and Feel preparations in order to
meet LOCOG deadlines for approval of the “Look and Feel” plan and ordering materials.

9. As set out previously in the report, the GLA has provided Broxbourne Borough Council,
as a venue host, with £270,000 for “Look and Feel”. This allocation will be shared with this
Council to enable a consistent approach and in recognition that whilst the venue is in
Broxbourne, the transport hub, taxi hub, one park and ride and significant parts of the
Olympic Route Network are within this District. This allocation will be spent in an around the
venue itself, the core access routes and the supporting infrastructure. This will include parts
of Waltham Abbey.

10. None of this allocation will be available for other locations within either Broxbourne or
this District. At a recent meeting of Broxbourne’s Olympic Committee, it was resolved to
provide an additional budget of £50,000 to enable other parts of their Borough to be dressed.
It is suggested that this District take a slightly different approach whereby it seeks bids from
local councils for “Look and Feel” dressing, but that pound for pound match funding will be
required. The proposed Community Pack has a value of £3,500 and therefore the suggested
DDF allocation of £35,000 will make up to 10 packs available. However, subject to the
response of the local councils to the offer of match funding, the final actual expenditure could
reduce to £17.5K if all the packs were jointly purchased. If uptake was limited, the District

Page 27



Council would have to decide how they wished to utilise the surplus material. If Councils
wished to purchase more items, this could be facilitated by the District Council at the
individual Council’s expense.

Olympic tickets

11. In November 2010 the District Council, (on the basis that the Council has been active
in supporting the Olympic Canoe Slalom Venue at the Lea Valley White Water Centre), was
approached by the Government Olympic Executive, to bid for tickets for the Opening and
Closing Ceremonies, of both the Olympic and Paralympic Games, as well as for tickets for
the Canoe Slalom Events.

12. As a result the Council bid for two tickets at the lowest price band for both the
Olympic Opening Ceremony and the Olympic Closing Ceremony. Moreover on the basis that
it is understood that the Paraplympic Ceremonies will be cheaper, a bid has also been made
for six tickets for each of the Paralympic Opening and Closing Ceremonies. In addition, the
Council also bid for up to 50 tickets at the lowest price bands for the Canoe Slalom events for
the heats and semi-final/finals.

13. The Council has now been offered the opportunity to purchase the full allocation as
detailed below:

2 x £150 Olympics Opening Ceremony = £300
2 x £150 Olympics Closing Ceremony = £300
6 x £75 (Estimated) Paralympic Opening Ceremony = £450
6 x £75 (Estimated) Paralympic Closing Ceremony = £450
50 Tickets for Canoe Slalom 25 x £20 = £500
25 x £35 = £875
TOTAL £2,875

14. It should be noted that these are the only tickets that the Council has bid for and it did
not participate in the public ticket allocation process. None of the tickets allocated will be
used by staff. Individual officers of the Council may have made personal applications for
which they will bear the full costs and, if successful, will be required to take annual leave.
Any leave authority would take on board the need to keep services running to their full level.

15. Similarly, it is suggested that the tickets that the Council have been allocated will not
be made available to Councillors but rather be allocated to local residents who have
contributed in some significant way to community life/citizenship in the district or have
overcome adversity. It is proposed that this is in accordance with the following criteria:

e Olympic Opening Ceremony: Two tickets for the Citizen of the Year 2012/13

¢ Olympic Closing Ceremony: Two tickets for the Young Citizen of the Year 2012/13

£35.00 tickets for the Canoe Slalom

e Two tickets for the Citizen of the Year 2012/13 runner up

e Two tickets for the Young Citizen of the Year 2012/13 runner up

o Five tickets to a district resident in the care of St Clare Hospice and their family.

e Five tickets to a district resident young person and their family participating at

Page 28



Chigwell Riding Trust for Special Needs.
e Five tickets to a district resident child and family at Oakview School, Loughton.

e Three pairs of tickets to residents of Epping Forest district nominated by Members of
the Public.

£20.00 tickets for the Canoe Slalom

o Eleven tickets (two adult, nine children) for the King Harold School, Waltham Abbey

e Seven pairs of tickets to residents of Epping Forest district nominated by Members of
the Public

16. With respect to the public nominations it is proposed that they be sought for individuals
who have made a major contribution to the local community or have overcome exceptional
personal challenges, the main stipulation being that the nominee must be a resident of the
District. It is suggested that neither they nor the nominator can be an Epping Forest District
Council Employee or a District Councillor. A Panel composing of the Chairman of Council,
Leisure and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder and the Council’'s Olympic Champion is proposed to
decide on the successful nominations.

17.  Although the Council are yet to receive formal confirmation of the allocation of the 12
Paralympic Tickets, it is proposed that budget provision is made in anticipation. With respect
to the allocation of these tickets, it is suggested that the same Panel and process is utilised
as for the publically nominated Canoe Slalom Tickets.

Resource Implications:

There is currently no budget provision for this expenditure and therefore it is suggested that a
bid for £35,000 DDF funding be approved for 2012/1013. It should be noted that the “Look
and Feel” materials have to be ordered by early December and that once ordered the
expenditure would effectively be committed. However, the costs could be integrated by any
match funding from Local Councils.

In addition to the £35,000 DDF sought from “Look and Feel” it is recommended that a bid of
£3,000 DDF be sought for 2012/13 to purchase the Olympic and Paralympic full allocation
(given that the costs of the Paralympic Tickets are currently only estimates).

Legal and Governance Implications:

The main issue revolves around the required consent of the highway authority (Essex County
Council) for installing banners and related dressing onto street furniture. To date the County
Council has not provided any clear guidance as to how these applications will be managed
and decided.

A formal arrangement will be required between this Council and Broxbourne BC in respect of
the allocation of the money provided to Broxbourne being spent in this district.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

There are no significant implications other than those related to damage, theft etc of the
Olympic “Look and Feel” materials (see risk implications)

Page 29



Consultation Undertaken:

None at this stage although there will need to be discussions between this Council and those
local councils who wish to take up the proposed funding offer.

Background Papers:
None at this stage (LOCOG “Look Book” remains confidential)
Impact Assessments:

Risk Management
The main risks are:

(a) purchasing “Look and Feel” materials and then not being able to use it due to Essex
County Council’s restrictions and/or failure to give consent;

(b) loss, damage etc to “Look and Feel” materials once in place. There will need to be
contingency arrangements in place to replace materials subject to damage and/or theft

Equality and Diversity

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for No
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially

adverse equality implications?

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment No
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
N/A.

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group?
N/A.

Page 30



EXTRACT FROM CABINET DECISION SHEET FOR CABINET MEETING
HELD ON 24 OCTOBER 2011 - PUBLISHED ON 1 NOVEMBER 2011

Cabinet Report : Olympic Games - "Look & Feel" and Ticket
Allocation (C-032-2011/12)

Decision:

(1) That a bid for £35,000 of District Development Fund (DDF) expenditure in 2012/13
for the funding of community Olympic “Look and Feel” schemes be approved;

(2) That the local Town and Parish Councils be given the opportunity to request “Look
and Feel” pound for pound match funding to assist their local communities in celebrating
the 2012 Olympic Games;

(3) That a bid for £3,000 of DDF expenditure be agreed in 2012/13 to purchase the
Olympic and Paralympic Tickets awarded to the District Council;

(4) That the Olympic and Paralympic Tickets awarded to the Council be allocated as
follows:

(a) 2 x £150 Olympic Opening Ceremony tickets to the Citizen of the year 2012/13;

(b) 2 x £150 Olympic Closing Ceremony tickets to the Young Citizen of the Year
2012/13;

(c) 2 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to the Citizen of the Year Runner-Up 2012/13;

(d) 2 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to the Young Citizen of the Year Runner-Up
2012/13;

(e) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a person resident in the District and their
family in the care of St Clare Hospice;

(f) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a young person resident in the District and
their family participating at Chigwell Riding Trust for Special Needs;

(9) 5 x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to a young person resident in the District and
their family attending Oakview School in Loughton;

(h) 6 (3 pairs) x £35 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to residents of the District nominated
by members of the public;

(i) 11 x £20 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets for nine pupils and two teachers at King
Harold School in Waltham Abbey;

(j) 14 (7 pairs) x £20 Olympic Canoe Slalom tickets to residents of the District
nominated by members of the public;

(k) the estimated allocation of 6 (3 pairs) x £75 Paralympic Opening Ceremony tickets to
residents of the District nominated by members of the public; and

() the estimated allocation of 6 (3 pairs) x £75 Paralympic Closing Ceremony tickets to
residents of the District nominated by members of the public;

Page 31



(5) That the allocation of the tickets nominated by members of the public be determined
by a panel consisting of:

(a) the Chairman of the Council;
(b) the Leisure & Wellbeing Portfolio Holder; and
(c) the Council’'s Olympic Champion.

(6) That neither Epping Forest District Councillors nor Epping Forest District Council
Employees be nominators for, or recipients of, any publicly nominated tickets.

Page 32



Annex 3
Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules

APPENDIX 1

PROTOCOL ON CONSIDERATION AND REPORTING ON EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
CALLED IN BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

1. Purpose of Protocol

(a) To codify how the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
should deal with "call in" items.

(b) To codify how the Executive should respond to reports by Overview and
Scrutiny on decisions which have been called in.

2, Validation of "Call In"

2.1 All "call in" requests shall be made in writing in accordance with the Council's
constitution. "Call in" requests shall only be made by members of the Council who
are not members of the Executive. The "call in" shall be validated by the Chief
Executive and referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for consideration in
accordance with the provisions of the constitution.

3. Consideration of "Call In" Items by Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3.1 Consideration of Call-ins shall be the responsibility of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee which will decide whether to consider the issue itself or direct a Panel to
undertake it and report back to the decision maker. "Call in" items shall be referred to
the next available date for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel.
The provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny Rules in the Council's constitution will
apply to "call in" requests which need to be dealt with more quickly.

3.2  Atits meeting, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel will receive:

(a) copies of all documentation submitted to the Executive on which the decision
was based;

(b) a copy of the written notification of the "call in" including the names of the
relevant Councillors who requested the "call in" and their grounds for so doing; and

(c) any other relevant documentation.

3.3 The relevant Executive Portfolio Holder and at least one of the members who
activated the "call in" and who shall act as spokesperson for those members, shall
attend the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel meeting.

3.4 The "call in" decision shall be considered in the following manner:

(a) the representative of the Councillors calling in the decision shall describe their
concerns;

(b) the Portfolio Holder shall then respond

Page 33



(c) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel will then debate the
issues involved. The Chairman of the meeting shall have the discretion to vary the
way in which evidence is gathered including speakers and public participation if
appropriate but shall seek a response from the initiating Councillor(s) and the Portfolio
Holder before formulating its recommendations;

(d) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel has the following
options:

0] confirm the decision, which may then be implemented immediately, or

(i) refer the decision back to the decision taker for further consideration setting
out in writing the nature of its concerns, or

(iii) refer the matter to full Council in the event that the Committee or Panel
considers the decision to be contrary to the policy framework of the Council or
contrary to, or not wholly in accordance with, the budget.

(e) If it appears that the review of a decision of the Executive cannot be
completed at one meeting, the Executive or decision taker will be informed, indicating
any preliminary views the Committee or Panel may have and a proposed timescale
for the completion of the review. The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee/Panel shall, if necessary, consult with the Leader of the Council regarding
the urgency of the proposed decision or any other related matter;

() The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
shall sum up the recommendations to be submitted to the Executive and these shall
be incorporated in full in the Minutes or report of the meeting;

(9) In cases where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
determines that a review of the decision is not justified or that, having reviewed the
decision of the Executive, it has no adverse comment to make, the Committee or
Panel shall ensure that its decision is published in the Members' Bulletin;

(h) In the circumstances outlined in (g) above, the decision of the Executive or
Decision Taker may be implemented with effect from the date of that meeting;

(1) A report detailing any appropriate recommendations of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel shall be reported to the Decision Taker

() In presenting the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
or delegated Panel, the Chairman may make general comments on the
Committee's/Panel’s recommendations, answer questions and respond to comments
or new proposals made by the Executive at that meeting; and

(k) The report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel shall
be sent in draft to all its Members for approval prior to their submission to the Decision
Taker.

)] Minority reports may be made by members of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or delegated Panel in accordance with the Protocol for that purpose.

Paget 34



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Consideration of Reports on "Call In" Items by the Executive

The report of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel will be referred
in the first instance to the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) for the executive function
concerned.

If the Executive decision is one which the Portfolio Holder(s) has delegated powers to
make, he or she shall consider the written proposals of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or delegated Panel, must consult the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
and delegated Panel Chairmen if he or she is minded to accept or reject them. In
doing so the Portfolio Holder will ensure that, in recording that decision, the reasons
for accepting, rejecting or amending those views are set out in the decision notice.

If the Executive decision is one which the Executive itself or a Committee of the
Executive (acting under delegated powers) is competent to take, the relevant Portfolio
Holder will consider the proposals of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or
delegated Panel and refer them, with his or her written response, to the decision
making body concerned.

At a meeting of the Executive or of any Committee of the Executive, the following
documentation shall be submitted:

(a) the agreed report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
and any other supporting documents considered by it;

(b) a report of the Portfolio Holder indicating the response to the proposals of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel, indicating the options available
and recommendation for acceptance, rejection or alteration of those proposals with
reasons; and

(c) any other information.
The Executive or Committee of the Executive shall consider the matter as follows:

(a) the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
shall present the views and recommendations of the Committee/Panel based on the
report of the relevant OSC meeting and respond to questions, make general
comments and respond to new proposals as appropriate;

(b) the relevant Portfolio Holder shall then respond by presenting his report and
recommendations on the proposals of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or
delegated Panel;

(c) the Executive (or Committee thereof) shall then consider the original decision,
the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel and any
proposals by the Portfolio Holder; and

(d) the Executive (or Executive Committee) will then make a final decision on
whether to re-affirm the original decision, amend the original decision or substitute a
new decision. This decision shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting together
with supporting reasons.

Where a Committee of the Executive is required to report to the full Executive on any

matter, it shall submit a recommendation on action proposed to the Executive as part
of the minutes of the meeting.

Page 35



5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

Implementation of Decisions When Cabinet Control or Membership Changes

Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs 3.4(g) and (h) above, where political
control of the Cabinet or Cabinet membership changes following the Annual Council
meeting each year, any decision made by the Executive and supported by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel following a "call-in" but not
implemented before the changes occur, shall stand referred to the Cabinet for further
review before action is taken.

Consideration of "Call In" Reports of Overview and Scrutiny Committees made
to the Full Council

In some circumstances, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or delegated Panel
may choose to refer the results of their consideration of "call in" items to the full
Council, rather than the Executive in those instances set out in paragraph 3.4 (d) (iii)
above and 6.2 below. With any necessary modification the "call in" shall be dealt with
at the Council meeting in accordance with paragraphs 4.1 - 4.5 above.

In considering whether to report to the full Council, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee or delegated Panel shall take account of the advice of the proper officer
on:

(a) whether the Council may properly determine the matter if the function is
delegated to the Executive;

(b) whether the Executive decision affects the policy or budget framework of the
Authority and should properly be determined by the Council;

(c) whether the Executive decision relates to a matter which either reserved to the
full Council by the constitution or by resolution; and

(d) any other advice which indicates that, for whatever reason, a report to the
Executive is more appropriate to the proper despatch of Council business.

Restriction on "Call In"

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall at all times be aware that the decisions of
the regulatory or non-executive bodies of the Council are not subject to "call in".

The "call in" procedure shall also not apply to any recommendation by the Cabinet to
the full Council.

Pages 36



8.1

9.1

Definitions
For the purpose of this Protocol, the following definitions shall apply:
(a) "Executive"

This term should be interpreted as referring to the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee or
an individual Portfolio Holder acting under delegated powers.

(b) "Decision"”

Denotes a decision on an Executive function by the Cabinet, a Committee of the
Cabinet or of an individual Portfolio Holder.

(c) “Decision Taker”

This means the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee or an individual Portfolio Holder who
made the original decision.

Review of Protocol

This Protocol will be reviewed by the Council as part of its constitution as and when
appropriate.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Age

Report to Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Date of meeting: 29 November 2011 S C RUT | N Y

Portfolio: Finance & Economic Development

Subject: Consultation — Technical reforms of Council
Tax

Officer contact for further information: Rob Pavey

Committee Secretary: Simon Hill

em 8

Epping Forest District Council

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
(1) That the report on the proposed changes to Council Tax is noted; and

(2) That the proposed responses to the Consultation set out in Appendix 1 be
agreed.

Report:

On Monday 31 October the Department for Communities and Local Government published
its Technical reforms of council tax consultation. The consultation will last for 8 weeks and
will close on the 29th December.

The Government proposes that reforms to the council tax system from 2013-14 will:

* Give billing authorities power to levy up to full council tax on second homes

* Replace existing Class A and C exemptions for vacant homes with discounts of up to 100%,
the amount of which it would be for billing authorities to determine

* Abolish the Class L exemption, and make mortgagees in possession of empty dwellings
liable to council tax in respect of them

+ Allow billing authorities to levy an ‘empty homes premium’ over and above full council tax
liability in respect of dwellings which have been left empty for two years or more

 Set a default assumption that payment of council tax be by instalments over 12 months
rather than 10 as is currently the case.

* Allowing authorities to publish online the ‘information to be supplied with demand notices’
» Changes to eliminate potential tax complications from arrangements involving third party
suppliers where solar panels are placed on the roof of dwellings without coming into the
control of the resident.

Discounts from council tax bills
Since council tax was introduced in 1993, taxpayers have in certain circumstances been
entitled to pay an amount of council tax which is reduced by a discount. In particular, different

discounts are available where:

* only one adult occupies a chargeable dwelling as their sole or main residence
* no adult occupies a chargeable dwelling as their sole or main residence.

The rules on discounts where no adult occupies a dwelling as their sole or main residence
have evolved since council tax was introduced in 1993. Originally, the discount was set at 50

Page 39



per cent but, over the years, that has changed so that, now, four contexts are recognised in
practice, as follows.

(a) A furnished dwelling which is not the sole or main residence of any individual (known
collectively as ‘second homes’) attracts a discount which billing authorities can set at
between 10 and 50 per cent (but see (c) below)

(b) Any dwelling which consists of a pitch occupied by a caravan, or a mooring occupied by a
boat attracts a discount of 50 per cent when unoccupied

(c) A furnished dwelling which is not the sole or main residence of a council taxpayer attracts
a discount of 50 per cent if the person liable for council tax necessarily occupies it and
another dwelling, and one or other of the occupations is job related

(d) A dwelling which is unoccupied and substantially unfurnished attracts a discount which
the billing authority can set at between 0 and 50 per cent, once any period of exemption has
passed. Such dwellings are known collectively as ‘long term empties’.

Exempt dwellings

In a wide variety of circumstances, dwellings are exempt from council tax either for a period
of time, or indefinitely while conditions are met. This consultation addresses possible
changes to three of these exemptions: Classes A, C and L.

* Class A exemption is currently available for up to 12 months in respect of a vacant property
which requires, is undergoing, or has recently undergone major repair work to render it
habitable, or structural alteration

* Class C exemption is currently available for up to six months after a dwelling becomes
vacant

*» The practical effect of Class L exemption is to release mortgagors who have had their
homes re-possessed by a bank or building society from any liability to pay council tax.

Proposals on second homes

On second homes, Government is minded to extend the range of discount available to billing
authorities to allow them to levy up to full council tax on second homes, thereby placing them
on the same basis as normal homes. A second home owner is taking up a unit of the local
housing stock; and the original purpose of giving local authorities discretion over second
homes discount was to give them a tool they could use to encourage or discourage second
home ownership in their areas. The Government’s present proposal will make that tool
somewhat more powerful. Moreover, authorities with a high level of second home ownership
will be able to levy tax from a base which is not ‘damaged’ by that fact — they will, if they wish,
be levying tax on the same base as an authority for which second home ownership is not a
significant issue.

For second homes, the rules governing the calculation of an authority’s council tax base for
formula grant purposes currently require an arbitrary assumption that a discount of 50 per
cent is given in all cases. The tax base used for the calculation of council tax in each area, on
the other hand, reflects the actual rates of discount that authorities have chosen to adopt.
The effect is that any extra council tax revenue which an authority generates by giving a
discount of less than 50 per cent on second homes is not set off by any reduction in its
formula grant.

When the rules on discounts for second homes were revised by the Local Government Act
2003, the minimum 10 per cent discount was retained so that second home owners would
still have an incentive to identify their properties as second homes. Without this, it was felt,
that there would be no way to identify the additional resources generated by second homes
and allow the intended retention of the extra revenue by local authorities. The Government
recognises that if authorities choose, as it proposes they might, not to offer a discount on

Page 40



second homes, it will become more difficult in practice to distinguish second homes from
other dwellings.

The council tax base, as used for the Government’'s CTB1 return at the start of October,
included 247 dwellings currently classified as second homes and receiving a 10% discount.
The removal of the 10% discount could increase income to the Council by approximately
£4,000 per annum.

Empty Homes

The Coalition Government’s Programme for Government committed it to exploring a range of
measures to bring empty homes into use. Empty homes are often a blight on the local
community, harming the local amenity of neighbouring properties. They are wasted assets,
so putting empty homes more quickly back into productive use would increase housing
supply. The Government is therefore proposing to give councils more flexibility to adjust or, if
they think it appropriate, deny relief from council tax in some circumstances which currently
entitle owners to short term exemptions. Councils will continue to be able to use their existing
powers to apply discretionary discounts in cases where homes are empty due to special
circumstances — e.g. hardship, fire, flooding. Councils which removed the empty discount will
be encouraged to have an explicit policy on such hardship cases.

There are other circumstances in which it would be quite wrong to deny exemption. Several
exemptions relate to unoccupied dwellings, but reflect circumstances which fully justify
continuing exemption. For example, it would be wrong to interfere with exemption Class F
which applies due to the death of the owner of a property, and the Government has no
intention of doing so. Similarly, exemption classes E, | and J will all remain intact (they relate
to dwellings left empty because the residents have moved into hospital, or to give or receive
care).

The council tax base currently includes 248 dwellings receiving a 50% discount (down from
282 last year), although some of these dwellings will be in the protected categories, and 460
receiving no discount (up from 398 last year). The removal of the 50% discount could
increase income to the Council by approximately £20,000 per annum.

Proposals on Class A exemption

It is reasonable that council tax payers should get some relief in respect of vacant dwellings
that are, for a time, uninhabitable for one good reason or another. When council tax was
introduced, the system provided for an open-ended period of exemption in such
circumstances. It continued while the state of the dwelling warranted it. However, in 2000 the
law was changed to limit the period of exemption to a maximum of one year, after which the
dwelling (if still vacant) is to be treated as a long term empty property. Billing authorities’
discretion over the rate of discount then applies, so such properties do not necessarily attract
any discount at all.

This limitation has generally encouraged owners to bring dwellings back into use in

a reasonable time; and that remains the Government’s aim. It is, however, a central
prescription. There is no scope for billing authorities to use discretion about what is
reasonable in terms of foregoing council tax in respect of such properties. In pursuit of the
broader goals of localism, Government is therefore minded to abolish the exemption, but
replace it with a discount which billing authorities have discretion to set at 100 per cent, or
any lower percentage which seems reasonable to them having regard to local circumstances.

If authorities choose to levy council tax in circumstances in which, under the current rules,
they could not, Government would wish them to be able to retain the additional revenue

locally. Under the present system, in the calculation of council tax bases for formula grant
purposes, a discount of 100 per cent would therefore be assumed (following the approach

Page 41



taken to second homes in this context). The Government acknowledges that proposals
discussed in the concurrent consultation Local Government Resource Review: Proposals for
Business Rates Retention may have a bearing on how this objective will be achieved in
practice.

Proposals on Class C exemption

In parallel with the abolition of Class A exemption, in the spirit of localism, Government is
minded to:

* abolish Class C exemption, replacing it with a discount which billing authorities have
discretion to set at 100 per cent, or any lower percentage which seems reasonable to them
having regard to local circumstances

* make provision to ensure that any extra revenue generated if billing authorities set a
discount of less than 100 per cent is retained and does not affect the distribution of central
government grant.

Class C exemption, of course, applies for a shorter time than Class A, and in different
circumstances. Government is aware that the potential impact of converting it into

a discount will fall on people who have moved home without selling or letting their
properties; and, possibly, on developers who have vacant new properties on their books.

At the moment, taxpayers are entirely relieved of liability for six months, and (in areas where
long term empties attract zero discount) then have to pay the tax in full. There is no
compelling reason why the first six months should be treated so generously.

Class L exemption

The Government’s position on Class L exemption is somewhat different from that on
Classes A and C. There would be no point in amending the law to provide that owners of
dwellings who have had them repossessed by a mortgagee — a bank or building society —
should nevertheless be liable for council tax. The tax would very probably be uncollectable.
However, these are units of accommodation which, in other hands, would usually generate
council tax.

One way forward would be to amend council tax legislation so that, in the ‘hierarchy of
liability’, mortgagees in possession rank higher than ‘owner’ but lower than ‘resident’ of any
description.

If such a change were made, Class L exemption would not then be needed. The institutions
which have taken possession of such dwellings would become liable for council tax while the
properties are empty. This seems fair, since they effectively have control of the properties
until they are sold or let, and there is no good reason why other taxpayers should have to
make up the shortfall in council tax revenue suffered by the local authorities when properties
are repossessed.

Empty Homes Premium

At present, billing authorities have discretion to reduce the discount they give when a
nonexempt dwelling is unoccupied and substantially unfurnished, or indeed to determine that
there shall be no discount at all. If authorities do not exercise their discretion, the discount
applicable is 50 per cent. This measure was introduced via the Local Government Act 2003,
and affected tax liabilities from 1 April 2004 onwards. The policy aim was to encourage
owners to bring empty properties back into use more quickly.

However, it remains the case that a distressing number of dwellings are being left empty, at a
time when there is an overall housing shortage. There are over 300,000 long-term empty

Page 42



homes across England. As well as being an unused resource when 1.7 million people are on
social housing waiting lists, long-term empty properties attract squatters, vandalism and anti-
social behaviour, and are a blight on the local community.

Government is therefore seeking views on whether the billing authorities should be given the
option to levy an ‘empty homes premium’ on the council tax payable in respect of dwellings
that have been left empty for a long time (two years or more, for example). In areas where
authorities have already resolved not to discount the council tax payable in respect of empty
dwellings, this might mean that they could levy substantially more than 100 per cent of the
council tax which would be payable if a dwelling were occupied.

There would obviously be concerns that would have to be very carefully addressed

before such a change in the council tax regime were implemented. It must be seen to
operate fairly, for example, and must make sense in the context of broader local strategies
for dealing with empty homes. Issues of collectability, and avoidance, would need to be
considered.

Other technical changes to council tax

The definition of ‘relevant person’

Government is also considering legislation to close a loophole in the provisions of sections
66(2B)(a) and (b), which provide that, if a ‘relevant person’ intends to let a building or part
of a building for short periods totalling 140 day or more per year, it should be subject to
non-domestic rates. It achieves this objective by reference to the intentions of the ‘relevant
person’ who is defined by subsection (2C). The loophole arises because the legislation
defines a ‘relevant person’ in terms which fail to cover the case where a freeholder retains
part of a building for such purposes.

In the Curzon Berkeley case, the Claimant’s argument was that they could not be the
‘relevant person’ in respect of self contained parts of a building where Curzon Berkeley

were the freeholders and which they operated as Service Apartments. Accordingly, they did
not fall to be assessed to non-domestic rates. In his judgement, James Goudie QC found that
this was a plain case of a drafting mistake (there being no explanation as to why, in the
circumstances of this case, a long leaseholder was defined as a ‘relevant person’ but a
freeholder was not).

The Government now proposes that section 66(2C)(a) should be amended along the
following lines:—

‘Where the property in question is a building or a self contained part of a building and is not
subject as a whole to a relevant leasehold interest, the person having the freehold in the
whole of the building or self contained part’.

Payment by instalments

A council tax bill can be paid through a lump sum or through instalments. The number
of instalments is normally 10, and the majority of the 22 million council tax bills issued
each year are paid by this method. Local billing authorities may however agree with the
taxpayer to payment in some other manner.

The Government believes that council taxpayers should be entitled to pay by 12 month
instalments without having to enter into an agreement with the billing authority. However, the
current position where payments over 12 months can be offered as a concession where
payment by direct debit is agreed is a very useful collection tool. It is a significant concern
that making the statutory scheme one of 12 instalments will not only impact on cashflow but
is also likely to reduce overall collection rates.

Page 43



Information to be supplied with demand notices

Council tax demand notices are normally printed and issued on paper. Matters to be
contained in demand notices are set out in Regulations, requiring lengthy explanatory notes
to form part of the demand notice. The Government does not propose changes to

this, but notes that powers already exist for electronic billing and payment by agreement
between the taxpayer and the billing authority, and that councils can give a discount

if they wish to encourage taxpayers to adopt this approach, to reflect the reduced
administration costs.

This information is costly to publish on an individual household basis. With the exception of
the last item (for which different provision would have to be made), Government is minded
to allow billing authorities to publish the information to be published online, but with a

duty to provide hard copy for free to any resident who requests it. The demand notice
should include a weblink to the online publication and provide details of how a hard copy
can be obtained. Relieving authorities of the duty to provide the information in hardcopy
may help encourage the take-up of electronic billing, as all parts of the process can be
paper-less if the taxpayer so chooses.

‘Rent a Roof’ solar photovoltaic installations on domestic properties

Currently, domestic scale solar photovoltaic installations on domestic properties — generally
the roofs of homes — are treated by the Valuation Office Agency as part of the dwelling

and reflected in the council tax band. The Valuation Office Agency considers that these
installations have no material impact on value: so they do not lead to any change in council
tax bands. Moreover, the council tax system ensures that material improvements to a

home never result in any banding re-assessment, unless the home is sold. This ensures that
council tax is not a home improvement tax.

An alternative practice is now emerging in the renewables industry, under which third

party providers take part possession of the roof of homes and install solar photovoltaic at
their own cost. The provider receives payments under the Feed-in Tariffs scheme for the
electricity generated and the home owner receives the benefit of free electricity generated
by the installation. These arrangements are known as ‘rent a roof schemes. However, given
the recent reduction in the Feed in Tariff it appears that solar photovoltaic installations on
domestic properties will become far less attractive.

Annexes to dwellings

Generally, if parts of a building are in separate occupations, each part is a separate
hereditament; and each is a dwelling liable to council tax (unless its use is non-domestic). It
will receive its own banding in the normal way. Where one occupier has paramount control
of the whole, which makes the property a single hereditament, self-contained units of
accommodation within the property must each be treated as separate dwellings for council
tax purposes. The test for a ‘self-contained unit’ is whether a part is physically constructed
or adapted for use as separate living accommodation. This relates entirely to the physical
state of the building — not to the intentions of the owner, nor to the actual use to which the
accommodation is put. It is not an issue over which the Valuation Office Agency, or the
billing authority, has discretion: it all turns on the facts of the case.

These rules are applied frequently to define separately banded dwellings in hostels, flatlet
houses etc., and the Government has no intention of changing their general application.
However, representations have been made that the outcome might be unfair in some
circumstances. An example is where part of a house has been physically adapted as

a ‘granny annexe’, and been separately banded for council tax purposes as a consequence,
but is no longer occupied as a separate unit of accommodation. The law requires that it

Page 44



should continue to be separately banded for council tax until such time as the physical
adaptations are undone.

Reason for decision:
To take the opportunity provided to respond to proposed alterations to the council tax.

Options considered and rejected:
The Authority could choose not to respond to the consultation document.

Consultation undertaken:
None.

Resource implications:

Budget provision: Some of the changes are likely to have a positive impact on budgets
although these may be considerably outweighed by the negative impact of moving to 12
instalments.

Personnel: If the basis for instalments is changed to 12 payments additional staff may be
required to maintain existing collection rates.

Land: N/A

Community Plan/BVPP reference: N/A
Relevant statutory powers: As set out in the report.

Background papers: DCLG Consultation Paper — Technical reforms of council tax

Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None.
Key Decision reference: N/A

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Appendix 1
Questions for consultation

Proposals on second homes

Question 1

Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to extend the range of discount
available to billing authorities in respect of second homes to 0 to 50 per cent?

Response

The Council welcomes the proposal to extend the range of discount available
to billing authorities in respect of second homes from 0% to 50%, because it
would extend further democratically-elected councils’ discretion about their
relationship with their local taxpayers. However, it may be difficult to identify
and bill such properties appropriately as some home owners will inevitably
try to avoid the charge. This may lead to additional costs in collection and
means that approximate calculations of increased revenue cannot be relied
upon.

Question 2

How might authorities choosing not to offer any discount on second homes
identify them in order to report second homes as necessary for formula grant
purposes?

Response

The Government would need to legislate to require the owners of second homes
to register them. This may be less important going forward dependant on the
outcomes of the Local Government Resource Review and the future means of
grant allocation.

Proposals on Class A exemption

Question 3

Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to abolish Class A exemption and
replace it with a discount which billing authorities may set in the range 0 to 100
per cent?

Response

The Council welcomes the proposal to abolish Class A and C exemptions for
vacant homes and replace these with a discount which billing authorities may
choose to set between 0% and 100%, because it would extend further
democratically-elected councils’ discretion about their relationship with their
local taxpayers. There are currently less than 50 properties with a Class A
exemption in this district so any financial gain will be limited.

Question 4

If Class A exemption is replaced by a discount, for what period should the new
discount apply before such properties are treated as long term empties? Should
the one-year time limit continue to apply, or should billing authorities have any
discretion about it?

Response

Given current market conditions the one-year time limit is reasonable.

Question 5

If Class A exemption is replaced by a discount, should billing authorities be
empowered to give different levels of discount for different cases?

Response

This would introduce unnecessary complexity and bureaucracy in the
administration of the system.

Proposals on Class C exemption

Question 6 Do you agree with the Government’s proposal to abolish Class C exemption and
replace it with a discount which billing authorities may set in the range 0 to 100
per cent?

Response See response to question 3 above.

Page 47




Appendix 1

Question 7 If Class C exemption is replaced by a discount, for what period should the new
discount apply before such properties are treated as long term empties? Should
the six month time limit continue to apply or should billing authorities have any
discretion about it?

Response The six month time limit should continue to apply.

Question 8 If Class C exemption is replaced by a discount, should billing authorities be
empowered to give different levels of discount for different cases?

Response This would introduce unnecessary complexity and bureaucracy in the

administration of the system.

Class L exemption

Question 9 Should Government seek to make mortgagees in possession of empty dwellings
liable to Council Tax?
Response The Council welcomes the proposal to make mortgagees in possession of

empty dwellings liable to council tax.

Long Term Empty Dwellings

Question 10 Would enabling local authorities to levy an empty homes premium on council tax
have a significant impact on the number of homes being left empty?

Response The ability to levy a premium will be effective in some cases, it is not possible to
predict whether the overall impact will be significant. There are likely to be issues
with collectability and avoidance.

Question 11 In terms of a percentage of normal council tax, what should the maximum
permitted premium be?

Response The decision on the level of premium should be left for individual billing
authorities to determine and therefore no maximum should be set.

Question 12 How long should a dwelling have remained empty before the empty homes
premium might be applied in respect of it?

Response The suggestion of two years in the consultation paper seems reasonable.

Question 13 Should constraints be placed on the purposes to which the additional tax
revenue generated from an empty homes premium may be devoted?

Response This would introduce unnecessary complexity and bureaucracy in the
administration of the system. Additional revenue should be treated in the same
way as other council tax income and not be ring fenced in any way.

Question 14 | What circumstances, if any, should be defined as being inappropriate for levying
the empty homes premium and why?

Response Discretion should be given to billing authorities to determine on a case by case
basis.

Question 15 What practical issues would have to be addressed if the premium were to be
implemented (for example in the consistent identification of empty homes) and
how should they be resolved?

Response The main practical issues are likely to be around collection and avoidance.

Page 48




Appendix 1

The definition of ‘relevant person’

Question 16 Do you agree that Section 66(2C)(a) should be amended along the lines
suggested?
Response Yes, the amendment seems sensible.

Payment by instalments

Question 17 Do you agree that the default pattern of council tax bill instalments should be
payment by 12 monthly instalments (with other arrangements to be reached by
agreement between taxpayer and billing authority)?

Response The Council is concerned that any proposal to see council tax collected over

12 months as the default option rather than 10 will have a significant cost to
councils; this will be both through the impact on cash flow and through
reduced collection rates. The Council does not believe that a localist
government should prescribe to councils how council tax should be collected
in their areas. Direct debit is the most efficient means of collection but moving
the default to 12 months will remove the incentive that is currently offered for
payment by direct debit.

Information to be supplied with demand notices

Question 18 Do you agree that billing authorities should be able to discharge their duty to
provide the information that must currently be supplied with demand notices by
publishing it online (with the exception of information relating to penalty charges,
and subject to the right of any resident to require hard copy)?

Response The Council welcomes the proposals to allow billing authorities to provide

information in electronic format in the first instance. \We believe that this will
result in a small cost saving for billing authorities.

‘Rent a Roof’ solar PV installations on domestic properties

Question 19 Do you agree that domestic scale solar photovoltaic installed on dwellings should
be treated as part of those properties?

Response Yes, the issuing of a separate business rates assessment is not appropriate.

Question 20 Do you agree that domestic scale solar photovoltaic should be defined as
installations having a maximum generating capacity of 10 kW?

Response The setting of a maximum capacity again seems an unnecessary complication

and overly bureaucratic.

Annexes to dwellings

Question 21 In what circumstances, if any, do the rules requiring the separate banding of self
contained units of accommodation within a hereditament give rise to injustice?

Response This is not felt to be a significant issue.

Question 22 Should the Government seek to make changes to these rules and if so, what
changes?

Response No changes are necessary.

Page 49




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Agenda Iltem 9

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

SCRUTINY

Epping Forest District Council

Date of meeting: 29 November 2011

Portfolio: Finance and Economic Development (Councillor G Mohindra)
Subject: Key Objectives 2011/12 — Progress Report
Responsible Officer: S. Tautz (01992 564180)

Democratic Services Officer: A. Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Committee consider progress in relation to the achievement of the
Council’s Key Objectives for 2011/12, for the first six months of the year.

Executive Summary:

1. The annual identification of specific Key Objectives provides an opportunity for the
Council to focus attention on how areas for improvement will be addressed over the
next year, and how opportunities will be exploited and better outcomes delivered for
local people.

2.  Arange of Key Objectives for 2011/12 was adopted by the Cabinet at its meeting on 31
January 2011. Performance in relation to the Key Objectives for the year is reviewed by
the Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a six-monthly basis.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

3. It is important that relevant performance management processes are in place to review
and monitor performance against the Council's Key Objectives, to ensure their
continued achievability and relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate
corrective action in areas of slippage or under performance. This report presents the
six-month position against the Key Objectives for 2011/12.

Other Options for Action:

4, No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review
performance against the Key Objectives, and to take corrective action where
necessary, could have negative implications for the reputation of the Council and for
judgements made about the authority.

Report:

5.  The Committee will be aware that the format and structure of the Corporate Plan for
2011/12 to 2014/15 includes an annually updated section reflecting the Council’'s Key
Objectives for each year of the Plan. The Key Objectives are intended to reflect
national and local priorities and specific service improvements, providing a clear
statement of the Council's overall intentions for the year, with reference to specific
targets and outcomes.

Page 51



6. The Council’'s Key Objectives for 2011/12 were adopted by the Cabinet at its meeting
on 31 January 2011. A schedule detailing current performance (at 30 September 2011)
against each of the Key Objectives is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

7. Progress against the Council’'s Key Objectives was an area of inspection focus in the
Managing Performance element of the former Comprehensive Area Assessment
(CAA) process introduced in April 2009. Managing Performance comprised the annual
assessment of the progress the Council was making towards achieving improvement in
the services it delivers to the public, and was intended to identify and reflect efforts to
put in place plans to secure improvement. Whilst CAA has been abolished, it is
nevertheless important to ensure that relevant performance management processes
are in place to review and monitor performance against the authority’s Key Objectives,
and to agree proposals for corrective action in areas of slippage or under performance.

8. The Committee is requested to consider mid-year performance against the Key
Objectives adopted for 2011/12. This report will also be considered by the Cabinet at its
meeting on 5 December 2011, and any views of the Committee will be reported to the
Cabinet meeting.

9. The Council has sought to align it's business, budget, and workforce planning and
development processes over recent years, and these arrangements have provided an
opportunity for the Key Objectives for each year to be incorporated within annual
Directorate Business Plans, thereby further linking the various elements of the
Council’s performance management framework. For 2011/12, the Key Objectives were
set by the Cabinet alongside the setting of the budget for the year, representing
significant improvement over previous arrangements where Key Objectives were not
determined until early in each municipal year, after the budget for the year had been
agreed.

10. In order to commence the business planning process for the next financial year, current
progress against the Key Objectives for 2011/12 will be used as the starting point for
the identification of appropriate objectives for 2012/13. Service directors have also
been requested to identify any specific additional proposed Key Objectives for next
year, in liaison with individual portfolio holders, and the draft Key Objectives will be
subject to consultation with the Committee during early 2012.

Resource Implications:

Resource requirements for any proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of slippage
or under-performance in relation to the Key Objectives for 2011/12, will be identified by the
Acting Chief Executive or the responsible service director.

Legal and Governance Implications:

There are no legal implications or Human Rights Act issues arising from the
recommendations in this report, which ensure that the Council monitors progress and reports
against the achievement of its Key Objectives.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

There are no implications arising from the recommendations in this report for the Council’s
commitment to the Nottingham Declaration for climate change, the corporate Safer, Cleaner
and Greener initiative, or any Crime and Disorder issues within the district.

Consultation Undertaken:

Current progress against the Key Objectives for 2011/12 has been reported by the Acting
Chief Executive and the responsible service directors. This report has been considered by
Management Board and will also be considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 5

Page 52



December 2011. A copy of the report was provided to the Finance and Economic
Development Portfolio Holder and Deputy Portfolio Holder (Performance Management) in
advance of the publication of this agenda.

Background Papers:

None

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

The content of this report has no specific risk management implications However, the Acting
Chief Executive or responsible service director will have identified any risk management
issues arising from proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of slippage or under-
performance in relation to the Key Objectives for 2011/12, as set out in this report

Equality and Diversity:

Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for relevance to the
Council’'s general equality duties, reveal any potentially adverse equality implications?

No. The content of this report has no specific equality implications. However, the Acting Chief
Executive or responsible service director will have identified any equality issues arising from
proposals for corrective action in respect of areas of slippage or under-performance in
relation to the Key Objectives for 2011/12, as set out in this report

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment process, has a
formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? N/A - See comment above

What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process?
N/A - See comment above

How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been

addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group? N/A -
See comment above

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



1 10¢ 439IN31ddS 0¢€

1340ddd SS3490dd

CL/LE0C SAAILDANrd0O A3

Page 55




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

FEOd U0SAUET WOy S82MES S 13UN0D U0 WoReI0Ed 8yl (1w - e LoD

RIS PIESRA UHOR] JE J0dap mau aulJo Jepus) pue uliisap ayL (A - 100

RlaI pIEas, UUOR 1R 10dap sau oy uogeadde Guuued jo uogeuilaag - e o0

RlaIUy plEaps KoM e Jodap mau Jo) aauedl (ended jo uawaalfie 5 sisAeUE WaUagnsod 1o Wawdojasag il - e 100
L0d
INH pooa e e 1adap aall jo) uogeadde Buuue)d o uogeuilaaEag 00 - g Loo

[IH Po0aED 18 10dap amau auy) o Japua) pue ubisap ayL i

IIH pooaed Je 1odap mall 1oy Buiaueu [gyded Jo Juawaalle 5 sishjeue Jauaglsod Jo Juawdo@aag - e LoD

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

(o)
To)
()
(@)
©

o

T oo - e 100 sU0ae |asa) au ajaads aylisuiele ssalfoid 8as e o0 aslaalgo Aas o) uanae |aaa)-yaiy aur sl sl

(Al pue QA "G "Gl O A0 ' BT LO D SUDIE (848 AU JSUIeRE SIUELLIOE

(pawaads jou)

(auoLu) .

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

sayis yocdap mau o3 Jodap peoy uob3isEue] ay3 woay s30idas Suilsixa 33e00[3Y - B'T0D




1UN07 84} 0} SLU0IU| SNUSASS PUE [ERdED [BUORIPRE 8anpoid pue 3113310
HI yauIge] pasjun

‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 57

‘UdljRIaPISUDD S |laUnoo ayl dol yodal & paledald asel pue "4om salaal Agadold 216aled]s sl nay] o Jed se jesodold auy] paulllexs ansely

funog g 1S3 jaunoog AUnoo ¥3ss3 o ualipedag siesybiH Ayl pue ‘ualidojasad JLouoa3 pue Guiuue|d 1o Joppadg auyl yiks passnasip Bulag Ajualing s11odap aau aullol uiisap jguy aul (LWL LE L

"L LOZ JaquiEldas og

AQIH poosy D 18 Jodap sau ayl o) Buaoeu)) epdes jo ualaalfie ayl pue 1502 Aejaflipng pue sissjeUE 1auagnsod g o Juawdo@aap ayl

Haed] U0 . LL-dag-08-u4
FIUELUA0] I3 1NS FIRSEILU |[IM 38 MOH

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

[I'H poose 3e Jodap #Mau 1oj Suinueuly [endes jo Juswaaise i sisAjeue J1jauagf1so0 jo uswdoaaag (1) - e 10D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 58

‘pUBYAIOEY Syaam ybla 15ea] 18 Uaneddde Ue Jo ualssiugns auyl annhal
|Ias Jodap saul |yl o) uopeadde Guilued g 1o uogeuiulalap ay) o) agep 1ale] aullo Juallasaiyae ayl papuugns uasdg lad ol sey |14 poosyeD 12 1odap aal ayldo) uogeadde Guiuued s O Lo LLED

| LOZ 1aquuaaad LE A (IH poosed 1. Jodap amad ag ol uogeddde Guiuue|d g 1o uojeuiLLElap au L

anpayas pulyag . LL-180-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

I'H poosseQ 18 Jodap mau 10f uoiedrdde Suiuued jo woieuwialag (i) - e 102




SnlpIalqn

1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 59

‘uoieddde Buuue|d & BuLgns

10 UOILauL 8L Ui Uogea0jad Jo) palspisuod BUleg Saiaas asoy] i UOEYNSUO UL |[IH Poosde e 1 ANaeLj0dap Juattade|dal syl o) ufisap e uo Buiiom e saaas adodd Jouos O L L L)

T10Z Jegquisidas 0F A |IIH PO0MYEQ JE Jodap mal 8yl o Japus) pue uliisap syl

Zl-dag-0z-ung

Haed ] UG .

oS pdurns
2 IR0 12 1IN0 S INSEaLU [[1A4 354 MO

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

= =T [ e T ]
SlUOH JURHShELEL.] JOLELIUIn) o lIIH poosvjeq e 3adap mau ayl ja uapuai pue ugisap ayL (m) - e 102




SnlpIalqn

[IIUND: Ul 0 80U anuass) pue [ENde) [euoppe aanpoid pue A

‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o] 12UIqe]) payjury

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 60

‘sIsAleUE Wauadg]sad e aledald o ajqissod ag 1au (] Elap Ul YERaIYl paylam Uaad asel ssadold
UonedIojas ayllo sjuauoduiod snopes aubo (e jun CLLOZHR0F L 1aUeD) RIS pleans YUon 0110dap aul 0 Uoiean|ss augiio) uoljiw g L3 1o uoisioid (endes alod pasifie sey auiged aul (L LS L)

LLOT daauwialdas 0 Ad pIBWY plEan,
Lo 18 1odap Alelodida) smau ayp o) Buiaueu) epdes o juaaalie ay) pue 1502 Aelafpng pue sisseuE JaUag]soa g o Jualldojasap ayl

anpayas pulyag . | L-da5-DE-1d

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o PIRINIY PlEafa YHopy 18 Jo0dap sMau 1o aoueuly [ejdea Jo Juawaasse i sIsA|EUE J1Jauar 1500 jo uawdojaaag (A1) - e 10D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 61

“Bl0EABIIE AOL 10U S| 810 1af1E] aU] 'palLIgnS Uuaad
184 10U sey uoneadde ay] sy puByal0lag syaas uaapiyl1sea) e uogeadde ue 1o uoissigns ay adinbal pinoss, dogeadde Guuued g o uogedidalap o) alep 1aflde] ay o Juatdaaayae agl (L oL L)

‘BUI0IEAD ag 0] paau | Sa|pUny Buiuue|d Juedufs eyl pue Jjag uaals uepjododiap 8yl Liyliss S1UOIEI0| 2yl eyl Jasamoly pasiuboaal ag pinoys | uoneadde
Auiued g BUmILIgnS (0 Uouaiul auy) s daso] (oUpuoa ayl Guisolpe uoeao| e 1e ‘pladry pleais, UUor 1 Aljnaerodap juadaaedal agp o) ufisap g Uo Budios ale saapndas Auadold Hiopam (L L0 L

L 107 daguiasan LS AQ plelry pleas YUOR 18 1odap smau auliop uogeandde Buiuued g 1o uojeuuLIalap ay L

anpayas pulyag . LL-180-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

PISIHIY PIE3fA YHOp 38 Jodap smau oj uoieajdde Suuued jo uoineuiwialag (a) - e 102




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 62

WEANOS ag 1ou (1w Slapual 'pasosal uaag
askl] suonelapisuod Auuue|d sy pue pasoidde 1 UAISaR [BIPU aYT AU SW0EAD 80 0] paau e Sajpany Buiuueld Jueaufiis 1eg) pue Jjag uaals uepjodoliap agl uiglla S) Uoijeao) agl eyl dassasal
pasufolal ag pinoys ) cuogedde Buuued g BUILLIGNS 10 Logualul aul yiss plaidng preais, o 1e Alnaesodap juadaaedal agp o) ufisap g Uo Bupdios ale saapdas Auadold Hiopap (L L0 Lo

7107 Jaguialdas OF Ad RIS PlES UUOR 1 Jodap mau syl lo Japus) pue ublsap ayl
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ Zl-tas-0E-uns
oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SlUOH JURHShELEL.] JOLELIUIn) o PI2LHIY PIE3 YHON 18 10dap #3u ay3 ja Japual pue usisap ay) (1) - 810D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 63

DI
Auneofau ale sluafie pue palaplsuod Bulad 0S|k ale Aaqdy WeUY e '18adlS UnS Ul Wnasnwl ay Buiualpe sasiwald (ng 'alals aawdas winasn auyl o) painhie uaag sey Aadqdy WeUlen, 'peoy 1ayoolg
ot | ‘passalfold Aulag 51 sawas 1aa)4 pue aaueualulel SPUNOIO aepowILLIoIIe o] uolyinoT ‘|4 pooayeD 18 jodap smau e Jo) Ufisan v peoy uolsfue wol pageaojal aaey sasdn aul CL 1L LiF L)

CLOT YLEW LEAD S82IAES S 12UN03 ALY L0 UOQEI0|ad 8Ll

HAel] U . El-Ep-LE-Ung

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

PEDY UO3sSUeT LUDJ) S331AU3S 5 [I3UN0D 3Y3 J0 uoi3eaonjal ayl {ua) - 100




SnlpIalqn

[IIUND: Ul 0 80U anuass) pue [ENde) [euoppe aanpoid pue A

‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o] 12UIqe]) payjury

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 64

L LOE JAagulaaag g un jJauige ayl o] paiuasald ag s jesododd sy 0 sjeEp o ag uiueuon godad ycApadodsd Guiuolpe agplo aaud aseyaind aug spleso] Buipung

0o0'00ss o) dn Alnaas o] pund AlapoT afeldaH ayl o] pig e uo BUEdos AJUELND ade siaao ‘s o 48 up o saunpoddo gluacddojasap jo afuel aps B apwold pue palols, o) pasoddo se Aejdsip, uoag o]
L0M2a)102 8yl 40 %GE 0] dn ajgeus pinoa uogdo Syl 18 Uns o 1B wnasnyy ayl ol uaselpe Buiping eyl Budnaas o Apgrssod B 51 alayl 1Byl pUNoL asey pue SUopdo aalewlale paIapIsU0g aaely Saa1uo
'saael afelols alenhape apold 0] sasiWald peoy Jayoolg syl lo uoesoual Jo) pajonb sajewlsa aapgiyold 1o 1502 ayl 0] anp JasasmoH S1aalun|oa o Weal e AQ ssai0)d S141 Ul palsisse Bulag ale

UelS Wnasn slead S L-01 158 AUl Ul PRJAADIUN Uaad 10U aael Laiyas Jo AL 'L01a8]|02 WNasnuw ay) o sway uiepan 1o Gursodsip pue BuEaed 'Guipioaad uo uayedapun BuEg AJUaung s ons CL L0 LISE)

7LOT YLEMW LEAQ 81015 WNASNL 8110 UolEI0jad 8yl

anpayas pulyag . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns
2 IR0 12 1IN0 S INSEaLU [[1A4 354 MO

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o 238353 [PLIISAPL] PEDY 12X Dalg 941 03 21035 LUN3sh|Al 241 23800j21 8] - §° T0D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Tg)
©
()
(@)
Q)

o

sded |1e18d pag uolyse) e o) 8115 aullo Juadojaaspal syl o) uogeaydde Guiuue|d sulIapISuod 0} S80S [oAU0:0 UewdolaAa 19UIS10 AU 400 PEXL 80 AUOYS (14 21ER B ey paladEs Sy L L LFLD

CLOT WMEW LE A S8US pEOY UDlSEUET JUEIEA AUl 10 JUaLIdo|asapal aul JoL ABalENS & 10 uaLdo|asap syl

HAel] U . El-Ep-LE-Ung

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

JuEdeA U3Ym 3315 30dap peoy uo3isSue] ayj jo juawdojasapaa ay3 oy ASazeas e dojanag - 2°102




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 66

‘paulLIalap uaag 18k 10U sey uogeadde ayl eyl JUeaL SEY S pUE SOy AesyBiH aUl S 12UnN00 AUNGD ¥8553 40 UOaeISES
aU1 0] palen0fau ag o) S} UaYE] aaely Yaiga Ss1aediul 2 1o 198058 Ul Sanss uepodu pasied sey uogeadde syl 0 LO7 J80wWaIa0 8 U0 PARILLIONS SeM O LI0S57/4d4T uoneadde Buidue|d (1 Lo LiLED

| LOF (Mo 0E A 'a)s jodap proy uopsAueT] auplo ualdojasapad aup ol doeadde Guiuued auplo uogeuLLElap au L

anpayas pulyag . L L-dy-0Ees

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ajis 1odap peoy uojssue] ay3 jo Juawdojanapaa ayy 10 uoned)jdde Suuue|d e aulwiaIag - PrI0D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 67

PlEAIOLUSLISSASSE plaIE ay] Lo aAE1S pUOIES AU aYe] O] 1S Aol LD SaUepInd ylias ' | 07 Jagquuaaop] Adeaiagola
a1e| Ul Yodal 0] anp ade BUNOL pUe 15003 smamal Buno), pue 1503 Buiofuo syl o ped se uayepapun Buiag s1luallssasse augllo afde]s pHau auyrlo) suodo pue pyodal saodajeH aygllio saial s Ol Lo Lgon

CLOE YMew L& Ag "stauped Jueaa|ad Luas Loauniuog U plawiry plesms, Upor 10 asn aingnd aul o) Adalels g 1o Juawido@aap sy
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ T L-Ep-LEEeS

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

= =T [ e T ]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o PI2IAIY PIESAA YHOR] JO 35N 84ning ay3 4o0j ASajes3s e jo uawidojasaag - 3 102




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 68

‘paalfie Jaug uawdojasap & pue Uogeynsuod agnd o) pajuasald ag suondo
Lea Buljjapal ayp o uogajduiog uo Ajuo Aesdapun s AU Epowl pue "ULWInInsy 841 UL aLLI-LLUE] UL palasl|ap pUE PaISpl0 Ses om 3l CAeUIELO UayeLEpLUN 1By asde pUE 1aA0 padinbal sea AU|japoL
uanbasuog pue Blep JWel] aLUl-wLla) alep ol dnley) Jeaa Apeade sea L LOZ ARW U sanaas poddng ajelodion 1o Jopaald auyl o] pauaisuel] sea 1aaiodd siup Buifeuewd o Agisuodsay O Lo LLED

| LOF Jaguialdas oo Ag Jaug walidojasag syl o Juawaalfe ay g

anpayas pulyag . | L-da5-DE-1d

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

Suided3 jo eaue peoy s uyor 15 ay3 40§ Jalig Juawdo|3A3ap Ay Uo YNSUo - } 10D




1IUN0D 8yl 0} ALI0IU] anuasad pue |epded jeuoyppe sanpodd pue 109 =i ReET L]
‘hauawl o) anjes asalyae 'suawainbal jeungeladao yn) 'sesodold asn pue| Buadulod ajeUIpI00D 0l Japlo Ul SAUIPIOYPUE] [BIISWILLOD S 10000 a4l Mmalial o] 12UIqe]) payjury

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 69

‘diysiausa Jagp u puel o sesodold dn Guiom saagae unfiag asey opuoT ol podsuel] Auaaal alop
IR JILUOUOIA YT ULIND JBS]D 10U S1 S8UIAYIS aw0s 1o Age ayl asneiag padeap uaag asey suoneddde Guiuued yanayye 'sans 1o Jaguunu B palapisund sey Busnod Jo dojaadig aul (Lo L LE]

‘fuisnoH
Joaoang sy o digsueLuneyd ayllapun Aespeolg aylle oo 0p dn 1as usag sey aagiuoa-qns e pue dnolo Uogedipio-oo jassy aul uinolyl sjasse asayl Japisund o] Sanuuod 1aunoo aul (L L L)

laug
awdoasa] pue uBlsag au yis, paoaae 1y eade Aespieolg aglo ped o uadojasapal agpaol suogeadde Guiuue|d o uoissigns ay g

Aulpuad - (pawaads jou)

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

uUD3YEnoT Jo eale Aesmpeoig Je s1asse 531 Jo asn ayl 03 yoeoudde s [ounoy ayl auwialag - 100




Sannas |ea0] pue spooynogyliau Jagag S5 anlI3lgn
apeald ol AgIsuodsal pue Jamod aaey SaIUNLILIOD pUE S|ENRIAMPUL adaum ' galaog Big, aul o) oS suawulaans ay doddns o) sasnosal BUsxe asgn ol jJauiqe] pajun

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 70

laalsaanl Jels saum 1au1sd, aul u pansst pue aanaaxg a0 Guay syl Ag ue1s ol sAuyang Ul pasLELLLUNS alam asaly] pue 'siap|oyayels yis paleys ag pinoys Adajens

[BlaUELI4 Wia] -winipay palepdn ayl wol siuod Asx syl eyl paadie aaiuiuoo Jauigea luaaieuey aaueLLIouad pue aaueuld ayl | LOF Jaquiaidas 97 UuQ 7 LOF JAWLLINS Wl asialaxa uoensuod ayl
INPUOD AMOU 0] PARUAIUL SI Y CE LIT LOF JOL1SED8l0 4 [RI2UBUI] LUS ] -LUNIpay 8yl Ul paiuap) uaag Apeade pey padinbal sAusaes 1o Auofew syl se 'ssa04d 1aBpng + LIg LOF aUL [IUN 8S1d8xe U0e)NsSual
ay] aundisod o] Unisiaap ayl oo slaguuall dasssal] 'C [F LOE 10l uoneynsuod pasadodd auyl 1o padaojasap alas sjUualnaop Buioddns pue asidaxs UoeYnsuod Y Saanosal Auiysiuiup jo doipyaeg
B 1sUIeAE 'S]UARISA) |BI0] 404 SAaEs AUoud punode | LOZ AINC U asiaaKe uoeynsuod Jjgnd g ajelapun op1se3 juatlaanldul) Wwoll padiego sess Auipund o Z0o0 aaaalgo Aas ose 8as) (L L0 L0g)

| LOF Jaguuadas 0 Ag sieads alnjng

(OO JapUpn _H_ | L-dag-ne-ud puUE £ LIE 0L 101 sasaaKa uageynsuod Augadpng AMoediaped pue Buipas Auoud BuMedapun o) suodo Jo Jauige Ag UogeIapisuod ay g

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

sanuoud aa1auas R 198png Jo Juswidojaasp ul uoneynsuod pue uopedoiped aZeinooug - ez




SnlpIalqn

SAJlAES |BI0] pUE SpOOWInoguiaL Jayag S5

aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol JauIfes| payurn

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 71

TLOF J8LUWING U as1adaxa UoNeYNSUaa 8yl JaNpUad mou 0] RapUaul 118 LIF LOF o) 15eaal04 [BIaUeUl 4 LLUa ] -LUnIpap aul Ul pagiuap uaag Apealle

pey padnbal sOuwmes Jo Aguolew ay se 'ssaxodd 180pNg F LIS LOZ AUl LN as1uaxa uogensuod ayl auodisod 0] uoisiaap ay) yoo] sdaguiacl dasamoH paledald ses Ja)sadod auyl, 1o uoiipa [elnads uelp
B pUE 'S8dIaas 10 alnieu AMeU0lalasipilolnels ayl pUE X855 Ul uawulaaofl |e10) 10 sial aalaadsal ayl o saiqisuodsal SnoWes S a1RJ1SUOLIAR 0] Sea LOUald) syl 'asialaxe siyllo ed sy "sadnosal
AuysILIp jo dodpyaed e 1sUielE SJUSpISal (B20]10) Saalkas Auoud punole asialaxa Uoeynsuod Jgnd g ayelapun 0] 1583 Juallaaoldil) wol paulelgo ses BUIpund L Loz Ane BULnp uayedapun

an 0] papuall ‘e LIz L0E o) sapuoud aamas pue 1aApng o uawdojasap aullo Jaadsal Ul asialaka uogeynsuod agnd ayp o Jed se pasalyae ag o] ses U0ae syl (e 700 asaalgo Aas aas) (L 1L LS

sleadk alnin puUe £ |7 L0 J0) ss8a0ud Aupas 1afpng pue
Muond s aunog ayl Ul slauped pue gels spuapisal (gao) o uogediaped agp o) saunpoddo o uorsisold ayl e zoo asaalingo Aas 0113aigns

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ L L-de- LE-nyL

oS pdurns

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o [lIuUnNDg ay3 jo saiyjigisuodsal pue sajod AUBUB[1943SIP 7§ AI0IN3E]5 JO SUIpUB]SIapuUn |edo| aaoadw] - °Z0




Sadlales |B20| pue spoolinoguliau Jagag S5 SnlIalgE
aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 72

L LOE ABguEan] W pay ag o) anp Buigaac [euy aul yias ' SUu0iseaa0 aaiuluo
lall sel dnola Usiul4 pue yse] aaas B, sdiystaupe 4 16ajel]s (807 ayl saiuniuuliod wol) diyslaguuall Japls dojasap pue s(|iHs saueyus o] sdnolf Aunuiwod Bulsixe Y padojasap Uaad 1ayung
Sey yiops Aaeded pue U0Sagod AUNWLIoD pling ol SapunuuwIog [230] pUE 10J28S AELNI0A SU] UM {40 0] sealy inding Jadng u) sdnolfl sjuapisal paysi|gelss saey saaaas AUnWWo:D (| L0 LiGE)

LLOF Jaguialdas woll 'ue 4 uondy A8190s B1g Ul W0l SaUNSEeaLl A8y 10 Al8al|8R auy) 0 JUSLUSILEWILLIOD 8yl

Haed] U0 . LL-dag-08-u4

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

Ajpedes AjUNWILLIDD pling 03 S3IIUNLILIOD [E00] pUE 103935 Alejunjoa ypm sdiysiauped 1asopa ysiqels3 - 9°zod




SnlpIalqn
£0d g

Sannas |ea0] pue spooynogyliau Jagag
apeald ol AgIsuodsal pue Jamod aaey SaIUNLILIOD pUE S|ENRIAMPUL adaum ' galaog Big, aul o) oS suawulaans ay doddns o) sasnosal BUsxe asgn ol jJauiqe] pajun

JsaLu0ano yyeay pue aj| pasodud) asaiyae o] siopuad Jaad yoddns Q1 - pEoo

aldojasap diysiapeal v sjuapsad (gaopoddns pue uel Q0 - pEoo
slaalodd Buippng Aoedes yoddns o] Buipuny [eulapa 1o Bulnaas 0 - pzoo

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 73

‘aldoad AuMiom 0l S58228 ajgeUa 0] 'spuayaas Agissod pue sBuiuass BULIND pUE 1201510 a0l 1o Seale Jaylo U suo1ssas Jayun apaold o] pauued s

U pUE Ua)axe uaag sey sdoysyios asay] WOl aeqpas 4 " SaUnLLLIOD UM INSU0d o) oy uo papiaoid uaag sey aanpe "uoiippe U sadwd|0 7107 W0pUoT pue aajgni puoweng Guilloayuo) ayl ol

ala salued ealls Buipnaul siuasa Mojelgaad Bursiuello pue Buiuded uo saiunwwod asspe ol Alenaued paufisap | alelga)an, pue BUIpUNL (ELUENS 2UNI3S 0] MO LU0 321ARE PUE 218 UDINHISUOD B Ll
sdnolf dn Buipas uo alape 'slaaqunos BUosag Ul ajdoad poddns o] doysyiom & ' alealn, papnjaul asely sdoysyiom syl afleya o aall paplaold uaad asey eyl sa

BJ12UNDD Uao ] BULSIIIN Aaday
LUELY e PUE UOYANOT U pPIay uaag aaky asag] "s|ounod [eao] pue sdnof Alejunios [ea0) 40l papimold uaadg aaey eyl sdoysyios Buiuiel) o sauas e padojassp saey Saaaas AHUnWWo:D () L0 LiGE)

Haed ] UG .

() pue Q0 VR E0D SUDIRIE |48 e suleliE aIuEWLIOUE

(pawaads jou)
oS pdurns

A 2IeLUI0{13d 106 FIRSEILU [[IM I8 MOH
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ajdoad |eao| 10juawi pue uiesy ‘poddns 03 sdnoasd Ajlunwiwoa jeao) pue siauped Yyumdops - pZ0




Sannas |ea0] pue spooynogyliau Jagag S5 anlI3lgn
apeald ol AgIsuodsal pue Jamod aaey SaIUNLILIOD pUE S|ENRIAMPUL adaum ' galaog Big, aul o) oS suawulaans ay doddns o) sasnosal BUsxe asgn ol jJauiqe] pajun

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 74

“saael pasoddu o uosiwodd yanoldl S8 pue uawloe 10] Saagoe Jo aweliod mau e o Juawdojaaap ayl ajgeua (e Yais 08 E3 400 |1 104 SpIRA 01 PIG [NISS82I0S B U830

Wawdoaaa] spods s, 1aunod au] A a1SISsE Sem Aagoy LUEL]IER UL QNI SUOCS [B20] % "SdagqLuacy sall 12 e 0] saialae pue Juawdinba mau pue dnodf aypo uoisuedss ay] spieso] 598's3 Aulnaas
U MSSa2INS Sea PUE [y 104 Spleay 0] uapeddde ue Ul daqiops Wawdajaaag Alunwiog a1e1sg aylsg papoddns sea dnolo s,a)doad Japio aul 'jamiiy:0 "WiE 4 sauwlm Ul saae il [ea0] Spiesnol
AC8'63 alndas O] Way) pajgeda Yalya |y 104 Spless o uonealdde ue Buidoaaanp Ul jaued sjuapisal e papoddns 1aslaps, JWalldojaaaQ AgunwuoD & Raday LWeyless 'Splaaulp) U] - uolsayod IUnULIa
pue Buippng Agaedes Aqunciioa poddns op Buipung 1o afuel g Bunaas U sdnold Aunwiiog jgao) papoddns sey saawdas QIUNWWoD ‘'sealy Inding Jadnsg vy Jios palafler yenoiu L (L L0 LS

T1O0T YW LE A Med Buriops Buipuny

|ELIET Ay 0] pasadal Buipun) 1o yodal ayl pue saunuiwog (gao) u spaaliold Guppng sAaedes poddns o] GBuipung (eudaxa o Bulnaas ay g

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

s1aa(oad Suipjing Ajoedes poddns 03 SBuipuny [Euiayxa jo S3ulnaas {1} - P zZod




SnlpIalqn

SAJlAES |BI0] pUE SpOOWInoguiaL Jayag S5

aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol JauIfes| payurn

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 75

ABOOy LUELEM UL SSE|D aIUBD 188J1S B 10 Al8Al|E0 AUl 1aa0 8.l 0] paulel]

fiulag Apuadng s daauep Bunod g pue awielfold agp uiyia ol diysiapea) g ayeudapun 0] paiojuall uaag asgly staaiunios Bunod ‘sl fodd sqiopagyead auyl WBnody uoissas ayl o uogesiueflo

aul 1ano ayie] 0] Auanbasgns pUe slapea) aLlolag 0] palojuall pue pauiel] uaad aaey LWea] SUY S, [12Unao aglAg papmold sasse|a aauep u Augediaped ualp)iya 1o siaylowl alagas ualidojasap

AauER LY pajelado asely sawwelbodd Je) s ey syBnoog uopuoT Ul plale Jayung pue 1ausip ayl u o apdoad Gunod dayio o] Gudoiuacd pue Guigaeos Guipisodd sou ade pue dogepuno 4 Aunwiodog
And=10H Weyuago ] Yua Sayie0d awodag o] uo auofl saey sielsunod asayl o |y Sayaeod pailljenh pue paulg] 0] U0 Wayl pue siapea) o} sjuediaped wolp wayl dojgaap 0] seale pafielueapes|p

L sallelBold suods Agunuiwod Ul pasoadl ajdoad Gunak ypes BuiEios papnjaul sey sy sbpapouy pue s)|Hs Buldojassp Ul Waylojua pue poddns o] SaiiunLuiwiod WU, LIl palijuapl s|enplalpLl
Aa Ll AL 0M, LEa0 sy JB1S SA21AES AHUNWILLIOS "UOIIpRE U] aalaalgo iyl o sjualuadinbal auyl1aal yagss papaold uaag asely sdousyiom Buiuiel o abuel sy (0-p7 00 aaaalgo Aay 8ag) (L L0 LIS

TLOT YMEN LEAD ISP AU L0 SEAIE SALL U] IO LIEE
J0J SpEaT AIUNLLILIOD 044 J0 JUaLIYS|gelSa ag) ANy uswdoaaap diysiapea) Ul pepoddns pue paulel sluapisal [B20] J0 JUaLwweaalyae ayl

HAel] U . Zl-dag-0z-ung

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

SYEPAN 01 32
SLUOH JUawafieUeL) 2UBLIO 1A uatudojanap diysiapea| ul syuapisad [eao| poddns pue uieay (1) - p-zo




SnlpIalqn

SAJlAES |BI0] pUE SpOOWInoguiaL Jayag S5

1aLIge] paur]

aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 76

‘salaae spods snoes Guisiuelio pue sace fold asiadaxa paleas yust Ausisse 'syes pa) Buipoddns Alaallae ale siapea) Jaajun|oa

pue papiaodd sagagae sy o yed se papnjadl ade sawweliodd Jojuaw Jaad "saaieiul papiodd AR ayl diyuss Ssea0y1 yyeay aaysod Guiew JNoge JUapUU0 |a8) 0] sluapisad [e20] Budasmodula
Lo Sna0) Y2y (7 LO7 ABNUER IO panpayas) Wie sawm pue uojydno Yefug BUIpniaulauisip 8yl Ss0lie palas|ap uaad asey s|ealsad Ul eaH 10 Sauas e 'UoIppeE u| Aadqdy Wey e Ul ajdoad
fAunod ol anelfold sqaopaUleaH 3yl pUE sYiEMman] 'allayas suoZoH smak auy 'awwelfoid yeaH aalay s 1aunoo agp Buipnjaul saseqiul o afuel g e Alaalip 1awl Auag s asaaio sy O L0 LS

T LOT Laep Ay Aljenbau) yyeay 10 sjaaa) 1SaUlig acg) Ulle 12010 8U1 L0 SEEUE BAlL L] 0 IES J0)
pEaT JUaLLSADICLU| YYEAH BU0 0 JUSLUYSIgEISE AUl YANOIY] 'SaLI0ano Yyeay pue ay) pasoddud Boddns o) sdojuacd Jaad Lo JuaLlaaaiyae ayl

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
S GRAEIEGEEL S aUE U0} 150 15aL40031N0 Yijeay pue ajl| pano.dun ansiyoe 03 siojuaw 4aad poddns (1) - p'zod




Sadlales |B20| pue spoolinoguliau Jagag S5 SnlIalgE
aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 77

AauUep 1aal1s Buipniaul sasse|a Alaae Aunaaap Ul 'awelfold agl Ui siapea) Jaad awloiag asely aus S|ENRIMALL L0 U0II818s B Uikl 0] ARsdapun AUading 51 qJom "SI0SIApe aleay)eay
Aewadd ypa diysiauped ) 'ajdoad Bunod o) proy J8qoodg vl aduas 0oz Ay auyl e uoissas u) dolp e Buipaodd saou s sydopadead 'Co00g Axhad D007 WinoA Aagoy weyleis, 0] Joddns aaaas yino,
10 [BAIDUs B AUan0)| 0 4 ajgeeae saalae Ul uol o pafieinooua uaad aaey asayl 1o Aue pue 1o Buey, Aayy aldays ajdoad Gunod gl lawl pue Aagoy Weyl ey, SS040E HI0M YIESN0 PaaNpUod asely
UelS Hendod Alawalxa uaad aael Yalya SsU01ssas LWAR ssauy) pue Bulujodulel] 'asialaxog 'aiuep 1aadls Buipn)jaul papiaold uaadg asey ajdoad Bunodi Ag uasoya saigalae o afuel & pue | a7 Ul jaalold augl

L pasjoal) uaag asey ajdoad Aunod Qoo Jaso suoae ueid ssausng ) 4o AUELL 0 peaye pue Bugeall S| pue fAagoy Welless U padojasap Buiadg inissaians s awueifoid sylopagleaH aul CL L0 LISED

L 107 Jaguialdas 0 AQ 8553 1580 SHR PUE [12UN0:0 8YL '1S0U] SalUa0 YleaH MoleH Lo saaellasaldal
L1-das-ne-14 10 AUNSISUD) dnodg Auaals aulAg PAIO]ILOLL "UE| 4 U019, SHI0MUIEaH, Sl LUDL SEINSEELU A8 10 Aaal|ap ayl ayllo Juallaiusiwiod ayl

Haed ] UG .

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

Aagey weyleps i ajdoad Sunoi a0y swiwesSoud syaomyeaH ayl dojaasg - a°zod




SnlpIalqn

SAJlAES |BI0] pUE SpOOWInoguiaL Jayag S5

1aLIge] paur]

aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 78

JUALLBADCLU| YYEAY PESED AILLEL PUE S8551210 BU002 AY)EaY 'UONUINLU PUE 181P AUESY U0 82IAPE 'SAS5E(D UE SUDISSES AlAIE

[easiyd 1o afuel B apniau U 'siealsad UHEaH 10 UOaNR0LU A 4ANDIL] JALISIR aLylio seale Indino Jadns Ul saqenbau yesy (ga0) BUISSAIRRE Ul a0d aAlle0d B UakE] SABL SA2AI8S AHUNLUILLIO S
457 AU o dnolo-gns SeUnLULIOD AYLEaH SUl Uo 8|04 peal e AUl 1IUN0D AL Ul pAYNSa) SeY SIY) pUE S821MAas Yy eay 2a0] 10 uogesiueflo-a) Guiofuo ay) ol paiauns os|e sey (4sT diysiauped
J1faledls (B30 AUl SaUERUANY PENLUL LSS SEY SAAES LILay Syl Ul Burdos diysiauped 's1oeiuod (ea0) pue 1e1s u safueld pue 1snil aden Alewdd auyllo Ssalmal |eiesas o) and (L L0 LISE)

| LOZ Jaquiaacn] 0F Ag pouad

JEad-aall £ 1840 121151P 8U1 10 Seale JWaads Ul samenbau Yyesy Aoy ainpad 0] sadnseawd diysiauped Jo Maaap ayllo Jualiaiusiiuiod ayl

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ L L-A0m-0E R

oS pdurns

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

= =T [ e T ]
JPUIsIP Ayl s5043e saienbaul yyjeay Suissaippe ul 5831/u3s Yjjeay ayl poddns - zoD

SlUOH UaabeUE].) SJUEWID)Iad




Sa31Mas [220] pUE spoowinogyflau Jagang SR 0
609 y3uiqe] pajur

aleala o] Agisuodsal pue Jasmod aAEy SAMUNLWLLOD AUE S[ENRIAPLL adays  Aaaos Big, ayllo) uoisia sjuawiuasos ayl uoddns o] saaunosal Bunsixa asgun ol

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 79

mhalhal Jsale| ay o uogaduiod Bupuad ploy uo uaag sey asaalgo siy) 'sanaas y)eay (gao) o uojesiueiio-al aul Yl pajelaosse sanss ayl ol Ausad oo aaaalno Aay 8ag) (L L0 LIS

TLOZ YMEW LE AQ Aed Buriop Buipundy

|ELUEET Ay 0] pasadal Auipung o podad ayy pue Aasjap aalond Juaisasotdi yyeay Jo afued g poddns o] Buipun) (eulaps Jo Budnaas ay)

fuipLad ! T L-Iep-LEes
FIUELUA0] I3 1NS FIRSEILU |[IM 38 MOH

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

JU3LWIS5355Y SPasfy IE3IE4]5 JUIO[ 3YF UI PalIIUSPI SaAIREIIUIL JaAEp 01 Suipuny [eulalxa yaas - 'ZD

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d




‘g|doad Gunoi pue uaupy 40 adeyas aul slowosd pue plenfajes 09 =i ReET L]
0] s821M8s pUe suawaluele [B10] J0 SSaUBMlaYa AL alnsua 0] 'salauafie AlEJUn|oA pUE AOINIES JEUL0 PUE [1I2UN00 AUNoD ¥8s53 Y diysiauped unyiom o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 80

hanod Aupaenfales s |1aunoo ayllo ysadal

ALl LI BUI U saunpatodd uagus smalaad 0] uayelapun aq o] 5140 [euolppy Buipdeniales Ynpe apnioul 0] papuedxa jayun agq 0] 51 asegeIER SI4] Sudaiuod Buipdeniales plyod (e 10 S|elEp Spoy

ABaUA 1BU] "LIAISAS MJOp Iy LOITELLIOIL] AUl Jo Ued Sk dnjas uaad mou Se aseqEIER JIUQII8|8 UR I2UN00 AUyl SS0lae SUoeao] jo aBUel B U play Asnokald alas SUaau0d pue sJUapiaul jo splaaal
sealaysm asamoH sanss| uoaaod prya Bubto) pue Bupodal o) salnpadold agmads uso Jiag] asey saniwiel pue ajdoad Bunod "Ualp|iga uias 128009 1280p asel 1BU] sanaas aylio yae3 O L0 LS

L LO7 AUNE OF AQ UOQE[SIEE] YAt 8L Ul S8UNpadodd 821A8s [ENPIAPUL PUE A21104 U0N2810ld PIUD S, 12UN00 8U3 10 alepdn pue smainal agyL

Haed] U0 . | L-unr-0g-nyL

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

a|doad SunoA pue usap|iyo Suipiensajes 10j sainpadoud ajesodiod manay - B EQD




‘g|doad Gunoi pue uaupy 40 adeyas aul slowosd pue plenfajes 09 =i ReET L]
0] s821M8s pUe suawaluele [B10] J0 SSaUBMlaYa AL alnsua 0] 'salauafie AlEJUn|oA pUE AOINIES JEUL0 PUE [1I2UN00 AUNoD ¥8s53 Y diysiauped unyiom o] JaLIqe] pajun

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 81

‘asodind S0 suoissas AW 10 sadas e afuele o] Buoo) AIUALINI 8l. SIa20 alojalal] a|qe|iRLM Uaadq asel JBY] S85IN02 ay] papuane

anel sagulan WaE-Agy s AL ouIne ayl o uaayl Aluo YasasmaH [auno g aylAg papiaodd Guiuiel] paaaad 05 asey S)aunod Ysuediumol pue 5|00y [ga0) wWaol sanfea) o wap AlaiewxEoldde Taupsip

ayl Ul suoesiueilo eao) Jaypo o) awidelfiodd poddns e o yed sy pauiell uaag aaey asayllo %58 eyl palewlsa s1 ) sawe) pue apdoad BUnod 'Uadp|iyd Yl 1eIU0 D [BLIIUILL 10 12BIL0D 180U aely
aUss JE1S BUILELEL Y40 1aunod Aunoo xass] Yanody] ajgeeas Builie] auuo ayl gs pue uaisisold asnoy-ul syl yanolyl uaag sey sty Buiuie] nagl ul palepdn Jo paules uaad asel Sal|lLUEl pue
ajdoad AUnod "UaIpIYD Uiss AL2a0p J0m Ous JBLS S [12Una0 ayllo (e eyl paledianue 11 pue slaguiak pue gels 1o) papieold uaag asey sasinod Auidien uogasiodd plya asnoy -un o sauas sy (| L0 LSE)

| LOF Jaguiaidas oo A asa) aleLdoldde ue 1B sainpadodd uoiasiodd pryga U siaaln pue siagulall Juesaad Jo Buiuied ay g
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ Ll-dag-ps-ud

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

suiaguoa Sulpiensajes Y Suleap ul aauapyuoa dojaaap 03 Bujuiell 193140 pue 1agLIawW apiaodd - 0D




‘g|doad Gunoi pue uaupy 40 adeyas aul slowosd pue plenfajes 09 =i ReET L]
0] s821M8s pUe suawaluele [B10] J0 SSaUBMlaYa AL alnsua 0] 'salauafie AlEJUn|oA pUE AOINIES JEUL0 PUE [1I2UN00 AUNoD ¥8s53 Y diysiauped unyiom o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 82

PaHL uaad sey aalalo s
ypan SsadfBodd Jaypn 'saanosad 10 Jae JUanhasgns B pue awLleifodd aul uo pea) syl SEM OUs 83100 S8UN0SaY UELUNH a0 Uogeulisal syl o} anp 1aAamoH "5a0N0Say UELLUNH WO LELS [E1aAas pue
'"AUIpdenfales ajed0diod 0L 182100 PES] Ul S (SUOE|SY J8L0ISN:N PUE SA31A8S ALUNLIOD) 0108410 JUBISISSy Ul BUIPNIIUL 'U00a8|as pue JUALLJINIIa) ales Ul paulel] usad asel Le1s 10 afuel s (L L0 LSE

L 07 180uiaaar] L& A sjuawefuele L0anpul pue sassanod uogaajas pue Jualuyniaal ajeudoddde 10 UDaNpogUl puE JuaLdojaaap ayL
fuipLad - L1-2ad-LEes

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|Iya Yiim Aj30901P 240M DY M S1991440 10} s3s59004d UDIDaJas pUE JUALLYNIDAL MIIATY - 3°E0D




‘g|doad Gunoi pue uaupy 40 adeyas aul slowosd pue plenfajes 09 =i ReET L]
0] s821M8s pUe suawaluele [B10] J0 SSaUBMlaYa AL alnsua 0] 'salauafie AlEJUn|oA pUE AOINIES JEUL0 PUE [1I2UN00 AUNoD ¥8s53 Y diysiauped unyiom o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 83

‘Uodn JUALILLOI 0} AUOUINE Yaea J0) SIUSLUNIoR A21j0d Leip pPAINpodd JE] 05 SELY pUE "REAIOL MI0M, SIL]
AUME] S1 SIIUN0D DAY AL A PAPUNLAQUION TUBYNSUO) SALN05S8Y URLINH % J19UN0S 1UIS1I0 RA0IYI0M YA AJU0T N0 patles Aulag S 42004 JUaWNNIaY ales S 19UnoD auyl o Juawdo@aap aul (L L L L)

L LOZ Jaguiaaan LEAQ A0 JUALUNNIIAY aES & 10 LOQINPOU pUE Juawwdolaasp ayl

HAel] U . LL-180-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

fojog uawniaay ajes e dojasag - prEOD




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

141 LOF Ul e 0 18fle] saueLlopad AUAHENR L2ES PaAAILIE 10U 8AELY 1EL] S| dH SULI0 YIea 10} SUEld JUSLUSAIOLUIL |44 SUl PeMmalAal 0S[E SELY [aUEd AUINIOS Ay

“BAISAUILL 0] PEANAAL AU AJOJEIAL] S1 7 L L LOF J0) S| 10 Jaduunu |e10] &l CsWsiuey el Guioda) pue BULOILOWL a0 Jo Jnoag) U ALaan 4 [and - 55
| PUE UDIANREY 700 - A5 |4 '8lUayas Jualidojaasg (8207 - G |dH) 1L LOF 401 S| dx aaluyio uogajap ayl (| L0z Jagquaidas |7) paalfie sey |aued Augnias ualuafeue )y ajueuodad pue aaueuld ayl

T LOE Joplable] aauelopad Japenb puoaas ayl pasaiyae 10U pey (%0005 # 1)
puE 'z L L0 dor1afle] saueLdlouad Japenh puodas auyl pasalyae peY (900050 1 (&)
4
SEAD||0L SE SEAMF L LOT A0) 5|4 ayldol aauewopad 1afie] Jo Juaaaslyae ayl o] pdefal s uogsod Q.M_GE.x_m
AAllE|NWIND 84 | L0F J80asop) G | uo Aujaald s)le [aued ALIINIIS 8yl 0] paiiigns alasm | o7 Jaquaidas g o] judy | wod pouad aygl 1o) 5|43 palopuowl Apapenh ayl jo Yaea ol spodal mu:%catmn_

B 84110 SYIUOW 88U 1S 8L 0L 8|0 IEAR 10U SEA B]ER JUEAT|A) SB 7 1AL LOZ L0 JaLenh 1540 syl o) papodad ag 1ou pinog Eu%m”_ L (20
RUE IF Ll 10E Jo) lafiie] ajueuodad Japent 1500 ay] paasiyae 10U pey (%98 Tk 1 (o)
T LLOE Jo) 1abie] adueuiopad Jalenk 1510 AU pasalyae peY (%555 51 (8]

SSA0|0LSE SEM T LILLOE 0L 510 syl oy aauewiopad 1afle] Jo Juawasallae ayl o) piebad yia oS od yuaLd-aaig] aaienwng
all "} Lof Jagquiaidas |7 uo Bugaawl sH1ke [aued ALNIaS aUl 0] paRILIGnS alaa | LO7 auUnp 0 o} Wy | wol padad aullol 514 Quiia-suasg) palojuolw Alapent ayllo Yyaka 1o} spodal ajuellolad

B8k AL 0 pUa Ul A Asueldopad 18A1e] aAa143e 01 7 L0 L LOF J0L S1ds auUlio %0/ 1Seal e Jollas uaag sey 1afle] alelodiod v
AENILULIOS JaUlgES JUaaBEUER SIUELIOLE PUE 8IUEUI U] 0] SRELU 0S|E 51 514X 8Ull0 Yaea Jo 1adsad u yodal LUNJNO |EnudE Wy A0 pUa-1ead 1 Alenuue papodad ag o) paulisap

ale Jaquinu & yAnoyye Yapenhb yoea Jo UOISNAU0D SUL1E Jap|oH O)0H0d IWEAS|2) aUl UE [aUEd AUINIDS IUaw e aIUeWI0Nad PUE 8IUEU1 Ul 0} papodal SIS dH 40 Aole aulpo padsal ul
aaueLolad Jafle] BUkalyae Ul Sssalfiold "Sallalae Jo sUoaun) 'sanaas Jenaled o SSa03ns ayl o uojen|ess Jeinfal ajgeda o] pue ‘'saagaalgo Aay pue saguoud S 1a0n05 ayl uo Juallasnldil) snaog o]

SIS 4> ayllo e 3y si0leapUl pauilLILIalap Aje0| pUE SJ0)RAIpU AIOINIELE JaLdn) Uiog Bulsuduiod 'E L L0E J0) pajdope AjeulBUo ses (S14H) S101e IR0 aaUeLLI0ME d AE W EIE ALy L0 afued sy (L L0 L LED

FLO7 YMEW LEAQ 7 L0 LOF 400 5144 S)10Un0a0 aul o 1aadsal un ajed Juaaansdo afiejuaaiad pasifie ue 1o JuaLLEAaIYIE 8L
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ T L-Ep-LEEeS

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

Si0JEQIPU| SoUBELLLIDUad A3 5 [1I9UND] 3y} ul Juawanoiduul [|e43A0 aralyay - Q0




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

L0
0

‘sAumes 19Bpng saxaas BUINUUaD Jaypn aleiaual pue siapelw pale|al pue Juawayoa Gupded 1o Auaaga ay®ses)aul

‘sl dano 'pnoys syl fspaunoD Bulpua] g aslluielq laisaly oo snid) sauouine xass3 1saps aul Sapnaul Yoy diysiaule 4 Guiyied ¥8ss3 YUOop aul paulol Aing amou sey ([aunod ayl _H@_”_ LIFED
o

auUnoa 1JPUISI0 pAolsamn Gulag auo 'saguouine (eao) BULNogUAISU DA YA PALIOISSILULIO AJuiol ugad sey Jefiug Ul palean) awayas aled Guno & UOIIpRE u|

SalouIne (B0
Aally] auyl Lo slaguiaw) o] suopedasald ol apnpau s aigas g wsieao aypAg padinbad se Ao d Aaueua ] Nfaled]s ¥xass3 1san B alenuudog o) (eaoddde siagquual o 1aaigns) apdiaund i paalby (o
Aanjoradsal Aagoy WeUYEL 'S||IYPUNOY pUE (sasnoy medsi Jefun

UBIH 'plawiw 18 pue| S 1auno:o syl uo sawlayas BUlsnoy a|deplole amd 10 000'053 PUE 0O0'063 BUIpn|aUl pUnd Baly Yol slualaadd agl wod Buipuny (elded Jueaufis 100 pig &nissaiing (n
di7 Byl Lo daaljap ayi uassiang (o)

() e d Juaw)saal| |BI0T ¥assg 1saps AUl L0 sjuawaa Ausnoy ajgepioge aul pagelq (el

SSEL LUMIOS ALY CSAnUouIne [E30] aady) ayl Wody Buisnod 10 spead auyp Buisuduwo 'paLlo) uasd sey wnio 4 AUSNoH 8553 15ap aul (L L0 LT L)

‘SaUOUINE Saly] AYLI0 SAAINIAET 181y Ay uaas]ad play ade sBuaawl uosiel Jeinfay 218 Saaqequl ualainaodd juial
pUE SE21A85 paleyS 01 128dSa) YA SIUETISU] 1SU S0l ULIaLI0 yaea o) AU00] 0] SHLULIOI WaIUAM 'SSILOUINY 8553 15an a8yl Ayl uaasad paulls uaag sey AUIRUEISIS U 10 LNPUEIOWER & (L L L Le)

¥A55] 15ap 550008 sUORSILUERIO J0)a8s aleald pue AeUnOs "agnd Jauio yisa dilsiauped ) tsaniunwLILI0g Jo spaau auy] 0] ssauaassuodsal

WIBIL UO . 7 L-1El- | £ e pue sauewLopad aaaas "AauoLl 1oL anjes aaoidud) 0] Saaleul 10 S5a0INS aU1J0 7107 UMEW L8 A TAUI0ED SUlAG LONEIARISUO0D Y]

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

X355 3534y JO 53594311 Y3 aowoid 03 5[IIUNDY J9LISIg ¥3ss53 15apA YHA MO - 10




aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike]

SnlpIalqn

1aLIge] paur]

LOM38[02 Sales JSaW00-Uopk [EUONER 10 S18A8] YAIY SA8142E 0] aNUEU0D (0 - 2700
LIOM38]|00 ¥EL [19UN0D L0 S[848] YAIY aaalyae o) anuguad 0 - 2°¢090

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

<o)
(e0)
()
(@)
©

o

T oo pue DB 00 SUDAE [aaa) Hau ayaads aylisuiele ssalfold aas 200 aslaalgo Aas Jo) Loae ([aaa)-uay ayl s syl

(pawaads jou)

(auoLu) .

oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

(0 pue (72 f0o sUDaE [Ba8] KAl suefie aaueLLIOLE

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

U01393]|0 aNU3A3J D 5|9A3] Y81y 9A31yae 03 anuIuag - aH0d




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 87

‘Anuent dop uiefe ‘anp uad [B10] AU 10 %557 pajUasaldal
MUD LL/0LOZ W sdeale Juay aauewodad ajuenh dop spuasaidal pue 1afde] 1aUno:D ayl uiylls Sea yaigat ' | L0 LOZ Ul palaa)|od ses pasmo pue anp siuad AUusnoy uaund (B0 o L8g CLLOL L)

‘paAfIyIE ag (1w lafuel Jead-|n) auleu) pajedianue S} %0 75 10 1a0Ue) Uyl 8A00E "0 75 SEA B1E LOIKIS(I00 XL 1IUN0D AUy} Ueah aul o JaHenh QUOIas aullo pus aully (110 LISz

TLOZ YMEW LEAD TS LOZ J0) 8NP XL [12UNDD BULI0 %6 L6 JO L0800

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ue[393[|0a Xe| [IBunod jo s|aAa] ysiy aaaiyae o3 anuuo) {1} - 9702




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 88

"paASIYIE S [|IMJEak Sl I0)1aRE] AU lEYl Saueyd pool B 1S 51 848y} 05 pUE | L0 LOZ U juod
SLUES AULIE PaASILIE 81 UONIS||09 AU1I0 PEAYE S SIUL 18ASMOH % L9 05 10 18A1E] Ayl pulyadg Ajeuifiew 'eg L as Seam e e Ul 1o Jauenh puoIas ayllo pua auylle s1ed uonae) 03 Sk auL (L L0 LeE

ZLOZT WMEW LS AY Z 171 LOZ 404 8NP 5818y JRS8LU0J-UON [EUONEN BULI0 %0 86 J0 U0I8(00

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

UDI333[|o3 5938y 01153 Wo(-Uop] [EUOiIEfy jO s|aaa] YS1y araiyae o3 anuiuo] (1} - 9°¢02




aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike]

SnlpIalqn

1aLIge] paur]

uonaadsuy) anwas sauag o suoepualwoIal ayl ajaidwos ) - proo
FL-LLOE J0ol azuersiunadia o safueya 1o Aurssaaold asoid) 00 - pv0o
T L-1 LOF do) w2 Jauad sal 1o Bussalold asoldu) () - py0o

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

®
(e0)
()
(@)
Q)

o

DR F00 - (DR FO0 SU0RIE [843] AU JW2ads aullsuiele ssailold 885 P F0D 8a128[00 AS 40 UONIE [343]-UBIY BUL 51 SIYL

ZL-IBW-LE4RE

(auoLu) .

oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

{ pue (IR 0D SUDRIE (348 AU JSUIERE BIUELLIOLE

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

201/as s1ljauag ayl jo aoueuwnopad ayy Jayung anoadw| - pyod




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 90

ABah ajays ayl o) abelase ayl se passIyae agq |4 SAED £F 10 1aB1E] AU 1EUL AJEHIUN S11 NG JBSA 3]
10 Jjely pUodas ayl u aauewopad asoddud) 0] apeLwd ag (s sUoLg sAep o7 Jo labie] Ay asoge S UaIUs SAER A7 JapUnsnl s aaueuiolad afeliase tead ayllo Jarenh puodas ayllo pua auylly O Lo e

ZLOZ ULEW LEAD 7101107 J0) SAER £7 J0 SAEI8AE LE LILUIAL SLUIE|D JA LAY Aal J0 AUISSaa004

anpayas pulyag . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ZT-TTOZ 40§ stuefa Jijauag smau jo Suissasosd aaoudw {1) - prod




aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike]

SnlpIalqn

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

[EU 3yl U Buodls sAeaE 51 40)BIIPU SIUY) U0 aaueLopad YasasmoH SARR 2 0 1aBle] Al as0de 51 Yaigs ' sARD B 1ApUN 1SN] Sea aueoUad afbelase el Ayl o Japenh puodas ayl o pua auyl iy O Lo LeE)

Page 91

‘alous B SEESA AUL 0L PEASILIE A 1M SAER § J0 afElase LE 10 1afie] aUl1el] paledianuE (IS S17 0% puUE Jalenh

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

TLOT UMEW LEAQ 7 L0LLOF J0) SAER 910 afelase LE UM 8IUEISLUNDID 10 safueyd 1o Buissaanld

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

ZT-TTOZ 40} 29UBIsSWnaID jo sasSueyd jo suissatosd anoadw) (1) - p#OD




SnlpIalqn
L yauIge] pasjun

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o)

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 92

‘passalfold Uaag anel 'Bale

uondanal syl o) pale|ad 10U Uogaadsu] a2Aa s SJauag auy) wody BUISUE SUO0EpUaLLILLIoIa) As eade uogdasal asueuld syl Ysidiniad 0] 10U papiaap siaguula Apnis AldIses) pajelap e Bulso)od O Lo Lig)

SUDISUAL PUE J4004 0]

WALMEeds ] pUE UDISSILULWIOD HANY AUl LA pealfe S8|BISaL01) Ayl dIypa ' uonasdsul adlles sjuauag 0107 AMENUE a1l SUOEpUSLLILLIOoEl
Aad aullo "eade uondasal aaueUl4 SAIL0 AT 8L L0 JUALULSIGANIE) Ul o) S|es0ododd 10 uoneapIsuoa 01 12algns ‘uonaduiod ayl

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

Haed] U . (pawaads jou)

oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
uonaadsu| aaldasg s3jauag Jo suoiepuawuonlal ayy ayajdwogy (1) - pFod

SlUOH UaabeUE].) SJUEWID)Iad




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 93

"sleap Ul Buidios, diysiauped pue sasieul

il yanoiyy 'paudnuap uaag os|e aney sAUARS "[1aUN00 Ayl Ag 1as slafle] aauewopad Auibua)eyd agl o JUaLlasaiyae ay] spleaso] Buiioms LELS 0] Sieag ajgeus uay] pinoys pue ' | LOF SBWISUYD

AD paRISUL A0 (e LUEISAS AU [04IU0D 1500 Ja)ang pue ‘el A slueLa] o] saedal yust ssalfodd Jo uogeaou ageLuone jouog sado)s agag 'Ahojouyaa) play-puey Buisn A|BaUoaa)e uallsaped

0] pajeao)|e ag 0] sgol 'saedad ||. 10 apewd ag o] siuawuiodde ajgeUE [ Yaiys Ia1sAS 1] Uad SIeaf 10 IN0-|0d RUE UOIE|[BISU Ayl Ud Al JagquInu y -sajgelas|ap Aay ayl Guisalyie splemo) sieal

A apeld uaag sey ssalfiold Ua)@ax] tslead aalul Jo spolad Jayung o A pUalke 0] suodo Yua polad Jead asdul e 1oL LOF AR UL I0jaeuoD Wawaleuew sieday auyl se pajuiodde sea a8l Sieaw

B0 pue 'voo saalaalgo siaana os)e podal ssadfodd sy O L0 LiF L)

L LOZ AEW | 40 Slep

JUaLLaIuaLLILI0D JarguUOd aylan dopaeguog Juallabeue sieday & o uawguodde pue awuelfiold ysalay sieday, ayl o uogaduiog

HAel] U . | L-ABW-1-UNS

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

a91uas saeday SuisnoH ay3 jo asuewuopad ay3 1ayung anoidw| - a'pp




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

4
(0))
()
(@)
©

o

| p0o aslaalgo Aa 1o aadsal U podal ssaifold aas (L L0 LiF L)

C10F UMeW L AQ awayas apedoldde ue 1o uoianpodu) ay g

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

juauwniuiodde Af uaxepapun ag o3 siiedad Bulsnoy ||e 10j SWBYIs B 3INPOIIU] - J 0D




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Tp)
(0))
()
(@)
Q)

o

| p0o aslaalgo Aa 1o aadsal U podal ssaifold aas (L L0 LiF L)

CLOE YMew LE Ag spuatuaduee Buloms ajgqou ajedoidde Jo uoganpolu) sy

HAel] U . ZL-IBW-LE4RE

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

uasape.y pue siopadsul Fuisnoy 10§ syuawiaiuelie SunDM ajigoLw Sanpoau| - 30D




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 96

1as5E AUNWWOD JUa[|@3xEa Ue adq (al pue yiBg Aas 5180028 ALUNULILLIOD sau aul Lo YSILL pue ppng aulbo duenb ayl dasasmod 5| LOE Jagquwanor) L7 Ag paledwod ag o) palaadxa ale
J012E)U00 UL ay) Ag UayelapUn sy0m BUIpInG aul ybnouye 'z LOF AMERUER [IIUR S¥dom 1o Uala|dwlod palaadsa ayl paysnd sel dgjap layuny siyl Aaleunpoily $4q3) ydomiap) Jamad =0 A saldgea Jasmod
AnaLLL0 LOGe|elEU0 0] pefial U peaunoule uasg sey Jualdoaaap aulo uona|dulog uo ABjap JaUUNL B 'SaIUBISLUNIID USASal0Un 0] anp sy Auiping o ssalfold u) Aejap e ue Buiso)od () Lo LIGED

L LO7 1SNAMY LE A [IeH WUE ] SALT AUl 0 Juawdajasspal a0 uongadwng ay
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ LL-Amg-LE-pap

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

[|EH wiiedq sawi ayl jo juawdo|aaapal ayy aza|dwog - Yo




aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike]

SnlpIalqn

1aLIge] paur]

sunpdo uaLlaoe Buied Jaans-uo Jo jJauigeD aulig uoeiapsuos 00 - UF0o
fempeolg ay) uobnoT g Budd3 |- 1sinuyang o) ssaaiaal Burded o uogaidwon 0 - 0o

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

N
(o))
)
(@)
@®

o

UNrFQD pUE (KF0D SUORIE |343] BaU JWaads ayllsuiele ssalfioid 885 1RO D AAlIalg0 A J0) Uonae [8A3]-UBIY aul Sl Sy L

LL-1BR-LE-NYL

(auoLu) .

oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

(0 puE (110D SUDaR (asa) Hau 1suehe saueLLLIONE

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

PLISIP aY3 uiym Supped 193435-Uo o JUaLW040§ua pue uoisiaoid malnay - 1'EOD




SnlpIalqn
L yauIge] pasjun

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o)

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 98

paladwog s1mawal Bulddg agl pun saamad wodino Ao - 1SNy ang aul

U0 LAy ELSRUN S |4 408 0x 7 L0 UAER 10 pUa aug) Ag pauaLlaldull ANy ag ([ aanyas ag) eyl pajediaque s1 ) pue () Loz Jagolan g paysgnd) afels GUiSUespe Japlo [BLLI0) AU payaesl ey Aulddg

J01 MALAS) S 19UN0a AUNoD ¥as53 1 sannaulp ulainosal pue safiueys (euogelado ol anp Auewnd 51SIyL  Samalaad 1aads-uo 8y o Uoejuatdadudl syl ul sAe|ap ag o) anupuod adayl | Lo ka0

Z1L0Z 1sNANy LEAQ empeig

AUl uoyBnoT - £ L0 MeRIgEd BE AD IH 1sinUMang - L LOE AN L Ag Buidd3 - Auogine Aeay iy se paunoo Aunoo ¥xass3 A0 paledald
(pausads jou) ALIEIBoI pasifiEe Ayl YA SUERIDIIE Ul GEmpeolg U UoUBnoT pue Buidd3 '[IH 1SINYXang Jol ssakal Burded 1o uogsduwod ay |
SAUELLAG I 1IN0 S IRSEILU |[184 284 MOH

a|npayls pulyad .
oS pdurns
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

(Aesmpeoag ayl) uoaysnoq g Suiddz - 3sAnLyoang 40} smainad Supjied jo uonadwo (1) - 1'F0D




SnlpIalqn

aunppuadza ajgnd AuysiuLp o punolByaedg aylisuiele 'Sanosal 0 asn1sag ayl pui Jualasoidu aaueulopad SNONUUO0I Yaas o) aike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 99

uaafiuells

mal sy Yyanodyl asue | sAuses Jalpng sanaas BuinupuoD ) L07 1eadalag 0F pawlen diystauped jaas-go ayl Buuol jaunon ayl o] paalfie sey pleog diysiauled 443mM auL sagisuodsal
uaLaaoua Jaaljs-un s diysiauned ay apisbuoje 1S 0] 'SpUa J2RILOD 12014 AUl Uays Jualladoila Buled 1aas-go apaoid ase o] 443 Ul a1ejobau 0] paalfe Jauiges ayl "pua yed 1aus,

Ll sjuawlafiuede [enaeuod Busixe aul uals 7 Loz lagquialdas u sannp uatiaslojua 1aad aqel [[1ss yaiuas {d43m) diysiauned Buidie d 8553 UUOR aulJo Jagulacl [Nk e ol staunos aul O Lo L)

[1UN0:0 AUN0D ¥8553 Ag SJUsLISALUELE JUaLISOIIE

funsma Jo malaal g 1o uogaduwlog ayl Bumao)o) suogdo uatdanojua GuMded 1aal)s-un o | Loz AN LE A Jaue D ayl Ag UogeIapISsu0d ay g

Haed] U0 . LL-InP-1E-ung

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o suondo Juawalioua Supjied 199435-U0 Jb J1auIge] 3y Ag uojesapisuod (1) - 10D




‘saunosal 509 SnlpIalqn
palInpal Yus a|qissod almas 1o (aaa)1sag aul apnodd o pue ‘'uosod [BlaUeU pPUROS S 19UN00 syl Lelulelwl o] Adessalau sAUIMES JaU |0 S|aaa] 3y} aaalyde o]

1aLIge] paur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 100

"‘582IAMAS [1IUNDY || 10 AaAl|ap auyl Ul AJualaa AUISIEEL pUE AUIpUN) [EUaps 10 Bulanos
anaenld ualade e [BIAUELL pUE USLLISaAU] BLUAES USRI JO Uoeuiguaod e yBnolyl paasiyae uaag sey siyl Jdeak ediaunud 7 10 107 8UlI0L UaZod ANISSaIns usag Sey ¥e ] 1aUno0 aul (| LAE)

L1-0 107 Wiod paAueyaun Guiuiewal 7 L-| 107 0L K] [12unon a8yl

pajadog . LL-dEp-LE-NLL

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

Jueis Juawuwianog oaads ulelqo 03 ZT-TTOZ 40} Xe] [1I9uUNog ay3 azaaud - B'500




‘saunosal 509 SnlpIalqn
paanpad Ypa a|0issod a2aas Jo (aaa) 15ed ay) spaodd 0] pue 'yoigsod |BlodeUY PUNOS S (19UN00 AUl UielUIEW 0} Aessalad sAunes 1au Jo 5(aa8] AUl 8asIyae o 2UIgeT payur]

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 101

‘pouad auyl Jaso Saslasal 1o asn ayl ainpal ylod 'L o7
Jagluuadas u aaquLLo D Jauige s Juallafeuer aaueLLIolad g Sauell Ayl A paalfie uoisias palepdn aul pue | LOFZ Aenigad wpaunoo au Ay padope ABa1ENS (BIAUELL S LLUE ] -Wanipa audL O Lo Lm)

CL-F LO7 A0L18ARNG AL 83UE|EY 0] SAAA8SA) 10 850 ay) AUaNpal Ul AGaEILS [B1IUEU 4 WIS -LUNIPSR 8U1 10 SS82INS aul

pajadwon . T L-Ep-LEEeS

uonajdwiod SMeL IO I3 100 S IRSEILL 1A 35 MOH
J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

ASa3e135 [BIOUBUIH W3] -WNIP3YY 9yl Jo polad 3yl 19a0 53r43sal Jo asn Bulanpaa aunsug - 4'5p0




‘5a34no05ad SapIIg0

paInpal Yl a|gissod a2aas 10 [asa)1sad alyl apiaodd o] pue 'uosod [21aUeUl PUNODS S 10000 Ul UElLIeLW 0 Aessanau sAUAeS JaU 10 S|aaa| aug) asallyae o] 509 JauIfes| payurn

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 102

‘pouad
aylio pua ayple wawannbay 196png 18p U0 %57 10 SSa0Xa Ul AJUe|ed anasay pund |eiauag e moys | L0z Jagquiaidas pue Aleniga4 Ul paaoidde saifajes (elaueu 4 W] -Wnipap syl Wog ©L Lo Lo

GlL-F LO7 101 AJUE|EQ AMAsSaY PUNd [BIAUA0 AUl 40 [aA8] palapald ayl

pajadwon . T L-Ep-LEEeS

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o Juawannbay 193png 1ap JO %57 UBYI 18/0| DU ||BJ 591853 pUn4 [BA3U3S 94Ns5Ug - 3°500




SnlpIalqn

12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o) Yike] s

uanea0ssy AUISNOH aUINOGX0Ig 0] SUED| aad-1Salaiul Jayung ¥1s 1o umskwold (1) - B'ano
|[aued AUnnias Buisnod aulag awayas diysiauss paleys 1aqdep uado aul 1o saimay 00 - 8900
uanelaossy AUISNOH awnogyolg 0] SUeo| aal-salaiul J1yfe aplaold () - 2900

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

™
o
¥
()
(@)
Q)
o

TNe Qo0 - NegoD SUae [ass| Hau aaads auplsuiele ssalfiold aag B 900 aslaaigo Aas Jo) Loae (aaa)-uaiy ayl s syl

(0 puedn (e qno suoae |asa| Had 1suiefbe aiuelolad
L L-1EW-LE-nyL

(auoLu) .

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

saseyaund Apadoud 1o sueo| aa4)-15a193ul Suipinoad awayas diysiaumg paseys jax4el uadg ue sanposiu| - B9




12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o)

q0:2

SnlpIalqn

JaLIes pagurn

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

leadh [BIILUELL AU ay] ulAlea asea)d ayey |[m S8|8S 1841

ayl eyl pafesiaga 51 eeadde ay) o) asea) diysiaumo paleys g apnodd pue sdadotd ay] aseyand wag) (e awagyas agp udauped sunog ay) 'uogenossy BUISNoH aunogEolg pue 'siseg diysiacmo
PaJELS B L0 U aal] 0] Ysia Aau] eyl 1axdewl uado ayp uo Auadodd B 400 Joo) day) (s sueddde pajoaas "paaalas ag ||Is awlayas ay] ol sajepipues ajeddoddde pue uogedod) Jagung apsodd o
pajelod Guad o ssalodd aylu ale sueddde palsalaiu) sleddde Buisnoy pue SIUEUS]12UNOD (B O} W8S Slaga) Yia 'awalas aul ajowoid pue wedxa 0] uayedapun uaag sey ubieduled Buladiewl ¥

L LOZ Jano)ag Ul paufls alasm sjuauaalfie (2ha) augl YasasoH 1aalold asesoUlul pue anbiun sy ol uogeuawinaop (efa) auy Guinelp o sanEaduiog ayp o] anp pase|ap uaag sey ssalfold (L L0 LE L

Page 104

L 107 Jaguiaidas 0 Ag Uoge0Ssy AUISNOH SLIN0MX0IE 0] SUED| 8a4l-Sa4a]lul WIS 10 uoisikold 8yl

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ Ll-dag-ps-ud

oS pdurns
2 IR0 12 1IN0 S INSEaLU [[1A4 354 MO

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

UDIIEII055% SUISNOH 3uinogxoig 03 sueo| aai}-1534ajul 3ysia apinoad 1) - e'gp




SnlpIalqn

12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o) Yike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 105

TegoD asaalo Aay 1o 1aadsal U podal ssaifoid aas (L L oL F L)

(DO JARL _H_

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

| L-da5-DE-1d

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

SURO| [BUDIPRE AUIpIADIG pue aseyd puoaas .
AuMeLapUn o] sals g yuas ' | LOE Jaguuaidas g Ag fjaued Aunias BuisnoH ayl Ag awagyas digsiausms padeys laqiew uado aul jo manal agyl

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

|[aued Auinias SulsnoH ayl Ag awayas diysiaumQ paleys 1axepy uadg ayi jo manay (1) - e'9g




SnlpIalqn

12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o) Yike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

O
o
¥
()
(@)
Q)
(a1

TegoD asaalo Aay 1o 1aadsal U podal ssaifoid aas (L L oL F L)

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ T L-Ep-LEEeS
oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

7LOT YMEN LE AQ UONEII0SSSY BUISNOH SWINOGX04E 0] SUED| 8aUl-15a48]U1 JaULNL XIS 10 uolSiaoid 8yl

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

UDIIEII055Y SUISNOH auUINogXoig D3 SUBO| 334)-153433UI Jayuny XIs Jo uoisiaoid () - 9]




SAIG0

FIUISIP Ayl uiypas AUISNoY ajqepdoge 10 Wosa0ld ayl asiuxEewl o g0 i

SUBIIY i3] FAoH

Page 107

£ LT LOT 03Ul IS |11

ZLLLOZ Ul 8np SUoia|duod Jo Jaguunu e 'aiajalay ] ais auyl o) 8318 s Jo Uolsiodd syl ypas swaqold o) anp pade|ap usad sey awayas ay} 'uoos pajiadya ale sU0Ra|dwod 1Sy auyl YanoLye YaaamoH
AUS U0 Sl Aagoy LWELUYEM 'REOY SUDISpIEMAS 1B alUayds afie) ayl palaidwod uaag (e aaey Jefug 'yaeolddy uogels pue Jefun auF uoino fafanoo1saiod Buidd3 18 sawayas syl CL L0 LiE L)

(SBLUOY L) ARGy WEYLEM, 'PEOY BUOISpIEMBS - (SaLU0Y 8) JeAUD Buiddiyd 'yaeolddy Uonels - (sawaoy g Jedug Buiddiyo

lquag-ispun [ CLoEN-LEAES JUIZ - (SALI0Y GE) UojYAnoT afalod 1sai0 4 Guidd3 - 7 107 WUEW LE A Sallayas BUISNoY aldepioge BUlolo) 8yl uogajduod ayl

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

SO H30
SlUOH jusiuoheUEe]) JUBLULID) o saWaYas SUsNoY 3|gEPIOYE Mmau a1ajdwind 03 SUDIIEII0SSE SUISNOY Y}M HJ0/A - [ 90D




SnlpIalqn

12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o) Yike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 108

WA)sAs Jamas Ausxa ay oqu Buifieyasip ueyl Jaylel ‘als

Lo palead] ag ||1a afbelaamas auyl (o) pue ‘painbal uedl alouwl Aguedniufls JUnalle ue 0] '‘pasealoul Uaad sey Ausied Jounowe sy (B) slUapIsal AQ pasiel SLISIU0 06 L0 JUN0I2E Saxel uBIsap (eul ayl
‘pafesiaua AjeUIBUo eyl Jaluo) uaye] sey ssad10dd ullsap ay] 'Uoansung aeg sENS 10 850 aalEA0LUUl pUE anhiun ay] o] ang sasnoy ajgeplaye inoj o) ¢ L0 a0 Uo pasaaal - | Liegss 1443 panillgns
LUaang sey uoneadde Buiuue|d aup pue ‘painpotd uaag asey JuaidoEaap aylio) sued pajelap agl aunog ysued Jefiug YaiH Ul uoe)nsuod pue juasa Loneynsuod sjuapisal g Bussolod O L0 LiF L)

LLOZ AUnC Oc Ag uacddolaaac] plawiy 8ulio 8|S Lo 81ep LeS B 40 JUaluasalyle ay|
[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ L L-unr-0g-nuyL

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

1eSuQ YSi1H 'spawIp 38 53snoy 3jeg-Aieals 3[gepioye inoj apinoid 03 uoileio0ssy SUISNOH 303SEH YA MOpA - 390D




SnlpIalqn

12U1SIR Ayl uiypas BUisnoy ajgepole 10 uolsiold ag] asiuEewd o) Yike] s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 109

alayas diysiaumg paleys leqdep uado aulo 7 aseyd
Japun saseyand diyslaumo paleys alol Budgeua Agq 'BUipuny ayl asipin Jagag o] uaab Bulag alolalall s uolelaplsuc:s ABINO |BUdED Syl o) A0l o) anjes pool Jago pinos allayas aseland agl quill
10U pIp Jap|oH omuod BuisnoH aul pue slaayo 'paulnial siapual aul uo pased JaasaiH siauped uogeiaosse Auisnoy padaiald sounod ayplsiuowe uayedapun seam as1axa Japualy O Li0 LiF L)

L LOZ AauUnNC Qg Ag Jauped uogelaossy BUisnoH pallalald s launoa aupig pasedand sapadosd (g 1o uogednaan ay g

pANUIU0ISI] . | L-unr-0g-nyL

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

s]uaJ [B|90s e 33| 01 3834w uado 3yl uo sasSNDY PaLUDoJPaL 934y} 40 0M] /5 Jo aseyaand ayl pund - progd




LNOo ) Loy SapIIg0

SAAIKE S
L02 JaLIge] payun

pasallyaE ag uea AauaLl Jo) anjes pue Iudad saanosal alags 'sassaulsng pue ajdoad (£20] U0 SUOQPUOD JLUOUOIE JUEUNI &yl 1o 1aedun ayl apefgw djay o)

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 110

"aLnau|
10 Saunos mau AUIpUY o) uaalf Bulag 05)e 51 uoluany (Uo1ssadad syl AULND pajw) Waag ey Uo0ansund se paanpal Sl Siyl asnesad) paAlada) awodu auy) o] uaald S| uonuane jeinfex . Lo L LD

‘sassausng (g0 uodn pedl ag] jo swua) u Busded wol) anuaasal asealau) o) sjesododd Aue 0] 'slead aadyl ol Uazol) uaang asely saa)
11 puill Ul Auead 'uaalf ag ||Is UOIEIBRISUOD PUE 851208%8 UogesIdo awoau| anuasay ayllo ved se sainpands safleya pue saal s auno:d ayl Gumiaial ale sladood asnaudalemadtd CL LI0 LT

‘sdnouf Jaylo pue sassallsng (WS Jo udljelapad [&aa] ayl Yyuas Buifelua aie (uoidweyD ssaulsng se) JapoH oljojuod Jualldajaas ALouoag pue aaueLul
ay) pue Japea ayl ulon pue pauflls uaag ose sey Jaleyo ssadisng, mal g sapunpoddo pajejal ndwso 2107 uopuo Augowodd se yans 'sjuasa ssadisng papoddns sely aunog ayl O Lo L)

7 LO7 YMEW 07 PUE | LO7 Jaquieldas 07 uo play ag o) [aue 4 Augnias Juaafeden asueLliolsd pue aiuedl 4 ayplo saunasal

(007 Japur _H_ 7 L-ep-0z-an] a1 0] SLUOQPUOI 200028 JUaLIng 8yl o 1aedu syl Buedniu U S85582I05 pUE SJUALLEAILIE 5 )12UN02 Ayl 10 Bupodad AlUuow s ayL

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

SUOI}PUDD LB U033 1Ua4ina 3y} jo Jaeduw ay3 azeSnnu o3 saunseaw Juawajdw| - e 2]




SnlpIalqn

Homallel 4 Jualidojasad (g0 auy o ABalens Guilue|4 100 PUNOS & Jasl|ap o] 80 s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

Page 111

Ahalens Guluue|d ad00 syl o yoneledadd ayl ol ajgelawd] ay Bugaaid Jo sies JUalalip pull 0] S182140 payse asey Jap|oH olouod
AROjOUYIa] pue BUluUE|d aUl pUE [1IDURDD Syl lo JapeaT ayl e 18 o "Buo) Jol salanod [ga0] Bulsixe aaes 1ou B 444 AUL1ELL SIHSM AU (dddm) Hiomalliel 4 Ao d BUiLUe|d |eualip padus
"sall B L0 papUa Auanal sey uogeynsuon ssainpaiold Jayio pue "siualinanp o sal aug afueya Azl siU] pue walsds Auuued aygp ol safueys Ueauidis GUinpolial s uacuesns auyl O Lo LLED

CLOF UL LE AQ B)eI0)2ad s U] AUuue 4
aul 0] ylomaldel 4 Juadojasap |BI107 pasaal 5[12UNaa ayl jo uoissiugns ayl o yed se dfaiens Guiuue|4 alo0 ayllo uonadwio: ay

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ EL-1ep-1E-UNSg

oS pdurns

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SIIGH FUSISRE UL SIUELLID) 1o ASa3e135 SUIULE|d 2107 3y} jo uoijeledaud ay3 10) a|gejawul] pasiaas e 3343y - B'BOD




SnlpIalqn

Homallel 4 Jualidojasad (g0 auy o ABalens Guilue|4 100 PUNOS & Jasl|ap o] 80 s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

S\
—
¥
o
(@)
@©
o

Nable] AuBuaeyd & pue Japew Gufiua)eys B suiewal asgaaigo syl ABaiens Auuue 4 aloo) Breoo aslaalgo Aa 1o adsal U podal ssaifoid aas (L Lo LLED

TLOT Yuep LE A (BfE)S SU0Rdo pallaald)
(007 Japur _H_ 7 L-1El- | £ e AfAlES AUIUUE|d 8400 AL 0L UDEYNSU0I SUodn PUE SaNSS|) aullo Yed Se1au1sIp auyl Jo) slafle] BUISnoy mal jo ULy s |gelsa ayl

oS pdurns

DINEAG I3 N0 S IRSEIL | [[IA4 384 24D
1f) = L H It H

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

PLASIP Ay Ul LAs0aE Buisnoy aaning Ja |and) Ayl auiuua1ag - §°802




SnlpIalqn

Homallel 4 Jualidojasad (g0 auy o ABalens Guilue|4 100 PUNOS & Jasl|ap o] 80 s

sUBIY 1Y [2037 1E9H

™
¥
¥
()
(@)
Q)
o

Ty BuisnoH alnndg) gaoo pue fAalens Buiuue|d 21000 B 800 saslaalio Aas 1o jnadsal u spodal ssaifod aas (L Lo LiLED

[OIIOD J8pUn _H_ T L-Ep-LEEeS
oS pdurns

J0)Iyep jaE1e]

=R LsfaTe [ RN A lf]
SLUOH IS 0eUEL.] S0UPLLI09d

7LOT WMEW LEAQ AGBIENS BUILUE|4 84020 8ULI0L UONEYNSUO) SUORdo PUE S8NSS| auyl40 uona|duiod ayl

ELI0 130 INS SIRSEILU 1M 34 M0H

351313%a uonielnsund A8ajel3s 2107 ayi jo (suondg pue sanss|) z agels a19|dwol - 2°g00




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



Agenda ltem 10

Report to Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

SCRUTINY

Epping Forest District Council

Date of meeting: 29 November 2011

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme —
Six Monthly Review

Officer contact for further information: Simon Hill (Ext 4249)

Committee Secretary: A Hendry (ext 4246)

Recommendations:

(1) That the current work programme be reviewed in accordance with rule 9.3 of the
Overview and Scrutiny Rules having regard to:

(a) the resourcing and scope of the programme; and

(b) the reserve programme and new proposals from members.
1. (Assistant to the Chief Executive). The Overview and Scrutiny Procedural rules state
that ‘The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme shall be of six — months duration and be
reviewed at or before the expiration of that six month period’.
2. The current work programme is attached. A review of this plan is therefore now due.

Task and Finish Panels

3. At the September 2011 meeting a new Task and Finish Panels was established:
‘Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel’, which has met once this year.

Scrutiny Standing Panels
4. No new Standing Panels were created this year.
Reserve List.

5. A reserve list of scrutiny topics is required to ensure that the work flow of OSC is
continuous. OSC will ‘pull out’ items from the list and allocate them accordingly once space
becomes available in the work plan following the completion of existing reviews.

6. To date three items have been added to the work programme. One is to ask the
Corporation of London to attend a meeting on the management of Epping Forest; another to
ask the British Transport Police to attend to update the committee on their plans for the
Olympics; and finally, to review the Mental Health Services in the District. Members can put
forward any further suggestions for inclusion in the reserve list either during the meeting or at
a later date. Existing review items will be dealt with first, and then time will be allocated to the
items contained in the reserve work plan.

7. Members need to bear in mind that new projects can be added but only if there is
capacity among Panels and officers to undertake them.

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



/1| abed

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme — November 2011

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(1) Scrutiny of London
Underground Ltd

Completed July 2011

Completed - Came in July 2011.
To invite back sometime in 2012/13

Local Strategic Partnership —
Chairman and Member level
EFDC representatives

(2) OS Annual Review/ Annual April 2012 2011/12 Final Report to go to April 2012 meeting.
Report
(3) Scrutiny of Epping Forest January 2012 Last completed - came in July 2010 -

Representatives of the partnership to report on an
annual basis.

(4) Scrutiny of Cabinet Forward
Plan

Progress report to October
2011

Completed - Last looked at in October 2011; to
review again when Cabinet next year.

(5) Six monthly review -

(a) Monitoring of OS
recommendations

(b) OS work programme

November 2011

Last completed in November 10

31+ May-2014:
12 Jduby:
B8-September;

418 October;

29 November;
24 January 2012;
6 March; and

17 April

As at: November 2011




g1 | ebed

(6) To review the strategic
direction of Epping Forest
College, its vision for the future

Completed in April 11.
Principal of Epping Forest College addressed the
April 2011 meeting.

and its relationship with the April 2012
Community
(7) Budget Report January 2012 Last completed January 2011

(8) Review of Secondary and
Primary education in the District
and to focus on the link between
Education and deprivation in the
District.

In October 2011

Completed — Had Geoff Mangan, the Epping Forest
14-19 Co-ordinator for Epping Forest Secondary
Schools attend the Oct. 11 meeting.

(9) To receive a presentation from
Youth Council members

November 2011

As last year, members of the Youth Council will
attend with proposals for their funding bid for
2012/13 and give an update on their developing
programme.

(10) Broadband access in the
District

TBA — An Interim report
went to the February “11
meeting. Now waiting to get
Service providers to a
2011/12 meeting.

BT and one other service provider to be asked to
address the O&S Committee on access to
broadband and speeds for the Epping Forest District
Area.

(11) Corporation of London

Looking to January 2012
meeting.

To receive a presentation on the management of the
Epping Forest.

A representative from ‘Friends of Epping Forest ‘ to
be invited as well.

NEW

As at: November 2011




61| abed

(12) Police and Fire Rescue
Services — To also ask British
Transport Police to attend.

Looking to March or April
2012 meeting.

BTP to April meeting to
update us on their plans for
the Olympics.

With the current financial difficulty for statutory
services, the Committee would like to see
representatives of the Police and the Fire and
Rescue Services address the meeting regarding the
implications of their budget reductions — this to be
arranged for the end of 2011 to give them time to
assess the effects.

NEW

(13) Key Objectives 2010/11

Outturn report went to the 31
May 2011 meeting.

Completed. Six monthly progress reports in respect
of the annual Key Objectives are made to the
Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Outturn report for 2010/11 submitted to the May
2011 Meeting.

(14) Key Objectives 2011/12

Progress report to go to the
November 2011 meeting

Six monthly progress reports in respect of the annual
Key Objectives are made to the Cabinet and the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Progress report
for 2011/12 to be submitted to the 29 November
2011 meeting.

(15) To review the new
organisational make up of the
PCT/ West Essex Health Service
and the progress made on the
commissioning of local health
services.

For end of 2012 municipal
year

Useful to look at this next year, after the Bill had
gone through Parliament.

Noted that County were also looking at this topic.

(16) To review the Lea Valley
Regional Park Authority and the
Olympics.

Completed - went to July
2011 meeting

Completed - Report to go to the July 2011 meeting.

As at: November 2011




0z | ebed

(17) Police Reform Proposals for

Essex September 2011 Completed

(18) To meet with Essex County

Council in respect of Children Recommendation taken from the Children Services
Services and on annual basis, Early 2012 Task and Finish Panel.

with the attendance of the To invite an Officer and the Portfolio Holder.

Director of Children’s

Commissioning.

(19) Council Procedure Rules — Completed - Recommendation from the Constitution
reports on Outside Organisations | September 2011 and Member Services Scrutiny Standing Panel —

July 2011

(20) Mental Health Services in the
District.

Sometime in 2012

To consider the state of the Mental Health Services
in the District

NEW

As at: November 2011




12| ebed

Standing Panels

Housing Standing Panel (Chairman — Clir S Murray )

Council Housing Stock

Report Programme of
Item Deadline / Progress / Comments 9 .
- Future Meetings
Priority
(1) Presentation by Mears on 19-July-2044-
proposed approach to Repairs July 2011 COMPLETED 25 October;
Management Contract 28 November 2011
(2) Annual Report on the Extra-Ordinary
HomeOption Choice Based July 2011 COMPLETED Joint Meeting with
Lettings Scheme Finance &
: Performance
(3) HouseMark Benchmarking
Report of Housing Services iy 281 SeLulHHUEDEY, Management
Scrutiny Standing
(4) Annual Ethnic Monitoring Panel;
Review of Housing Applicants L7 AV A 31 January 2012;
(5) Housing Performance ?ngarch
Indicators — 2010/11 Out-turn July 2011 COMPLETED
(Tenant-Selected & KPls)
(6) 12-Month Progress Report on
Housing Strategy Action Plan July 2011 COMPLETED
2010/11
(2781I;I;)1u23|ng Strategy Action Plan July 2011 COMPLETED
(8) Performance against Housing
Service Standards and Review iy 251" AglulHHEEL
(9) Feed-In Tariff Scheme for October 2011 COMPLETED

As at: November 2011




22| obed

(10) Six-monthly Progress Report

on Housing Business Plan Action | October 2011 COMPLETED

Plan

(11) Approach to future Council October 2011 COMPLETED

House-Building Programme

(12) HRA 30-Year Financial Plan S .. . . .

. : cheduled for joint meeting with Finance and Performance

:c?n:;i?ne;ratlon for HRA Self- October 2011 Management Scrutiny Panel on the 28 November 2011

(13) Housing Service Strategy on .

Empty Properties (Review and October 2011 Deferred to the meeting on the 31 January 2012 — Due to
workload and other commitments

update)

(14) Housing Service Strategy on .

Repairs and Maintenance (New) | October 2011 Deferred to the meeting on the 31 January 0212 — Due to
workload and other commitments

(15) Housing Service Strategy on .

Energy Efficiency (Review and October 2011 Deferred to the meeting on the 13 March 2012 — Due to
workload and other commitments

Update)

(16) Annual review of the Housing Deferred to October 2012 — To await the outcome of the

Allocations Scheme October 2011 major changes to legislation relating to allocations
proposed within the Localism Bill

(17) Review of Private Sector

Housing Strategy January 2012 Not yet due

(18) Briefing on the proposed

Council rent increase for 2010/11 January 2012 Not yet due

As at: November 2011




£z abed

(19) Six-monthly Progress report
on Housing Strategy Action Plan
2011/12

January 2012

Not yet due

(20) Housing Service Strategy on
Home Ownership (Review and
update)

January 2012

Not yet due

(21) Housing Service Strategy on
Housing and Estate Management
(Review and update)

March 2012

Not yet due

(22) Housing Service Strategy on
Rent Administration (Review and
update)

March 2012

Not yet due

(23) 12-monthly Progress report
on Housing Business Plan Action
Plan

March 2012

Not yet due

(24) Housing Service Strategy on
Older People’s Housing (Review
and Update)

March 2012

Not yet due

(25) HRA Business Plan 2012/13

(26) Provision of smoke detectors
in Communal blocks or Council
properties

March 2012

Iltems added after the original Work Programme was agreed

October 2011

Not yet due

COMPLETED

As at: November 2011




ye| ebed

(27) Outcome report on the October 2011 Deferred to the meeting on the 31 January 2012 — Due to the

implementation of new licences resignation of both the Technical Officer (Private Sector) and

for park home sites the Environmental Health Officer undertaking the site
inspections, which has delayed the programme, and to await
the outcome of liaison meetings with site owners and
representatives of resident’s associations, scheduled to be held
before Christmas.

(28) Solar PV to Council Housing | October 2011

As at: November 2011




G2l obed

Constitution and Member Services Standing Panel (Chairman — Clir D Stallan)

Item Report Deadline / Progress / Comments Programme of Future
Priority Meetings

: .

(210)1I;l;a1v; panel meeting dates for June 2011 COMPLETED 39—JHH6—2944—_ ;
4 Octeober;

(2) Review of Referendum/Elections — 8 November; and
May 2011 WD AL SePLaEy 20 February 2012
3) Complaints Panel — Terms of One extra meeting on 23
ggf orons June 2011 COMPLETED January 2012
(4) Substitutions at Meetings June 2011 COMPLETED
(5) Council Meetings — Member reports
on outside bodies June 2011 COMPLETED
(6) Review of Membership of Audit and
Governance Committee Deputy 8 November 2011 COMPLETED

Portfolio Holder

As at: November 2011




92| ebed

(7) Report of District Remuneration

Panel 4 October 2011 COMPLETED

(8) Report on Webcasting 23 January 2012 Revised report for January 2012 meeting.
(9) PIanr_1ir_1_c_;_/Covenants — Council 23 January 2012 Discussgd at the O_ctobgr Panel. Revised
Responsibilities report will be submitted in due course.

) SO RORE e el 4 October 2011 COMPLETED

(11) Review of Petitions — Change in TBA Currently awaiting passage of Localism Bill.

Legal Requirements

Officers will report at appropriate time.

(12) Reporting at Council meetings by
Scrutiny Panel Chairmen

8 November 2011

COMPLETED - Preliminary scoping at the
meeting in July 2011. Further report to
November meeting recommendations due for
submission to OSC (30.11.11) and Council
meeting (13.12.11).

(13) Member’s Dispatch - Review

8 November 2011

COMPLETED - Recommendations to OSC
(30.11.11)

(14) Review of Officer Delegation

20 February 2012

(15) Review of Contract Standing
Orders and Financial Regulations

20 February 2012

(16) Review of Annual Council
arrangements

20 February 2012

(17) Review of Member’s
representation on Qutside Bodies

20 February 2012

(18) Housing Appeals and Review
Panel — Terms of Reference

23 January 2012

@&?HB{%H‘R%%%%M Review

Panel Order of Business

23 January 2012

10




/2| abed

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman Mrs M Sartin)
Work Programme 2011-12

It Report Deadline / Programme of
em Priori Progress / Comments -
riority Future Meetings
7 July 2011
(1) Safer, Cleaner, Greener H1-October-
strategy cancelled;
(a) To January 2012 (a) To put data to January '12 meeting. 1 October—Extra-
(a) Enforcement activity — half meeting Ordinary-Meeting
yearly report 10 January 2012;
(b) To January 2012 (b) To put data to the January '12 meeting. 21 February; and
(b) Half yearly report on Strategy meeting 10 April 2012
Action Plan
(c¢) To January 2012 (c) Not required until January 2012 meeting
(c) Agree action plan for 2012/13 meeting Crime and Disorder

As at: November 2011 11




8z | ebed

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman Mrs M Sartin)

Work Programme 2011-12

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(2) Community Safety

(a) CCTV action plan — half yearly
report

(b) Receive reports from
Community Safety Scrutiny
meetings

(c) Progress against strategic
assessment

(d) Progress towards appointment
of Police & Crime
Commissioner.

(e) Monitoring of Police resources
relative to the Olympic Games

(a) To January 2012
meeting

(b) To January 2012 and
April 2012 meetings

(c) To January 2012
meeting
(d) To report when

information available

(e) To report when
information available

(a) Data to the January '12 meeting

(b) Report to be considered at January 2012
meeting

(c) Data to January '12 meeting

(d) Awaiting outcome of House of Lords

amendments and referral back to the Commons.

(e) Data not yet available

(3) Essex Waste Partnership Inter
Authority Agreement

(a) Receive notes/minutes of
Member Partnership Board

(a) To receive notes/
minutes when available

(a) A meeting was likely to be held in November
2011.

Scrutiny meetings —
the 2 meeting dates
are October 2014
and February 2012

As at: November 2011

12




62| obed

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman Mrs M Sartin)

Work Programme 2011-12

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(b) Receive notes/minutes of Inter
Authority Member Group

(b) To receive notes/
minutes when available

(b) Draft Notes (unapproved) of meetings held on 7
June “11 submitted to 17 October meeting.

(4) Waste Management
Partnership Board

(a) Receive minutes of Partnership
Board

(a) To receive notes /
minutes when available

(a) Draft notes of meeting held on 16 June 2011
went to 17 Oct. meeting.

(5) Green and Carbon Reduction
Measures

(a) Nottingham declaration
Progress against pledges — half
yearly reports

(b) Carbon Reduction Strategy
update

(a) January 2012.

(b) January 2012.

(a) last went to the July 2011 meeting

(b) Last went to the July 2011 meeting.

As at: November 2011

13




0c| ebed

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman Mrs M Sartin)
Work Programme 2011-12

Item

Report Deadline /

Progress / Comments

Programme of

Priority Future Meetings
(6) Bobbingworth Tip
(a) Receive reports on availability (a) (a) Nature Reserve formally opened on 15 July
for public access 2011.
(b) Receive notes/minutes of (b) To January 2012 (b) Notes of meeting held on 25 May 2011
management/liaison group meeting

(7) Ad hoc report asked for on TBA

improving recycling in flats and

houses of multiple occupation

(8) Ad hoc report asked for on the TBA Currently subject to a review by price Waterhouse

use of Solar Panels on Council
owned properties.

Coopers as part of income generation assessment.

(9) Roding River Catchment
Environment Agency Consultation

17 October 2011

Completed - Extra ordinary Panel meeting to
discuss the EA consultation on the Roding River.
Previously discussed by the Planning Services
Standing Panel in September.

As at: November 2011

14




¢} obed

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Standing Panel (Chairman Mrs M Sartin)

Work Programme 2011-12

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(10) Roding River Catchment

To receive an updating report on the wider

. . TBA implications, once known, of the EA strategy on NEW
Environment Agency Consultation ) .
flood management in the Roding catchment area.
(11) New SITA Contract TBA To scrutinise the new SITA contract once details NEW

were known.

As at: November 2011

15




Planning Services Standing Panel (Chairman - Clir H Ulkan)

Report Deadline /
Priority

Programme of

Item Future Meetings

Progress / Comments

(1) Reports to each meeting on:
(a) Regional Plan 14 June 2011,
(b) Local Development Framework 13-Sepiember;
(c) Current Staffing Reaul dati 3-October

(d) Improvement Plan eguar upaating 20 December,
(e) Any recent meeting of the reports 7 February 2012;
Chairman and Vice Chairman of the and

Area and District Committees Invitation 24 April

Panel

2c| ebed

(2) Value for Money Provision: Provide a report after
(a) Administration & Customer Support | the end of Quarter 4 on
(b) Building Control 2(c) + 2(e) and

(c) Development Control (including periodically on the
Appeals) other areas

(d) Economic Development
(e) Enforcement

(f) Environment Team

(g) Forward Planning

(h) Performance

(3) To review a selection of This item has been extracted from the Terms of
controversial planning decisions to see Reference of the Provision for Value for Money

if lessons can be learnt from their within Planning Services Task and Finish Panel and
consideration. the current Panel.

As at: November 2011 16




cc| abed

(4) To consider whether the reporting
arrangements for Terms of Reference
sections and those from the Section
106s (including how they are
negotiated agreed and implemented
strategically to secure community
benefit), and appeals are sufficient
(including how new legislation impacts
on these) and recommend accordingly

This item has been extracted from the Terms of
Reference of the Provision for Value for Money
within Planning Services Task and Finish Panel and
the current Panel.

(5) Contributions to affordable housing

Item carried forward

COMPLETED

(S106 Agreements) from 2010/11 Work
Programme
(6) Liaise with other planning New ltem Quarterly meeting with other Essex Authorities

authorities to learn from their work.

discuss and share working practices. Benchmarking
underway as part of local fee setting and charging of
planning application fees.

(7) CLG Consultation — Planning for
Traveller Sites

New Item — June 2011

COMPLETED

(8) Community Infrastructure Levy

New Item - June 2011
Panel meeting

A new draft CIL Strategy will be submitted in
February 2012

(9) Draft New Terms of Reference

To be announced

Requested by Councillor A Lion

(10) Environment Agency Consultation
— Roding River Area

September 2011

COMPLETED

As at: November 2011

17




| abed

(11) Sustainable Framework for UK September 2011 COMPLETED
Aviation: Scoping Document

(12) Essex County Council Minerals September 2011 COMPLETED
Development Document — Further Site

Allocations Issues and Options Paper

(13) Fee Setting — Development September 2011 COMPLETED
Control

(14) New Draft National Policy October 2011 COMPLETED
Framework

(15) Local Planning Regulations (CLG) | October 2011 COMPLETED

As at: November 2011

18




Gg| abed

Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel (Chairman — Clir D Jacobs)

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(1) Key Performance Indicators —
Performance Outturn 2010/11

Outturn KPI
performance report
considered at the first
meting of the Scrutiny
Panel in each
municipal year.

Completed - KPI outturn report for 2010/11 to be
considered at the meeting held on 21 June 2011.

(2) Key Performance Indicators —
Performance Monitoring 2011/12

KPI performance report
to be considered on a
quarterly basis.

Quarterly KPI performance report for 2011/12 to be
considered at the meetings to be held in September
2011(qtr 1), November 2011 (qtr 2) and March 2012 (qgtr
3).

(3) Key Performance Indicators —
Development of indicators set for
2012/13

Draft indicator set to be
considered on the
basis of third quarter
KPI performance for
2011/12.

KPI proposals to be considered at the meeting to be held
on 20 March 2012.

(4) Quarterly Financial Monitoring

Reports to be
considered on a
quarterly basis.

First quarter information to be considered September ‘11,
2" quarter in November ‘11 and 3™ quarter figures at the
March ‘12 meeting.

(5) Annual Consultation Plan

Report considered on
an annual basis.
Report went to the
June '11 meeting.

Completed - Consultation Plan considered at first meeting
of each municipal year. Report last went to the June 2011
meeting,

24June 20141

15 November;

16 January 2012;
and

20 March

As at: November 2011

19




9¢| ebed

(6) Detailed Portfolio Budgets

Had last been
considered at the
January 2011 meeting
of the Cabinet Finance
Committee.

Considered at the January ’11 of the Cabinet Finance
Committee — Annual review of the Portfolio Holders
Budgets. To go again to the January 2012 meeting.

(7) Medium Term Financial
Strategy

To go to the January
2012 meeting

To review the Council’'s medium term financial strategy -
January 2012.

(8) Equality and Diversity -
Monitoring and Progress

Progress report
considered at the first
meeting of the Scrutiny
Panel in each
municipal year.

Completed - Progress report for the 2010/11 to be
considered at the meeting to be held on 21 June 2011.

(9) Capital Outturn 2010/11 and
use of transitional relief in
2010/11

Went to the June ’11
meeting

Completed - Last considered at the June 2011 meeting

(10) Provisional revenue Outturn
2010/11

Went to the June ’11
meeting

Completed - Last considered at the June 2011 meeting

(11) Fees and Charges

To consider at the
November 11 meeting

Completed - Last went to November 2011 meeting.

(12) Sickness Absence

Quarterly Reports

Quarterly Figures of the Council’s Sickness Absence
figures. Last Considered at the June, September and
November 2011 meetings.

(13) Value for Money & Data
Quality Strategies.

September 2011

Completed — September 2011.
Progress made against the Council’'s VFM and Data
Quality Strategy.

As at: November 2011

20




/€| ebed

Task and Finish Panels

Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel (Chairman - Clir K Angold-Stephens)

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Programme of
Future Meetings |

First meeting to define Terms of
Reference.

November 2011

First meeting held on 10 November 2011

10 November 2011

As at: November 2011

21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Agenda ltem 11

Report to the Overview & Scrutiny 0
Committee
Date of meeting: 29 November 2011 S C RU T | N Y

Epping Forest District Council

Report of: Constitution & Member Services Standing Scrutiny Panel
Chairman Councillor D Stallan
Subject: Audit and Governance Committee — Appointment of Portfolio

Holder Assistants
Officer Contact: | Willett (01992 564243)

Committee Secretary: A Hendry (01992 4246)

Recommendations:
(1) That a report be submitted to the Council recommending as follows:

(a) that Portfolio Assistants, except those involved with a Portfolio dealing with the
Council’s finances, be eligible for appointment to the Audit and Governance
Committee, subject to careful consideration by the Councillor concerned of the need
to declare a prejudicial interest in any matter relating to the relevant Portfolio which
comes before that Committee;

(b) that the proposal set out in (a) above be reviewed after one year or if there is a
change either in the roles of Portfolio Holder Assistants of the Audit and Governance
Commiittee;

(c) that the designation “Deputy Portfolio Holder” be changed to “Portfolio Holder
Assistant”; and

(d) that paragraph 11.6(a) (Councillor Members) of Article 11 of the Constitution
(Audit and Governance Committee) be amended to read as follows (changes in bold
text underlined):

“11.6(a) (Councillor Members)

Councillors appointed to the Audit and Governance Committee may not also be members of
the Cabinet, any Cabinet Committee or any Panel appointed by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee with responsibility for reviewing the Council’s finances or financial procedures.

A Portfolio Holder Assistant (other than any assistant involved in any portfolio dealing
with the Council’s finances) appointed by the Leader of the Council shall be eligible for
appointment to the Committee”

Page 139



(e) that the Standards Committee be asked to issue advice to Portfolio Holder
Assistants on how such conflicts of interest should be dealt with and to consult with
the Audit and Governance Committee before it is issued;

(2) That the proposed review by the Audit and Governance Committee of its own
constitution including the following specific matters be noted:

(a) terms of appointment for independent members;

(b) method of appointing Councillor members of the Committee (including
pro rata rules and appointment by Council rather than political groups);

(c) whether the Committee should be increased in size;
(d)  whether there should be a majority of independent members; and
(e) whether there should be separate Audit and Governance Committees; and

(3) That any review of the Constitution which results from (2) above be added to the
work programme for this Panel; and

(4) That the Audit and Governance Committee be advised of this Panel’s view that
the number of its members should be increased.

INTRODUCTION

1. We have been requested to review the constitution of the Audit and Governance
Committee to clarify whether a Portfolio Holder Assistant can be a member of that body. We
consulted that Committee with our provisional proposals before deciding on our
recommendations for any changes to the Constitution.

CONSULTATION WITH THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

2. The Committee reviewed our proposals at its meeting on 22 September 2011. The
Committee accepted that, on a trial basis of one year, its membership could include Portfolio
Holder Assistants with the exception of any Assistants associated with a portfolio dealing with
the Council’s finances despite a number of reservations which were expressed as follows:

(a) although there was currently no legal rule which excluded portfolio holder
assistants, there was a preference to avoid conflicts of interest which might arise
unless those conflicts were very carefully managed;

(b) doubts were expressed that the Panel's comments regarding the degree of
involvement in the portfolio and the particular skills of individuals really does offset the
possible damage to the public perception of whether the Committee was truly
independent;

(c) there was a need for clear advice on conflicts of interest so that portfolio
holder assistants who had been involved in matters to be discussed by the Committee
know exactly how to respond;

(d) worries were expressed that, with a membership of only 5, the withdrawal of a

Page 140



Councillor due to a conflict of interest would reduce the Committee to 4 members or
less, a possibility which would cause problems in carrying out their duties;

(e) it was acknowledged that the involvement of portfolio holder assistants might
vary greatly between portfolios and individual topics; and

) it was accepted that the Committee should be able to use the talents of individual
members and reducing the pool of Councillors available by excluding portfolio holder
assistants, could be counter-productive.

3. The Council’'s External Auditor also attended the meeting and commented that any
special skills contributed by Councillors to the work of the Audit and Governance Committee
might outweigh the presence of a portfolio holder assistant as a member.

FURTHER REVIEW BY THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

4, Recommendation (2) makes reference to a further review being planned by the
Committee. A discussion paper will be submitted to a future meeting of the Audit &
Governance Committee and we are recommending that any further constitutional changes
requested should be referred to this Panel and added to its work programme.

5. This review arose because it is now some years since the Audit and Governance
Committee was established and this would be the first overall review of its operations.
Government plans for introducing statutory audit committees are also relevant.

CONSTITUTION

6. Recommendation (1)(d) sets out the changes to the Constitution (Article 11,
paragraph 11.6) which follows from our recommendation. Consequential changes to other
parts of the Constitution will be made by the Assistant to the Chief Executive.

7. We have accepted the view of the Audit and Governance Committee that advice to
Portfolio Holder Assistants and how to deal with conflicts of interest should be given by the
Standards Committee. We are recommending that there should be consultation between the
two Committees before that advice is issued.

DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

8. We are recommending that the term “Deputy Portfolio Holder” should be replaced by
“Portfolio Holder Assistant”

9. This is because we feel that “Deputy Portfolio Holder” is a misnomer in that the
nominated Councillors are not able under the legislation, to deputise for a Cabinet member.
In the event of a Cabinet member being unable to act, it would be the responsibility of the
Leader of Council to re-allocate the function to another Cabinet member, including the
Leader. We feel that “Portfolio Holder Assistant” more accurately reflects the role.

10. We recommend as set out at the commencement of this report.

Z:\C\OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 29 NOVEMBER 2011 APPOINTMENT OF PORTFOLIO
HOLDER ASSISTANTS

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



Agenda ltem 12

Report to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting: 29 November S C RU Tl N Y

2011

Report of: Constitution and Member Services
Standing Scrutiny Panel

Epping Forest District Council

Chairman: Councillor D Stallan
Subject: Reporting by Scrutiny Panel Chairmen at Council Meetings
Officer Contact for further Information: lan Willett (01992 564243)

Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations:
That a report be submitted to the Council recommending as follows:

(a) that the principle of Scrutiny Panel Chairmen presenting reports at Council
meetings be approved;

(b) that Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 12(3)(h) (Standing Scrutiny Panels)
and 13(3)(h) (Task and Finish Scrutiny panels) be amended to read as follows:

“be able, after consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to report
to the Council, the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, a Portfolio Holder or any other
Council body”;

(c) that Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 12(4) and 13(3) be further amended
by the addition of the following sub paragraphs:

“(i) in the circumstances set out in (h), the report shall be submitted in the name
of the Panel and presented by its Chairman, unless the work of more than one
Scrutiny Panel is involved, in which case any report to another Council body will
be in the name of the Overview & Scrutiny and presented by its Chairman

(j) in the event that the submission of a Panel report to another Council body is
required such that it cannot be considered by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee
in accordance with paragraph (h) above, the Panel report may proceed for
consideration subject to prior consultation with the Chairman of that Committee
as to the reasons for urgency;

(d) That, at Council meetings, the written report of the Chairman of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee be dealt with prior to the reports by the Committee or any of its
Panels and grouped under a single item relating to Overview and Scrutiny business; and

(e) That the Assistant to the Chief Executive be authorised to make any other
consequential amendments to the Constitution arising from the above changes.

Page 143



Report:

1. Introduction

1. The Constitution and Member Services Scrutiny Standing Panel has reviewed the
presentation of Overview and Scrutiny reports at Council meetings.

Current Procedure

2. Standing and Task and Finish Scrutiny Panels have the status of sub-committees of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in that they are appointed by the Committee and report on
their work programmes and the progress they are making. As such, Panels would not normally
report to the Council unless specifically authorised to do so by the Committee.

3. The current arrangements are set out in Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 12
(Standing Scrutiny Panels) and 13 (Task and Finish Scrutiny Panels). The requirements for
both types of Panel are the same:

"Panels will be able, with the prior approval of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to report
direct to the Cabinet, a Cabinet Committee, a Portfolio Holder, another Committee or to the
Council with recommendations”.

In practice, this procedure is only being exercised in one or two cases of urgency.
General Considerations

4, Most work is carried out by Overview and Scrutiny is conducted through the Standing
and Task and Finish Panels. The Constitution envisages that the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will effectively manage the work of those Panels, agreeing their work programme
receiving progress reports against deadlines set. Although the Committee itself undertakes
some Scrutiny work particularly in questioning representatives from other public bodies about
service changes, etc. which might affect the District, most detailed work is nevertheless,
conducted through those Panels.

5. Bearing in mind the work undertaken by Panels, it can be argued that it should be the
Panel Chairmen, rather than the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, who
should present reports as they have detailed knowledge of the matter concerned. Such reports
when submitted to the Council might involve changes to Council policies and practices where
detailed knowledge of the Panel Chairman is desirable in order to answer questions at Council
meetings.

6. On the other hand, the Overview and Scrutiny is constitutionally the counterbalance to
the Cabinet. Overview and Scrutiny is required to monitor the work of the Cabinet, if necessary
calling in decisions for further review and also to undertake policy work on behalf of the Council
whether requested by the Cabinet or otherwise, in a way which is unencumbered by the
executive responsibilities of executive members.

7. Because of this, we consider it is important that the role and status of the Chairman of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is not undermined to such an extent that the position is
seen to be less significant than the Panel Chairmen and the Cabinet. In conducting the review
and framing our recommendations, we have tried to balance this against what we see as a
desirable charge whereby Panels would submit reports at for example Council meetings.

Page 144



8. Panel reports should in our view still be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee unless there is a need to deal with a Panel report more quickly. In such cases we
are recommending that there should be a prior consultation with the Chairman of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee so as to agree the degree of urgency.

Key Changes

9. We are recommending (1)(b) and (c) above changes to the Overview and Scrutiny
Rules to allow this new reporting procedure to be introduced.

The key features of these changes are as follows:
(a) reports presented to the Council will be in the name of the Scrutiny Panel;
(b) the same rules will apply to Standing Scrutiny Panels and Task and Finish Panels;

(c) all Panel reports will continue to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
in the first instance unless the report is urgent in which case the chairman; and

(d) the procedure will apply to Scrutiny Panel reports which are presented to other Council
bodies such as the Cabinet.

Consultation

10. The Panel consulted all Panel Chairmen together with the Chairman of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee for their views. The closing date of 9 September 2011 was set and
any Panel Chairmen or the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee were also
invited to attend our last meeting if they so wished in order to express their views directly. No
adverse comments were received.

Council Agenda

11. We are keen not to give the impression of downgrading the status of the Chairman of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee by allowing Panel Chairmen to present their reports.

We re-affirm that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairman still has the key role under
the Constitution. To emphasise this, we recommend that the written report of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee Chairman which is already submitted to each Council meeting about recent
developments should be transferred from its present position on the agenda alongside Portfolio
Holder reports to a new Overview and Scrutiny agenda item which would also cover any Panel
reports.

12. We recommend as set out at the commencement of this report.

Z:/C/OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY/29 NOV 2011 - REPORTING BY SCRUTINY PANEL

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



Agenda ltem 13

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny 0
Committee
Date of meeting: 30 November 2011 S C RUT' N Y

Report of: Constitution and Member Services SSP Epping Forest District Council
Subject: Member Agenda Despatch Arrangements

Chairman: Councillor D Stallan

Responsible Officer: | Willett (01992 564243)

Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations:

(1) That the changes being made by the Director of Corporate Support Services in
respect of member postal despatches be supported, namely:

(a) postal despatch — Tuesday each week;
(b) messenger delivery — Friday each week;

(2) That the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Support Services be advised of these
changes which should achieve a DDF saving of £3,000 per annum in 2012/13 so
that this figure can be incorporated in the draft budget;

(3) That the Portfolio Holder be encouraged to undertake a wider review of
messenger/administrative and related services with a view to making further
economies in future years;

(4) That the question of making use of new technology for members’ agenda and
meeting arrangements be included in the Work Programme for this Panel in
2012/13; and

(5) That, pursuant to (4) above, legal advice be obtained on the current provisions
of the Local Government Act 1972 in regard to paper copies of agenda and
whether electronic despatch arrangements compromise the Council’s
responsibilities in this regard.

1. Introduction

1.1 We have undertaken a review of member despatch arrangements. We received
background information on this service on which the Panel based that review and
were also advised that a review of the messenger service was already being
undertaken in the Corporate Support Services (CSS) Directorate.

2. Organisation of Despatch Arrangements

2.1 We noted that agendas, minutes and similar documents are co-ordinated by
Democratic Services in the Office of the Chief Executive. In that role, all Directorates

Page 147



3.1

3.2

3.3

41

4.2

5.1

5.2

are involved, being responsible for many of the reports destined for member
consideration. Agendas etc. are produced via the Modern.gov software (COMS) in
Democratic Services. The required printed copies are produced in the Reprographics
Section of Corporate Support Services Directorate and are despatched (externally
and internally) by the Administration Section of the same Directorate.

Legal Requirements

We noted that the legal requirements shape the despatch arrangements. Two
statutory timetables apply to all formal meetings of the Council:

(a) five clear days' notice of meetings must be given to the public; and

(b) despatch of agenda papers to Councillors and availability to the public must be
at least five clear days before a meeting.

On (a), this is achieved by a notice at the Council offices which is the minimum
requirement of the legislation. Some local authorities publish forward meeting dates
via press notices or by other means (e.g. Council newspapers). EFDC relies on the
statutory minimum requirement and has done so since 1974. A notice of meetings is
published on the website and in the reception area of the Civic Offices.

On (b), despatch of “hard copy” agenda takes place on Tuesdays and Fridays and
would provide five clear days notice for meetings held in the early part of week 2 after
despatch (Tuesday) and the latter part of that week (Friday). This also reduces the
number of ad hoc postings.

Five Clear Days - Definition

We were advised that this term, or more particularly "clear" is not defined in the
legislation. Various legal cases have however resulted in a definition that "clear days"
must exclude:

(a) the date of despatch;

(b) the date of the meeting;

() weekends; and

(d) Bank or Public Holidays.

Despatch dates are therefore earlier than 5 clear days might imply. However, this can
be seen as an advantage to Councillors, the public and the press in that over a week
is normally available for papers to be read.

Paper Agenda

The legislation (LGA 72) was drafted before the advent of the electronic age and
Councils are still required to deposit paper copies for the public and press. The press
have said to the Council that they are happy to rely on the website to view the
agendas.

For Councillors, the Act says that copies can either be posted to them or left at the

address they specify (usually their home address). For the purposes of the Act either
is sufficient service. Members are able to specify another address for delivery by

Page 148



6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

means of a written notice. However, the Act implies delivery of a paper agenda and
there is thus a risk of challenge if Councils rely solely on electronic delivery.

Lack of Notice

Business may not be transacted at a meeting unless the 5 clear days' notice has been
given. Any decisions in these circumstances could be at risk of challenge, probably in
the Courts.

Late Items

Other business can be dealt with, however. So long as a covering item is set out in
the published agenda, late circulation of the related report is deemed to fulfil the
requirements for notice, albeit that this is not ideal. Urgent business (i.e. that which is
not included in the published agenda) can also be admitted but only with the approval
of the Chairman of the meeting to the grounds for urgency, which must be recorded.

Current Practice

The legislation is drafted on the basis of full Council meetings and then applied to
Committees, Sub-Committees, the Cabinet, etc. With this in mind, the current
practice is to supply hard copy agenda to every member of the body concerned. Non
members are expected to rely on e-mail notifications to read/print their agenda. A
small stock of hard copy agenda are kept in Democratic Services for:

(a) Councillors who are not members; and

(b) the public attending the meeting.

Paper copies are also available in reception at the Civic Offices.
Messenger Delivery

For many years despatch of all agenda was by post. In the late 1990's, the cost of
postage was such that the use of messenger deliveries came under consideration.
The Council transferred to this arrangement when the LGA 2000 extended the notice
period for "3 days" to "5 clear days". Use of messengers significantly improved the
reliability and security of delivery within the timescale and was cheaper. This system
has continued to the present day.

Since the current messenger delivery arrangements were introduced, postal charges
have changed. This has triggered a review of messenger arrangements in the
Corporate Support Services Directorate. This review established that traditionally the
Tuesday despatch is lighter and is now cheaper to post than using a messenger. The
Friday despatch is usually the heavier and is more economical if messenger delivery
is retained.

This review coincided with the retirement of one messenger employed part time on
members’ despatch. We were asked whether the change to a postal despatch on
Tuesday met with member approval. If so, this would enable a DDF saving to be
achieved in next year’s budget in a sum of £3,000. We are happy to support this
change as we have been reassured that the members’ despatch will not be adversely
affected and will reduce costs.

Page 149



9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

We expressed the view, however, that the Corporate Support Services review should
go further. We discussed the role of other messengers and felt that all budgets
should be examined with a view to identifying whether further savings could be
achieved. In other words, we felt the review should extend beyond the members’
despatch.

We understand that such a review is outside our terms of reference and we are
therefore recommending that the current proposals and the savings planned plus the
wider review we have discussed should be referred to the relevant Portfolio Holder.
We hope that the DDF savings mentioned are regarded as an interim position only.

New Technology

We have noted the efforts of officers to reduce the paper used as part of the weekly
despatch. Over the last five years a number of reductions have been possible. To
some extent this has been offset by the rising number of meetings being held. This
year however, with the decrease in some meeting rotas, particularly Area Plans
Sub-Committees, this trend has been reversed.

As stated earlier in this report, the LGA 72 dictates how members receive information.
However, some members have informed us of their wish not to receive paper agenda.
These arrangements are likely to become more common as Councillors adopt new
technology.

Through contact with other authorities, officers are aware of the growing number of
Councils that are looking to these new technologies to save resources. Of particular
interest to Members will be the new “App” being developed by the Council’s
Committee Management System providers, Modern.gov. This will enable all agenda,
supplementary papers and minutes to be ‘pushed’ to an Apple device ready for
members to bring with them to meetings. It includes the ability to annotate documents
with notes taken by members at the meetings.

This has the potential to replace the traditional committee despatch arrangements. It
does have implications in terms of implementation namely:

(a) how the technology is funded, a business case or whether current resources
could be used in different ways eg: Members’ IT allowances;

(b) a legal advice on the prescription of the LGA 72; and

(c) practical issues relating to technology in the Council’s public rooms, for
example electrical supply points and Wireless technology in the Civic Offices
complex.

We have asked officers to continue their assessment of the potential of this
application and we are recommending an item be included in our work plan for the
next municipal year when it is envisaged that this technology will be commercially
available. In the meantime, we are recommending that legal advice be sought on the
Local Government Act 1972 provisions regarding paper agenda.

Z:/C/OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY/30 NOV 11 - MEMBER AGENDA DESPATCH ARRANGEMENTS

Page 150



Agendaltem 14

Report to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date of meeting: 29 November 2011 SC RUT' N Y

Subject: Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel —

Terms of Reference and scoping plan Epping Forest District Council

Officer contact for further information: C O’Boyle

Committee Secretary: Simon Hill Ext 4249

Recommendations:

(1) That the Panels’ Aims and Objectives and the Terms of Reference set out in
paragraph 4 of this report be agreed; and

(2) That the proposals of the Panel to seek to submit their final report by the 6
March 2012 Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting be agreed;

Introduction and Background

1. Following a report to the Council by the Audit and Governance Committee, Overview
and Scrutiny Committee were asked to undertake a review of the reporting procedures for the

recruitment of the Chief Executive.

2. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on 6 September 2011, agreed
to establish a Task and Finish Group to facilitate this review.

3. The Committee appointed the following members to serve on the Panel:

Councillors K Angold-Stephens (Chairman), Mrs A Grigg, J M Whitehouse, R Bassett
and D Stallan.

4, The first meeting of the Panel was held on 10 November 2011. The Panel has
identified its aims and objectives and Terms of Reference which are reproduced below:

“Aims and Objectives

To bring forward a procedure for the reporting of complex and sensitive contracts to
members and a procedure to be followed in the event of such contracts being entered into.

To report their findings to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for onward consideration by
the Council.

To have agreed written procedures in place in time to inform the outcome of the recruitment
to the position of Chief Executive which is currently vacant and any issues arising from the
review by Ernst and Young in respect of the corporate management structure. “

“Terms of Reference

1. To consider and formulate a written procedure for reporting complex and
sensitive senior officer employment contracts to members;

2. To consider the scope and agree positions to which these arrangements

Page 151



should apply (eg. Chief Executive; Deputy Chief Executive; Directors; Assistant to the
Chief Executive and other statutory officers);

3. To formulate a procedure on how the Council seek advice on the form of
contract and other contractual considerations arising from senior staff appointments
taking account of lessons learnt from previous cases;

4, To bring any other recruitment issues arising from the review to the attention
of the Committee for the Appointment of the Chief Executive;

5. To report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with recommended
procedures by 6 March 2012.”

Timetable:

5. The following timetable has been agreed:
Meeting Date Purpose and Outcome
First meeting of the Panel 10 November 2011 | To have agreed the aims,

objectives, terms of reference;
information/evidence required and
timetable

Second meeting of the Panel | 15 December 2011 To receive and consider
information/evidence

Third meeting of the Panel TBA To consider findings of the review
and compile recommendations for
the final report.

Overview and Scrutiny 6 March 2012 To receive the formal procedures
Committee and related recommendations
6. Members are asked to endorse the Aims and Objectives; Terms of reference and

proposed work plan.

Page 152



Agenda ltem

Two skills sessions for Overview & Scrutiny Members

Session 1: 15 March 2012 Location: EFDC Offices Epping
An introduction to Overview and Scrutiny: how to be effective

6.30 Introduction and the programme

6.40 Overview and Scrutiny — what is it and what does it do?
e origins and purpose
e what can Overview and Scrutiny cover?
e the various roles of Overview and Scrutiny

7.15 The new localism — preparing O & S for new developments

7.45 Developing and managing an effective work programme
e acommittee’s work programme: what are you trying to do?
e planning and managing the annual work programme
e in-depth reviews: how they work and your role

8.15 Break

8.20 Work programming skills exercise (with feedback)
9.20 Reflections and ways forward

9.30 Evaluation and close

Session 2: 29 March 2012 Location: HDC Civic Centre, Harlow
Assessing evidence and questioning skills

6.30 Introduction and the programme

6.40 Understanding and evaluating evidence
o different types of evidence
e how robust is the evidence — how to test its validity and strength

7.10 Preparing for and getting the best out of a meeting
e putting ourselves and others at ease
e how to get people talking
e listening skills

7.30 Effective questioning: tools and strategies
o types of questions for different purposes
e questioning pitfalls
e sequencing your questions

8.15 Break
8.20 Questioning skills exercise (with feedback)
9.20 Reflections and ways forward

9.30 Evaluation and close

Page 153

16



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	6 Presentation from the Youth Council
	7 Call-in of Cabinet Report on Olympic Games "Look and Feel" and Ticket Allocation
	Call in sheet
	Cabinet report C-032-2011/12
	Extract of Cabinet Decision Sheet
	Call-in Rules

	8 Government Consultation on Technical Reforms of Council Tax
	Questions for C Tax Consultation

	9 Key Objectives 2011/12 - Progress report
	Key Objective Appendix

	10 Overview and Scrutiny - Six Monthly Review
	Work Programme

	11 Audit and Governance Committee - Appointment of Portfolio Holder Assistant
	12 Reporting by Scrutiny Panel Chairmen at Council Meetings
	13 Review of Members Dispatch Arrangements
	14 Senior Recruitment Task and Finish Panel - Terms of Reference
	16 Overview and Scrutiny - Joint Training Initiative with Harlow District Council

